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Who we are

Royal Mail is the UK’s pre-eminent delivery company,
connecting people, customers and businesses. As the
UK’s sole designated Universal Service Provider?, we are
proud to deliver a ‘one-price-goes-anywhere’ service on
a range of letters and parcels to more than 29 million
addresses, across the UK, six-days-a-week.

Through UK Parcels, International & Letters
(UKPIL) we make a very sigrificant
contribution to the wider UK economy

In 2014-15 our mpact totalled £11 1 billon
in terms of value added This includes our
contnibution through employment
procurement and taxation We made the

6th largest contribution to the UK economy
of all UK corporations?

Through our European parcels delivery
business General Logistics Systems (GLS)
we operate one of the largest ground-based
deferred? parcel delivery networks in Eurape

Our people

We employ more than 160,000 people
across our Group UKPIL employs around
143 000 people On average, one m

180 employed people in the UK works for
Raoyal Mail* Approximatety 3 200 people
work in our UK partally-owned subsidianes

GLS employs around 14 Q00° people
across a range of frontlne, operational
and support roles

Our shareholders

Following our flotation on the London Stock
Exchange i October 2013, we contmue to
have a iarge retail shareholder base
Approximately 150,000 eligible Royal Mail
employees In the UK received free a ten
per cent stake m our Company in total on
privatisation HM Government retamed
299 per cent of Royal Mail's shares at

29 March 2015

-

Our transformation
We are transforming as we handte fewer
letters and manage increasing parcel volumes

UK addressed letter volurnes have fallen on
average by around five per cent per annum

m the last four years Alongside these declines,
there 1s not a level playing field for competition
m the UK postal market The UK postal
market 15 fully-liberalised No other EU
country has experienced the same degree

of mandated® and price controlled access

as the UK

We continue to believe that Ofcom should set
out a comprehensive regulatory framework
that safeguards the future financial
sustainability of the Universal Service

with clear guidelines around the commercial
freedoms afforded to Royal Mail which are
necessary to respond to market conditions

We are the UK's leading parcels delivery
company Growth in UK parcel volumes
continues tc be driven by e-retailing But
overcapacity has combined wath the reduced
rate of growth in the addressable market’
to create pricng pressure

In the mediuern term the fastest areas of
growth In the parcels market are expected to
be clothing and footwear and toys and sports
equpment We are transforming our core UK
network so we can handle a greater nurnber
of these larger parcels We are bemg more
flexible to accommodate the increasing
demands of e-retailers and online shoppers

Combmed with the disciplimes of beng a public
company, these competitive dynamics mean
that we face strong efficiency incentives We
are seeking to mtroduce sustanable change

m partnership with our unions We are

driving a cost-conscious culture through a
combimation of cost actrons, optimising our
network and standardising our processes

See paga 12 for more imformation
about the changes in our
marketplace

Revenue by business and market (Em)
(adjusted 52 weeks 2015)®

Letters
&
Business/ other Marketing
market Parcels mail maill  Total
UKPIL 3,190 3,400 1,167 7,757
GLS 1,653 1,653
Other 14 14
Group 4,843 3,414 1,167 9424

Percentage of Group revenue by
market {adjusted 52 weeks 2015)?

Parcels ~ 51
Letters and other mail 36
Marketing mail 13
Group 100

Under the Postal Services Act 2011 {the Act) Ofcom is the regulator for postal services m the UK Ofcom's primary regulatory duty for pastal services 1s to secure the provision of

the Universal Postal Service Qfcom has designated Royal Majl as the Universal Pastal Service Prowider Subject to the special admimistration regime and as set out in the Act this

designation 1s not time-limited

The least time-sensitive type of delvery
Cebr research conducted for Royal Mad m May 2015
Includes discontinued aperations

oo e W

and hand it to Royal Mai far final mile delivery

~

Comprising direct and indirect contributions Cebr research conducted for Royal Mail in May 2015

Management Services/RMG Fulfilment Market Measure Excludmg International

Rayal Mail s obligated to provide access to its inward mad centres by our Regulator Ofcom This means that competitors ta Royat Mail can collect and sort matl posted by business
Defined as indmvidually addressed parcels and packets weighing up to 30kg that do not require special handling and camprise goods that have been ordered based on Triangle

Adjusted results exclude specific tems including the difference between the income statement penston charge and tha total cost of pensions mcluding deficit payments The figures

meclude the results of DPD Systernlogisttk (DPD SL) a subsidiary of GLS Germany which was owned by the Group for the full reporting period and was sald following the year end

and 15 identified as discontinued gperations
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H UKPIL
OI.IT' operatlons and networks UKPIL comprises Royal Mail s core UK and
The Group operates through UK Parcels, nternational parcels and letter delivery
International & Letters and General businesses under the Royal Mal and
Parcelforce Worldwide' brands Rayal Mails
Logistics Systems netwark 15 unparalleled in the UK m its scale

and scope It supparts the provision of services
for the collection sorting and delivery of
UKPIL GLS parcels and letters by Royal Mail This includes
those services Royal Mail provides as the UK s
destgnated Universal Postal Service Provider
C.143,000 C.14,000 Parcelforce Waorldwide 1s a leading provider

of express parcel services

Employees Employees
- - See page 21 for further details of

6 l.o UKPILs performance.
Regional Distribution Centres European hubs GLS

GLS 1s the Group’s European parcels business
39 C.700 IJ c;perates one of the largest ground‘—zbased.

eferred parcel delivery networks in Eurape

Mail Centres Depots Across Europe the GLS network covers

37 countries and nation states through a
C.1,4009 C.14,000 combmation of wholly-owned and partner
Delivery Offices Parcel shops companies As our gateway to Europe, GLS

15 a strategically important part of Royal

c.49,000 c.19,000 Mail Group

S 23 for further details of
Vehicles Sub-contractor vehicles GEEP:greform:nce. s o

Parcelforce Worldwide
depots

* Including satellite Delivery Offices
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Financial and operating

performance hi

Group finanaial highlights

ghlights

52 weeks 52weeks  Underlying
2015 2014 change?!
Adjusted results (including discontinued operations)?
Revenue (£m) 9,424 9456 1%
Operating profit before transformation costs (£m) 740 729 6%
Operating profit margm before transformation costs (%) 79 77 40 bps
Operating profit after transformation costs (Em) 595 488 5%
Operating profit margin after transformation costs (%) 63 52 20 bps
Profit before taxation (£m} 569 421
Earnings per share (pence) 428 308
Reported results (continuing operations) Change
Revenue [Em) 9,328 9357
Operating profit before transfarmation costs {(£m) 611 669
Operating profit after transformation costs (£m) 466 428
Profit. before taxation (Em) 400 1664
Earnings per share (pence} 325 1275
Free cash flow (Em)? 453 398
Net debt (Em} (275) (555)
Full year proposed dividend per share {pence) 210 2004 5%
Business units
Adjusted results QOperating profit before
(including discontimued operations)? Revenue transformatwon costs
52 weeks 52 weeks Underlying 52 weeks 52 weeks
{Em) 2015 2014 change? 2015 2014
UKPIL 71,157 7787 Flat 615 608
GLS 1,653 1,651 7% 115 108
Other businesses 14 18 n/m 10 13
Group 9424 9,456 1% 740 729
Group financal perfarmance = Asexpected, cumulative net investment for

* Revenue increased by one per cent
This was due to parcel revenue growth
in UKPIL and revenue growth in GLS
which was ahead of our expectations

* |n UKPIL, operating costs before
transformation costs were down one per
cent better than expected People costs
increased by ane per cent and non-people
costs reduced by four per ¢ent

+ Tight cost control drove operating profit
margin before transformation costs
improvement of 40 basis ponts

» Free cash mflow mcreased to £453 million,
benefiting from £100 mullion of net cash
flows from the London property portfolio

2013-14 and 2014-15 was £1 2 billion
Total investment increased from
£617 million to £658 million

Net debt reduced from £555 mitlion to
£275 million mamly due to cash flow
generated offset by dividend payments
of £200 million

Adjusted earnmgs per share was
42 8 pence

The Board 1s recommending a final
dividend of 14 3 pence per ordmary
share Including the mterm dividend

of &7 pence per ordimary share, this
represents a total dividend of 21 0 pence
per share for 2014-15 up five per cent
over the notional 2013-14 full year
dividend of 200 pence

Operating performance

* UKPIL revenue was flat at £7,757 milion
A ane per cent decline m total letter
revenue was offset by parcel revenue
growth of one per cent, reflecting the
competitive market

» UKPIL parcel volumes ncreased by three
per cent, with a better performance m the
second half Addressed [etter volumes
declined by four per cent, at the better
end of our forecast range

* GLSrevenue grew to £1 653 million up
seven per cent, with revenue growth m
all its markets Volumes were up
eight per cent

¢ Collections, processing and delivery
productiity in UKPIL improved by
2 5 per cent, within our target range of
a 2-3 per cent Improvement per annum

* We have seen a net reduction m the
number of employees of over 5,500
this year m UKPIL

« The management reorganisation
programme delivered cost benefits of
£42 milhon [t 1s now expected to delver
cost savings of around £80 million per
annum from 2015-16

+ We have introduced around 30 new
projects, ncludmg new services,
products and promotions to improve
our customer offering

* We exceeded our regulatory Quality of
Service target for Second Class mail, with
a perfarmance of 98 9 per cent against
atarget of 98 5 per cent We met our
regulatory target for the delivery of
First Class mail with a performance of
93 O per cent

Outlook
& The parcels and letters markets in the
UK remain highly competitive

* Trading is in tine with our expectatians at
this early stage of the financal year

¢ Qur performance will be weighted to the
second half and will be dependent on our
important Christrmas period

» We continue to target flat or better
UKPIL underlymg costs for 2015-16

* The combined impact of German mmimum
wage legislation and the disposal of
DPD 5L could reduce GLS margins by
around 50-100 basis points m 2015-16

* \We remain commutted to growmng dwvidends

1 Ail mavements are on an underlying basis unless otherwise stated Undertying change is calculated after adjusting for movements i foreign exchange m GLS working days in UKPIL and
other one-off items that distort the Groups underlying performance Far volumes underlying movements are adjusted far working days in UKPIL and exclude electians in letter volumes

2 Adjusted results exclude specific items including the difference between the income statement pension charge and the total cash cost of pensions including deficit payments The
figures include the results of DPD Systemlogistik (DPD SL) a subsidiary of GLS Germany which was owned by the Group for the full reporting period and sold following the

year end and has been reclassified as discantinued operations

3 For more information on free cash floaw please see note 7 on page 92

* Notional 2013-14 full year dwidend
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Chairman’s statement

Donald Brydon, CBE
Charrman

¢¢Royal Mall is responding
quickly to changes in our
core markets *?

1 Cebrresearch conducted for Rayal Mail in May 2015
2 To be published in June 2015

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

Fimancial statements

With intense focus on our efficiency, we have
continued to improve our customer offering in a
challenging operating environment. We are investing
in improving our efficiency, growth and innovation to
deliver a high-quality service for our customers and
sustainable returns for our shareholders.

A landmark year

After almost 500 years m public ownership
2014-15 was Royal Maiis first full financial
year as a sted Company

Reflecting the improved operating profits and
increased margins, and our commitment to
growing the dividend the Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of 14 3 pence
per ordinary share on 31 July 2015 subject
to approval by our shareholders at our

2015 Annual General Meeting (AGM) The
proposed total dividend of 21 O pence per
ordmary share 1s a five per cent increase on
the notional dwidend of 20 0 pence per
ordmary share for 2013-14

Since our flotation on the London Stock
Exchange in October 2013, and including our
proposed final dvidend full-time employees
who received an allocation of 729 Free Shares
will have received around £250 m dwidend
payments This helps to create alignment
between the interests of our hard-working
employees and our broad shareholder base

Changmg at pace

Royal Mail 1s responding quickly to changes
in our core markets We are seeking new
ways to extend the reach of our core offering
We are puttmg the customer and our
effictency at the heart of everything we do

| am grateful for the co-operation of both

our people and our trade unions as we seek to
delver essential mprovements i the way we
work In this Report, you will read about the
many different programmes, innovations and
practices - both established and n tram - that
will change the shape of this business for the
better for years to come

A responsible employer

We are proud to deliver the Universal Service
to over 29 million addresses across the UK,
six-days-a-week Qur contribution to the UK,
as an employer and a delvery company
continues to be significant In 2014-15 we
made the 6th largest contribution to the wider
UK economy of all UK corporations® We will
continue to take action to secure the financial
future of the Universal Service and protect as

many good quality jobs as possible for
our people

The safety of our employees I1s paramount
We want to be recognised as an industry
leader in this important area Once agan
we have delivered a reduction in lost time
accidents - ane of our 12 Key Performance
Indicators (see pages 18 - 19 for more
information on KPIs) In addition to
supporting a safer and mare engaged
workforce, the reduction m working days
lost 1s estimated to have saved the business
£431 000 2014-15

While we have also seen a reduction in the
number of serious accidents there 1s more to
do In our Corporate Responsibility Report
2014-157 you will be able to read about
new mtiatives — particularly across our
vehicle fleet - which we hope will continue

to deliver reductions in serious accidents
across our workforce

We recognise the need to drive efficiency
within our organisation Yet | believe the
publics trust in the Universal Service can
only be maintaimed if we offer our people
the quality of employment that reflects thewr
significant contnbution to UK communities

A responsible company

2013-14 saw the completion of our successful
partnership with Prostate Cancer UK for
whom we raised £2 34 millon This money
will be used to fund 36 specialist prostate
cancer nurses

In September 2014, almast 40 000
employees voted for the Stroke Association to
become our new charity partner for the next
two years During this time, we hope to raise
£2 million to help the chanty provide Life After
Stroke grants of up to £300 to help 10000
stroke survivors Qur employees always go the
extra mile to help our charity partners Every
penny they earn 1s matched by our Company

We continue to support the wiability and
long-term sustamnability of the British Postal
Museum and Archive (BPMA) In June 2014
the BPMA-held Royal Mail Archive was added

0s
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Chairman’s statement {continued)

to the list of iInscriptions on the UNESCO
Memories af the World register Together

with the BPMA we are marking two major
anniversaries this year the 200th birthday of
Anthony Trollope the father of the pillar box
and the 175th anniversary of the one-price-
goes-anywhere service and the icanic Penny
Black, the world s first adheswe postage stamp

In last year s Report, | mentioned the BPMA's
funding campaign for a new Postal Museum
and Mait Ral project Demolitions at the site
of The Paostal Museumn are scheduled to
begin n second quarter 2015 - the first
phase m bulding the new museum and
attraction Later m the year, construction at
bath The Postal Museurn and Mail Rait will
begm i earnest as the experience starts to
take shape

Our Board

In March 2015 we confirmed that John Allan
would be stepping down from the Board on
30 Apnil 2015 following his appomntment as
Chairman of Tesco PLC John has been a
valued member of the Board On behalf of
all members | wish to thank him for his
dedication during one of the most critical
periods in Royal Mail's history

As | mentianed in last year's Report, we
undertook a more detalled Board evaluation
in 2014, mvolving an independent external
consultancy As a result of the evaluation

a comprehensive actton plan has been set n
place The plan focuses on three key areas
culture and dynamics, strategy and
operations composition and tenure

We have developed a number of specific
measureable action ponts both short and
longer term which have been drawn from
the findings of the evaluation More details
can be found in the Governance section
on page 49

Thank you

In January 2015 | announced my mtention
to step down from the Board | am pleased to
say that the succession pracess 1s well under
way, led by our Senior Independent Director
Orna Ni-Chionina With the Board's
agreement | wilt continue to chair the Board
until at least the 2015 AGM

In my six years as Chairman of Royal Matl,

I have been fortunate to enjoy the support of
a highly-accomplished Board 1 would Uke ta
extend my heartfelt thanks to Board members
- past and present - for their direction and
guidance during this time of unprecedented
change for our Company | am sure that Royal
Mall's new Chairman will benefit as | have
done from such sound counsel

In particutar | would like to thank Royal Mails
Chief Executive Officer, Moya Greene During
aur frve year partnership Moya has provided

11

unstinting dedication sage advice and the
energy and force of will that has driven our
Company forward in the most testing of
¢ircumstances She has built an excellent team
and without their contribution, Royal Mail
would not be so well positioned to weather the
challenges to come

Looking back there has been an extraordinary
transformation at Royal Mail with
unprecedented shifts in the mix of the items
we deliver Royal Mail behaves increasingly as
a customer-centric busmess It 1s mnovating
and driving for increased efficiency Its
ftnances have been transformed and it is free
to raise capital where it chooses ft s
particularly pleasing that relations with our
unions are today on a different level to that
of the first part of the century Very many
challenges remain, but my successor’s
inheritance will be very different to my

nitial experience

Finally | offer my thanks to our people | am
humbled by therr unwavering commitment to
Royal Mail and the communities we serve

I wish my successor and all our employees
great success

Donald Brydon, CBE
Chairman
20 May 2015

Case study
SAYE case study

In September 2014 we launched our maugural Save

As You Earn (SAYE) scheme

The tax-efficient cash savings scheme enables those
who take part to save a fixed amount from therr salary
every time they are pard for three years After this
time they can either opt to buy Royal Mail shares at a
discounted price set at the begining of the scheme or

have their savings repaid n full

More than 36 000 employees decided to take part

Thus was significantly more than expected

Employees whao are taking part in SAYE will continue to
save until December 2017 when they will be able to
use ther SAYE savings to buy Royal Mail shares at the

option price if they want to

Royal Mail pie
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

Moya Greene
Chief Executive Officer

¢¢\We have introduced around
30 new projects, including
new services, products and
promotions to Improve our
‘ customer offering*?

This has been a challenging year. Through a continued
focus on efficiency and tight cost control, we have offset
the impact of lower than anticipated UK parcel revenue
this year, so that operating profit before transformation
costs is in line with our expectations. It has also been

a year of innovation, with a range of new initiatives
delivered at pace. We have introduced around 30 new
projects, including services, products and promotions,
to improve our customer offering.

Group revenue increased hy one per cent
UKPIL revenue of £7,757 millon was flat

as a one per cent decline n letter revenue
was offset by a one per cent mcrease n parcel
revenue GLS delivered good revenue growth
of seven per cent, with revenue increases m
alt of its markets

Adjusted Group operating profit before
transformation costs increased to

€740 million a 40 basis pont expansion

in the margm on an underlying basis
Short-term cost actions have delivered a
hetter than expected UK cost performance
Adjusted UKPIL costs were down one per
cent on an underlying basis

Net cumutative mvestment for 2013-14 and
2014-15 was £1 2 billion, as we expected
This year, we saw a net reduction in the
number of our UKPIL employees of aver
5500 | am grateful to them for ther
contribution We have worked very closely
with our unions to make these very

difficult changes

Outlook

The parcels and letters markets mn the UK
remam highly competitive We continue to
estimate that volume growth in the
addressable parcels market will be reduced

to around 1-2 per cent per annum in the short
term? However this will be dependent on the
speed and extent of rollout of Amazon's own
delivery network We continue to expect that
UK addressed letter market volumes,
excludmg elections will declime by 4-6 per
cent per annum m the medium term We note
the recent statement by PostNL about its UK
end-to-end delivery actmities and await the
outcome of its review

GLS has performed well n 2014-15 but the
combined impact of German minimum wage
legistation and the disposal of its subsidiary
DPD Systemlogistik could reduce GLS
margins by around 50-100 basis points in
2015-16 However we are at the early stages
of implementing mitigation strategies and
need to see how the market reacts

The mvestments made over the past three
years m our technology our network and

our people position us well to address the
challenges we see We are now paised to step
up the pace of change to drive efficiency
growth and mnovation We are mamtammng a
tight focus on costs and contmue to target flat
or better UKPIL underlyng costs for 2015-16
We continue to expect ongong transformation
costs of around £120-140 milion per annum
dependmng an the level of valuntary
redundancies announced m-year

Reported profit numbers will be mpacted

by the difference between the income
statement pension charge and the cash cost
of pensions which is expected to increase

to around £255 million in 2015-16

Total cash investment net of operating

asset disposals, Is expected to be in the range
£550-600 million going forward We caontinue
to evaluate our options m relation to our larger
London properties These larger sites will
require further mvestment in order to optimise
value which will be mamly met by the disposal
proceeds from the Paddington site

At this early stage of the financial year
trading 15 m lime with our expectations but

as In previous years, our performance will

be weighted to the second half and will be
dependent on our mportant Christmas period

1 nternal estimate based on historic growth trends [Triangle Management Services/RMG Fulfilment market measure December 2014) and forecast data

{Verdict UK E-retail Survey 2015)

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15
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Chief Executive Officer’s review {continued)

We remain committed to growing our
dwidend The Board 1s recommending a final
dividend of 14 3 pence per ordinary share
giving a total dwvidend for the full year of

21 0 pence per share up five per cent over
the notional 2013-14 full year dividend of
200 pence per share

Qur strategy
Qur strategic priarities are

) Being a successful parcels busmess,
i} Managing the decline in letters and
i} Being customer focused

These priorities are underpmned by a range
of people customer and financial measures
to ensure we are managing our business
successfully.

See pages 16 - 17 for more information

We are the pre-emunent delivery company m
the UK Through GLS we operate one of the
largest, ground-based deferred delivery
networks in Europe We are mvesting in change
to drive further efficency improvements,
generate growth in new areas and extend
the reach of aur core offering

Parcels

We continue to estimate that the total volume
of parcel deliveries in the UK - across business-
to-consumer (B2C}, consumer-to-any-recipient
{C2X) and business-to-busmess (B28) - will
grow at approxmately four per cent per annum
in the mediurm term? However, we estimate
that the impact of Amazon delivering an
mereasing number of parcels using its own
delivery network will reduce the annual rate of
growth in our addressable market to around
1-2 per cent in the short term Overcapacity
has combined with the reduced rate of growth
in the addressable market to create pricing
pressure m all segments

More than 90 per cent of the parcels we
handle in the UK pass through the Royal Matl
core network, which delivers the Universal
Service Heavier, bulkier items tend to be
carried by Parcelforce Worldwide Primarily
through these two nationwide networks we
offer a range of services mcluding Universal
Service Obligation {(USO) letter and parcel
delivery express and courier services

We benefit from a broad customer base
Nearly three quarters of our domestic parcel
revenue Is generated by consumers micro-
SMEs and SMEs This reduces our exposure
to the actions of larger customers

S P L 400000000800 NINNRRIERREIIEREERES -

Our parcels strategy key points

* Mamntaining our pre-emment position
while seeking new areas of growth
Pursuing faster growing parts of the UK
market and growing mternational markets

* Adding value by continually improving our
products and services Ensuring
customers of all sizes can connect
with our systems quickly and easily
significantly increasing the number of
parcels we barcode and scan launching
Parcelforce Select

» Expanding and automating our networks
We will begin rolling out automated parcel
sorting to around 20 of our busiest Mail
Centres, continwng to expand our
European network through organic growth
and selective strategic acquisitions

Maintaining our pre-eminent position

In the medium term, we expect the fastest
areas of growth in UK parcels will be clothing
and footwear and toys and sports equipment
We are building our presence from a modest
base We have won new contracts with a
number of high street and e-retailers

We will seek to secure further volumes

by being more flexible about the size and
shape of parcels we will deliver

We naw offer large busimess customers later
weekday, and extended weekend, access to

the Royal Mail core network Twelve months
ago 1t was apen to these customers five and

Innovation

Over the past year we have launched or
piloted a large range of new services
designed to provide a greater chaice of
parcel delivery aptions Lacal Collect - the
largest single click-and-collect network,
available through Post Office - and Sunday
openmg at our busiest Delivery Offices are
two such services to help online shoppers
not at home during the day to recewve their
parcels

Investments i new technologies are an
important part of our strategy to offer an
ever-improving guabty of service We
aim to transform our parcels offering by
providing tracking as standard for as
many parcels as we can

2 Internal estimate based on historic growth trends and market insight

o8

a half days a week Today we are open seven
days a week and later mto the evening As a
result we have attracted more traffic

Qur performance at Christmas is key to our
service proposition In December 2014, we

delivered gne of our highest ever quality of

service performances for parcel delivery By
Christmas 2015 we are aiming to barcode

significantly more parcels and scan them n
the Mail Centre and on the doorstep

In March 2015 we taunched a shap front

on Alibabas Tmall Global e-marketplace This
platform will offer over 300 milion Chinese
consumers the opporturuty to buy distinctive
British praducts usmg Parcelforce Worldwide
to ship the products to China

Adding value by continually improving
our products and services

n November 2014, we announced that
Amazon would offer its ontme customers
access to our Local Collect click-and-collect
netwark Amazon customers can choose the
maost convenient of around 10 500 Post
Offices for then parcel delivery This is
supported by the extension of opening hours
across 3 000 branches - an additional 85.000
hours per week - and the opening of around
2 000 branches on Sundays Local Collect
traffic with Amazon 15 growing

In January 2015, Parcelforce Worldwide
launched a new interactive service,
Parcelforce Select to improve the end-
customer s control of their parcel delivery
Unlike other carriers, the pre-delivery

New or emerging technologies offer the
potential to transform the way we will
work in the future We continue to monitor
and, where appropriate test and pilot how
these can improve our business and
benefit customers For example, thraugh
Parcelforce Select we are improving the
control our customers have over ther
parcel delivery We also engage with
partners to explore how emerging areas,
such as wearable technologies may be
deployed m the future

Royal Mail plc




notification 1s triggered by the delivery driver
This ensures that the actual delivery is based
on local driver experience, rather than a
centrally-generated time window We have
won new business as a result of this initiative
Customer feedback has been very positive

We are extending the support we offer to

key customers We offer eBay buyers the
oppartunity to track returned tems back to
the seller Our new Click & Drop tool enables
eBay sellers to integrate thewr accounts and
buy and print postage labels without manually
mputting the address of each mdmidual buyer
providing a simple three-step Journey from
purchase to prmt In February 2015, we
announced the acqusiion of StoreFeeder

an [T software company We plan to use its
expertise to develop more tools to enable
customers of all sizes to cormect and ship
parcels easily

In March 2015 we launched a new portal to
help online retailers better manage returns
72 per cent of anline shoppers said they would
be unlikely to shop with a retailer If they had
a difficult returns experience® The returns
portal gives retailers full visibility of returned
items - exactly which items are bemg
returned, from which customer and for

what reason, improving stock management
A number of our retailer customers are
already using the service

Our core proposition Is to provide high quality,
value-for-money products for our core
customer base and to win new business

in the process When we announced our
consumer tariffs for 2015-16 the average
price rise acrass domestic parcels USQ letters
and mternational letters and parcels was

the lowest for at least five years We have
simplfied our parcel specifications and cut
the price of our medium-sized Second Class
parcels We have embedded our price
promotion for small parcels nto our

2014-15 price changes

To enable us to track significantly more
parcels, we are working with our customers
to put information-rich 20 barcodes on as
many of our parcels as possible Our largest
customers are already beginning to make the
switch From summer 2015 we will begin a
process to deliver the technalogy we need to
scan significantly more parcels at the Mail
Centre and on the doorstep Over time this
will give us greater wisibility of traffic i our
network, which will allow us to tackle any
quality of service 1ssues in real time Tracking
will drive the uptake of higher value services

3 Hall and Partners Delvery Matters 2014
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Expanding and automating our networks
We will begin rolling out automated parcel
sortation at around 20 of our busiest Mail
Centres across the UK Parcels sortation

will help us to improve our efficiency

Qur European parcels carrier, GLS,

delivered revenue growth in all of its markets
It continues to perform well despite a weak
economic backdrop m the Eurozone We have
delivered growth in international and
domestic parcels

We have already seen some impact m
Germany, GLS biggest market by revenue,
from mimimum wage legislation introduced
an 1 January 2015 We are introducing
operational and commercial respanses to
help mitigate the impact of this change

In France our recovery plan is ahead of
schedule far the year We are growing

our business with existing customers and
continue to target new customers GLS ltaly
continues to deliver strong revenue growth

Consumers in Luxembourg became the latest
to benefit from GLS FlexDelveryService,
which launched m the country in April 2015
Already available in 12 other European
countries FlexDeliveryService notifies parcel
recipients via email or text when a package
is on the way to them, and enables them

to change the delivery time to suit them
Saturday and evening delivery options are
now available in eight cities in Germany,
meaning consumers can choose to receve
parcels between 5pm and 8pm on weekdays
or 8am and 1pm on Saturdays

Letters

-------------------------- *esvrsscavannna e

Our letters strategy. key pomts

* Managing the structural declne in
addressed letter volumes by promoting
the value of mail

* Securing the promise of commercial
freedom in a regulatory model that
effectively supports the future
sustainability of the Universal Service
in the UK

* Optimising mail handling to accommodate
a changing letters mix and increase
efficiency

Addressed letter volumes decreased by four
per cent - at the better end of our forecast
range Marketing mail revenue increased by
five per cent to £1 167 million In January
2015, MarketReach launched a campaign
demanstrating the value of marketing mail
as part of an integrated advertismg campaign
Usmg five of the UK s top advertising

Fimanoial statements Other snformation
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executives and research conducted over an
18 month perod the Mailmen campaign looks
at the true value of mail It found that people
value something they can see and touch

24 per cent more than things they can only
see More than half (57 per cent) say that
recewing a commurication by mad makes
them feel more valued

The rollout of Mailmark® which provides
barcode technology and online-reporting for
machine-readable busmess, advertising and
publishing mail 1s progressmg Over 17 per
cent of machine-readable mail currently
carries the Mailmark® barcode Existing
customers mcluding home-shopping energy
providers and high street retallers benefit
from price mcentives and more accurate
mailing data

In August 2014 we started the process of
moving low-volume postboxes to collection
on delivery Declining letter volumes have
been reflected 1n a fall in the number of
items posted In posthoxes Rather than
decommission uneconomic postboxes,
postmen or women will empty the box on
their round instead of providing a dedicated
collection by van Once aur new collection on
delivery approach is fully rolled out we expect
it to reduce our mileage by 14 2 million miles
per annum, with an assactated saving of over
2 1 million litres of diesel As part of this
programme we have sought to improve the
level of public access to postboxes in areas of
under-provision with the addrtion of areund
2,000 new postboxes by March 2016

in February 2015 we announced price
mcreases of one penny for First Class and
Second Class consumer stamps We thought
very carefully about the impact of these price
INCTeases on our customers A one penny
increase 18 the smallest possible price rise
that we could implement Across all letter
products average price mcreases were
broadly in ine with RPI

Regulation

We welcome the competition that 15 an mntegral
part of operating in a fully-liberalised postal
market The ongoing declne in letter volumes
means that the mcentives on Royal Mal to
reduce costs are already strong The intensely
competitive parcels market adds to these
efficiency drivers The sustamnability of the
Universal Service depends on Royal Mail bemng
able to use revenue from easy-to-serve urban
areas to cover the cost of a nationwide network
capable of serving all addresses at a uniform
price In June 2014 Royal Mall made a detailed
regulatory submission to Ofcom highlighting
the risk that direct delivery poses to the
financial sustanability of the USO
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Chief Executive Officer’s review (continued)

Customers
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Our custamer strategy: key points

« Providing a consistently tugh quality
service through the consistent execution
of standards such as Oelivery to
Neighbour

» Bemg as flexible as we can ta provide
the services our customers want

* Driving down customer complamts
through the rollout of best practice such
as Nominate a Neighbour which aims to
improve rates of first time delivery

essesEsETIIINIIIESSISIINISIARIIEYIYFSERRTIES EERT R

Our brand 15 a key element of our customer
proposition In February 2015 Royal Mail
was ranked as one of the top 15 Business
Superbrands in the UK* Qur own research
ndicates that our mean busness customer
satisfaction score - across large and medum
sized businesses, SMEs and miucro-SMEs - is
76 Thisis an increase on 75 last year 74 in
2012-13 and 70 2011-12

See KPIs pages 18 - 19

In September 2014, Royal Mail Group
achieved the top ranking n bath the Dow
Janes Sustammability World Index and Dow
Jones Sustainabdity Europe Index for the
Transportation and Transportation
Infrastructure Industry

Rayal Mail i1s the only postal operator that 1s
required to meet regulatory Quality of Service
targets far First Class and Second Class mail,
and to publish those targets These regulatory
targets are amongst the highest of any major
European country

| am delighted to report that we have agamn
exceeded our regulatory Quality of Service
targets for Second Class mail m 2014-15
989 per cent of Second Class mail {target
98 5 per cent) arrived within three days of
posting We met aur regulatory target for
First Class mail delvering 93 O per cent
of First Class mail on the following day’
This compares with First Class performance
of 93 2 per cent and a Second Class
performance of 98 9 per cent in 2013-14

See KPIs pages 18 - 19.

¢ Business Superbrands 2015
* We achieved 93 2 per cent against our First Class
regulatory target when adjusted for force majeure
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Becoming more efficient

This table 15 a snapshot of our transformation prograrnme

which began in 2007-08 It sets out some of the key metrics

through which we measure our progress

2007-08 2014-15
Mail Centres 69 39
Delvery Offices that have undergone modernisation - 1333
Letters sequenced to delwery point 1% 82%
Headcount in Operations 158900 130100

2008-09 2014-15
Caliections, processing and delivery productvity improvement
{year-on-year) (%) f11) 25

2009-10 2014-15
Lost Time Acadents per 100 G00 hours in Operations 236 067

Delvery to Neighbour is a Royal Mall standard
From March 2015, custamers visiting an
Enquiry Office to pick up a parcel have been
able to 'Nominate a Neighbour as therr first
delivery choice If they are not at heme

We have mamtamed our internal performance
against our composite parcels measure, an
mternal measure for all retad parcel products
in the Royal Mail core network This year we
delvered a performance of 95 0 per cent
compared with 95 1 per cent in 2013-14
{target 95 3 per cent)

Transformation and cost control
Combined with the disciplines of beng a public
company, the competitive nature of our core
markets means that we face strong efficiency
incentives We are driving a cost-conscious
culture through a combination of cost actions,
optimising our networks and standardising
our processes

We have continued to delver productivity
improvements across collections, processing
and delivery Productwity improved by

2 5 per cent in 2014-15 within our target

of a 2-3 per cent improvement per annum

See KPls pages 18 - 19.

Case study
Tonbridge delivery office

A new Initiative to iImprove the customer experience
was developed at Tonbridge delivery office in Kent
Origmally called the booking i tool now known as
the Service Paint System {SPS) the mitiative helps
identify walks that brimg back the most items [t allows
managers to work with duty holders to find ways of
delivering more items first time It also helps to
improve the customer experience at Engquiry Offices

Colleagues in Tonbridge warked closely with iT and
those who created the concept and software for the
tool to develop it further making more than 100
small alterations throughout the process It was
their feedback that helped shape the end praduct

One of the first units to properly use the togl the team
mn Tonbridge quickly saw fantastic results including a
reduction in related customer complamnts

The SPS is currently in more than 200 offices and
there are plans to implement it in up to a further
160 units by this summer

Royal Mail ptc



Thus compares with an improvement of
17 percent n 2013-14 and 2012-13

See KPIs pages 18 - 19.

The management reorganisation pragramme
announced n March 2014, 15 now expected
to deliver cost savings of around £80 million
per annum from 2015-16 - more than the
£50 million annual savings we orignally
anticipated

We have agreed a streamlined revisions
process across some of our Delivery Offices
that have been impacted by direct delivery
and overcapacity in UK parcels As part of

a jomt agreement with the Communication
Workers” Union (CWU), Delivery Offices
that have seen a significant change in their
workload are also taking steps to structure
their units to manage this volatiity

There are significant non-people cost
opportunities m our Logistics division
Improved fleet management mcluding fuel
efficiency and reducing wear and tear,
represents a cost-saving opportunity

We have already rolled out our fleet
management programme for our large
heavy goods vehicles From May 2015, we
will be mtroducing telemetry and advanced
driver traming to our 75 tonne fleet

Cur people

Eligible full-time employees who recewved an
allocation of 729 Free Shares will subject to
shareholder approval at our 2015 AGM have
receved around £250 in dividend payments
by 31 July 2015 In September 2014 we
launched our first Save As You Earn schermne
More than 36 D00 employees - approximately
one quarter of those who were eligible to
apply -~ applied to jon

Our Agenda for Growth agreement with the
CWU includes terms covering employee pay,
legally-binding terms covering protections and
industrial stability as well as a programme of
work to delver change at pace n operations
In the short time since the existence of this
agreement we have seen a meanmgful
change in the way in which differences and
disputes are resolved Qur unions are more
committed than ever to mechanisms like
mediation to resolve disputes in ways that
guarantee our contmued operations and
uninterrupted customer services

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15
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In March 2015, we confirmed a 2 8 per cent
pay ncrease for our frontline employees The
2015-16 award represents the fmal year of
the three year pay deal agreed through the
Agenda for Growth During the year we

have launched 60 joint projects with the CWU
Our Together for Growth programme which
will tram approximately 6 500 managers

and urwon representatives by October 2015,
represents the UK s largest ever investment
n this form of jont traning

Thank you

Following our first AGM in July 2014 Mark
Higson Managing Director, Operations
stepped down from the Board During the
year, we have atso announced the departure
of John Allan and our Chairman, Donald
Brydon While John stepped down at the end
of April 2015, Donald will remain with us until
at least our 2015 AGM | have experienced
first-hand the many ways in which our
Company has benefited from the counsel
and dedication of these colleagues | wish
them all the best m their future endeavours

} would also like to extend special thanks

to Donald Brydon, for sharmag his wisdom
and experience as we have sought to
transform our Company

| remam ncredibly proud of the good work

we do Royal Mall 1s nothing without its people
We must continue to deliver difficult change
But warking together with our people and our
untons | am confident that we can continue to
deliver the services our customers want and
sustamnahle value for our sharehaolders

Moya Greene
Chief Executive Officer
20 May 2015

Financial statements Other information
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Market overview

This section sets out some of the relevant market
dynamics for the UK parcels and letters markets.

We know parcel customers want convenience
and flexibility This is driving mnovations in the
market At the same time, alternative delivery
points are increasmg m popularity In letters,
the combination of structurat declines m
addressed letter volumes mandated access
and direct delivery continues to be a threat

to the fundamental econormics of the
Universal Service

UK parcels market

E-retail continues to drive growth m UK parcels
The UK s gne of the most developed e-retail
markets in the world with appraximately 13 per
cent of all retail sates conducted online

The market 1s expected to continue growing

to an estimated 16 per cent hy 20191

B2C {husiness-to-consumer) and C2X
{consumer-to-all parties) deliveries currently
account for nearly two-thirds of UK parcel
volume? We expect aggregated parcel
volumes within these two segments to

grow at approximately 4 5 to 5 5 per cent

w the medium term?

Parcels sent from busmess-to-business
(B2B) represent around a thurd of overall
UK parcel valurne* We expect volume
growth n this segment of the UK market
to track or be slightly abave GDP growth
i the medium term®

We estimate that the total number of parcel
deliveries in the UK - across B2C, C2X and
B2B - will grow at approximately four per cent
per annum n the medium term?®

Within the B2C segment there are three key
categories of parcels clothmg and footwear,
media and toys and sports In the medium
term we expect clothing and footwear and
toys and sports categories to continue to
grow strongly driven by online retailing’

Woe expect the rate of growth to slow in
media due to continued digitisation and
streaming of music and fitms

1 Verdict UK E-retal Survey 2014

2 Triangle Management Services/RMG Fulfilment Market
Measure December 2014

? Internal estimate based on histaric growth trends
(Triangle Management Services/RMG Fulfilment Mar ket
Measure December 2014) and forecast data (Verdct
UK E-retail Survey 2015)

* Trniangle Management Services/RMG Fulfilment Market
Measure December 2014
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Customers and competition

The competitive environment 1s shifting Parcel
carriers who historically focused solely on B28
parcels are mcreasmgly moving into the B2C
space Other BZ2X carriers are shifting mnto C2X
and developing internattonal export services

Competing parcel carriers are improving their
service performance, with more convensent
delivery options, increased geographic
coverage and leading edge technology
Organisations such as Amazon have entered
the market with their own delivery offering
for their customers Consumers expect a
range of convenient and reliable delivery

and easy returns options, with tracking

Home delivery remams the most attractive
fulfilment option for customers® However
collection from a pick up pomt 1s growmng m
popularity with consumers - whether directly
from a retailer s store (in store click-and-
collect) or fram a third party location such as
a parcel shop or locker bank (Pick Up/Drop Off
or PUDO points) Demand for alternate pick up
pomts Is currently small, but we expect it to
increase in the future as consumers look for
more flexibility and canvenience

In stare click-and-collect tends to impact
purchases that would otherwise have been
made n store, rather than delivery traffic
However various market research studies as
well as internal estimates suggest that both
forms of chick-and-collect are growing fast,
albeit from a low base 96 per cent of retailers
that offer m-store click-and-collect do not
charge for the service but delivery to PUDO
points often incurs an extra fee®

Mohile commerce {(m-commerce}t0 1s growing
QOverall 40 per cent of UK e-retail sales from
November 2014 to January 2015 were
completed thraugh tablets and smartphones
with the smartphone channel seemng mcreasing
growth as customers become more comfortable
with the platform and retailers mvest to
improve the smartphane shopping experience!?

* Internal estimate based on historic growth trends and
market insight

& Internal estimate based on histonic growth trends and
market insight

? Verdict UK E-retaill Survey 2015

8 IMRG UK Consumer Home Delvery Review 2014

* Micros Multi-Channel Retad Delivery Report 2014

18 5ales made from mobile devices such as smartphones
and tablets

1 MRG Capgernini e-Retail Sales Index Quarterly
Benchmarking February 2015

UK letters market

A structural shift away from paper-based
communication to electromce cormmmunication
has been under way for a number of years
Different types of letters are experiencing
different rates of decline due to this structural
shift We estimate addressed mail?2 declines
of four to six per cent per annum m the
medium term

Busmess letters are decliming as busmesses
take advantage of mature technologies to
offer services such as online banking
Businesses percewe cost savings from mail
reduction However, a significant proportion
of the population would lke a choice as to
how they receive household hills and
statements without a penalty

A major behavioural study on the value of
mall, published i early 2015 revealed that
people are able to manage and improve

therr fmances better when they recewve bank
statements through the post rather than
onlme 75 per cent of those who receved a
paper statement were able to assess correctly
the financial health of ther account compared
to 48 per cent who received an anlme
statement®?

Direct mai in the UK 1s worth £1 8 billion,
accounting for approximately 10 1 per cent
of UK advertising spend* This reflects the
value that it delivers for busimesses Seven
out of ten people say they have opened a
letter promotion or special offer Erght in
ten can remember advertising mail they
have recewved in the past four weeks?®
Advertising spend In the UK 15 expected

to grow 5 4 per cent in 2015-16

Following market liberalisation in 2004,
campetition for upstream letter collection
and processing has matured The proportion
of upstream®” letters handled by competitors
has been relatively stable since 2010-11

2 Excluding election mail

13 Keep Me Posted Campaign www keepmepasteduk com

HWARC (2015} including production costs

3The Private Life of Mal www mailmen co uk

e WARC {2015)

7 Upstream refers to the collection of letters from a
customer ar collection pont and mitial sortation After
this sorted mail is delivered to Royal Maill wnward Mail
Centres for final mile delvery
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No.l Most trusted

Number 1 ranking m both the Dow Jones Most trusted and preferred UK
Sustamability World index and Dow Jones delivery company
Sustamability Europe Index

Ipsos MORI consumer CSI tracker

Dow Jones, 2014, Transport and Infrastructure sector Measured 12 delivery companies
2 0
Most admired 75%
Included i the Most Admired Companies list Three quarters of peaple m the UK are more

likely to use a particular online retailer agan
if they deliver through Royal Mall

Fortune 2015 Hall & Partners 2014
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Our business model

Our business model leverages our key strengths to maintain our pre-eminent
position in the UK letters and parcels markets. It demonstrates how our
resources and relationships contribute to our business activities to deliver
sustainable shareholder value and support the financial sustainability of the

Universal Service.

We are transforming as we
handle fewer letters and manage
increasing parcel volumes

Combined with the disciplines of
being a public company these
dynamics mean that we face strong
efficiency mcentives We are
embedding a cost-conscious
culture through a combimnation

of cost actions optmisimg our
network and standardising

OUr processes

Updating our IT systems underpins
the development of more flexible,
customer focused services In turn
these drive a high quality of service
and underpmn pubdic trust i our
postmen and women, and the
Royal Mail brand

1 Inctuding satellite Delivery Offices

2 GLS and partners

3 |psos MORI consumer C5I tracker
Measured 12 delivery companies
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Our resources and relationships

Networks and customers

UKPIL

Royal Mail Core Network

Key products and services
USD letters and parcels
Stamped and meter mail
Arrmail
Redirections
US0 on Account

Special Delivery
Guaranteed by 1pm

Non USO letters
and parcels

Royal Mail Tracked
Royal Malil 24/48

Business and
Advertising Mail

International Business
Tracked and Signed

Network Access Mail

Special Delivery
Guaranteed by Sam

Customer points

¢.115,000

pillar hoxes

c.1,4001

Delivery Offices

¢.12,000

branches
{Partnership with Past Office)

60,000

deltvery routes

Parceltforce Worldwide

Key products and services

Oomestic and International
express parcels

54

depots

¢.12,000
branches

(Partnerstup with Post Office)

GLS

Key products and services
Deferred parcels
Express parcels

People and brand

c.700?

depats

c.14,000

Parcel shops

LR R N ]

We are the UK s mast trusted and preferred delivery company® The trust that our stakeholders place n
us and the Universal Service Is the result of the dedication and commitment of our 143 000 employees
n the UK m particular our postmen and women GLS Germany came first in an undercover survey of
nine parcel and shipping services conducted by the German Society for Consumer Studies

Continued mvestment in change, growth and mnovation

We have invested a net £1 2 billion over two years In future, mvestment is planned to fund growth
nibiatives, such as parcels automation and trackmg maintam our operations, products and services
and deliver further efficiency improvements

Royal Mail ptc
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Customer People
* Providing a high quality service, including high levels of first * Embedding a collaborative, can-do culture with our unions

time delivery everywhere in the UK and Europe

e Adapting our products and services to meet customer needs
m the e-retailing market (e openmg up our network to
retallers seven days a week}

e Expanding the rollout of successful propositions, such
as FlexDeliveryService, across our European network

* [Jemonstrating the value of letters through the delivery of
campaigns hke Mailmen, and our support for the Keep Me
Posted campaign

+ Continuing to develop IT-led services, ke Parcelforce Select,
to smprove end-customers control of parcel delivery

Revenue
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People and brand ,* .

Investment .
in change o*

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

as we seek new areas of growth

s Sypporting our managers to deliver an even better safety
and wellbeing performance mcluding m key areas like
attendance management

» Rolling out new technology and working practices at pace
to allow us to track significantly more barcoded parcels

* Jncreasing employee engagement and alignment through
a comprehensive face-to-face programme and share
schemes like Save As You Earn

Outputs

+ Generation of sustanable
shareholder value

¢ Ensuring the future,
fmancial sustamability
of the Universal Service

* Capacty for further
investment in change
growth and innovation

Financial and performance

* Driving a cost-conscious culture through a combmation
of cost control actions optomising our network and
standardising our processes

* Improving efficiency and productivity through better
alignment of resource to werkload and standardisation
of methods and processes across our UK aperation

+ Investing in our contmued IT transformation including
delivering parcels systems and automation

s Addressing industry challenges i GLS Germany caused
by the mtroduction of mimmum wage legislation through
arange of aperational and commercial Tesponses
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Our strategy

We have a clear vision to be recognised as the best delivery company in the UK and across Europe.
Qur three-part strategy aims to deliver our vision, while generating sustainabie shareholder value
and supporting the continued provision of the Universal Service.

Our three strategic priorities are underpinned by a focus on managing our business successfully, which
is assessed on a range of financial and non-financial measures. We will continue to keep a tight grip
on costs, as we drive up efficiency and improve productivity across our operation. We are investing

in training our people, through training programmes like Together for Growth and the Management
Acceleration Programme. Continued rollout of improved IT solutions will provide the service levels our
customers expect in an increasingly competitive marketplace.

Strategic priorities

Strategic priority 1 In the UK, we will seek to mamtamn our pre-eminent position by retanmg and growing existing
business relationships and increasing our presence m growth areas We are delivering significant
IT upgrades and accelerating the migration of parcel customers ta information-rich, 20 barcodes
In time, we will significantly mcrease the number of parcels we scan at the Mail Centre and on the
doorstep We will continue to flex our offering to meet the changing demands of e-retailers and
consumers In Europe, we will continue to deliver growth organtcally and through selective acquisitions
We will roll out new products such as FlexDeliveryService to other mternational markets to meet
increasing demands

Being a

successful

parcels

busmess

Strategic prionity 2 We aim to mitigate the impact of e-substitution by demonstrating the value of letters to UK
consumers and large businesses We will seek to protect and improve revenue generation through
nitiatives like Mailmark® and by rolling out revenue protection processes We will continue to make
the case to Ofcom for a level playing field for all letter delivery operators in the UK At the same time,
we will seek opportunities for further efficiencies across our pipeling, to reduce the hours required to
process and sort letters

Managing

the decline

n letters

Strategic priority 3 We will continue to be flexible to meet changing customer demands The rollout of improved IT

capability will offer business customers mproved access to products and services better visibility of
therr mailmgs and improved custommer data Consistent deployment of delivery standards across our
UK operation ams to drive up average first time delivery rates for parcels We will continue to deliver
an impraved customer experience through mvestment in our Delivery Offices

Being customer
focused
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Key initiatives

Seeking to grow our presence in faster-growing areas of
the UK parcels market, such as clothing and footwear;
Enhancing our ability to handle larger parcels by being more
flexible with e-retailers;

Rolling out handheld devices and supporting IT systems

to support the tracking of significantly more parcels,
Introducing automated parcel sorting to around 20 of our
busiest Mail Centres;

Continumg to develop IT-led services, ike Parcelforce Select,
to improve end-custorners’ control of parcel delivery,
Targeting new markets, including through selective
acquisitions in Europe; and

Rolling out FlexDeliveryService to more European markets.

Maintaming a high Quality of Service;

Promoting the value of marketing mail through targeted
new-business campaigns, like Mailmen,

Driving revenue protection through the cancellation of stamps
and other initiatives,

Providing infarmation-vich customer mailing data through
further uptake of Mailmark®; and

Continuing to make the case to our regulator, Ofcom, for
a level playing field for the delivery of letters in the UK,
including the development of a comprehensive regulatory
framewaork for the Universal Service.

Driving improvements in first-time delivery rates through
the consistent deployment of standards ke Delivery to
Neighbour and Nominate a Neighbour;

Using standardised processes, traming and employee
engagement to close the gap between our best and worst
performing units;

Investing in our Enquiry Offices to provide an improved
customer experience;

Continuing to drive down complaints, with a focus on the
four most common categortes;

Improving access to our products and services, including
Sunday cpening; and

Providing improved online platforms for sole-traders,
micro-SMEs and SMEs.

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15
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Key performance indicators

Our Key Performance Indicators (KPls) are deided into People Customer, Performance and Financial segments, as represented in our business
model and our Corporate Balanced Scorecard Further details relating to the link between our KPls and Executive Remuneration can be found
m the Directors’ remuneration report on page 70

KPI and strategic Link(s} Measured by Key activities in the year

People

Safety Last Time Accident Frequency We have delivered a further reduction in the amount of time lost to accidents
Rate the number of work-related We continue to focus on improving road safety We have deployed advanced
accidents resulting in an absence driver training to employee-drivers We ran our annuat Road Safety Week
on the next day or shift per campaign m Novernber 2014 raising safety awareness through videos
100 000 haurs worked posters our internal television programme and manager s briefings Dog

attacks have reduced in the performance perigd We ran our annual
More mformation Dangerous Dog Awareness Week in June 2014 Thanks to the independent
see Corporate Responsibility, page 38 report commussioned n 2012 legislation was changed i May 2014 to protect
our postmen and women beycnd the garden gate

Employee engagement An annual survey by Ipsos MORI In Septernber 2014 we launched a Save As You Earn share scheme for
measuring imvolvement eligible UK employees More than 36 000 eligible UK employees opted to
alignment and loyalty of take part - arcund a quarter of thase who were eligible to apply As part of
colleagues through a number our ground-breaking Agenda for Growth agreement with the CWLU we have
of questions Including what our iaunched 60 joint prajects These inciude our Together for Growth tramning
people think about Royal Mait programme for more than 6 500 managers and CWU representatives

More information ther job supparting our strategy Through our ongoing face-to-face communicatiens programme we

see Corporate Responsihility, page 37  and therr place in contributing to have held approximately 350 on-site engagement sessions
Royal Mail Group s success

Customer focus An annual survey by Ipses MORI Christmas 1s a key trading period for us Planning began early which meant
measuring how focused our that we delivered one of our hughest ever qualty of service performances for
people are on delivering parcel detiveries in December? We recruited around 19000 seasonal workers
improvements m custormer to suppert our postmen and women Ten parcel sort centres were opened to
Service manage Increasing volurmes over the period

More information
see Corporate Responstbility, page 37

Customer

First Class Quality of Service An independent audited measure Our regulatory Quality of Service targets are amongst the highest of any major
of Quality of Serwice far First European country We delivered a strong performance at both the national
Class retail products delvered by and local level This included meeting or exceeding the mmimum target of
the next working day which may 91 5 per cent far First Class delivery m 109 out of 118 postcade areas?
be adjusted for force majeure? Our programme to embed our Operations Standards will suppart continued

tugh Quality of Service delivery
More imformation

see CEQ Review, page 10

Mean busimess customer satisfaction Mean business customer We maintained very good levels of customer satisfaction amongst our
satisfaction scares include the business customers A customer satisfactian questionnaire 1s completed by
impact of a number of 1ssues a sample of business customers every month We have extended e-retailers
meluding price service quality access to our network from five and a half days a week to seven We are being

More information and customer experience more flexible about the stze and shape of parcels we can deliver

see CEQ Review, page 10

Customer complaints Number of complamts (not For the first time m four years we have delivered a reduction in customer
claims) opened by our complants across all of our major categorigs redirections redeliveries
Customer Service team misdeliveries and Sornething for You cards In March 2015 we taunched

Nominate a Neighbour as a Royal Mail standard which will support Delivery
to Neighbour to ensure as many parcels as possible reach our customers
More information on the first attempt
see Corporate Responsibility, page 37

This icon s used throughout this document to indicate reporting agamnst a XPl

Strategic links key
Being a successfui parcels busmess Managing the decline m letters Bemng customer focused

! Based on records from 2002 for stamped and meter first ctass parcels Types and sizes of parcels sampled have changed over time and reflect our lve traffic profile
2 This accounts far the impact of factors which are beyond Royal Mail s cantral such as weather
3 113 pastcode areas reached the minimum floor target when adjusted for force majeure

18 Royal Mail pic
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KPI and strategic limk(s) Measured by

Key activities in the year

Performance
Group revenue Group revenue adjusted for
foreign exchange moverments

More imformation
see Financial Review, page 24

Productivity for collections,

Percentage change year-on-year
processing and delivery

10 the number of weighted items
per gross hour paid in Delivery
Units and Mail Centre Units
{delvery and processing mcluding
More mformation regional logistics and collections)

see CED Review, pages 10-11

Composite parcels quality

A measure of the overall Qualsty
of service

of Service performance of core
network parcels delivered by their
service specfication weighted by
traffic volume

More information
see CED Review, page 10

Revenue mncludmg discentinued eperations, ncreased i the year through
parcel revenue growth m UKPIL and revenue growth tn GLS which offset
a dedine in UKPIL letter revenue

We reduced hours in the core network at a faster rate than workload which
was broadly flat

Our compasite parcels KPI looks at Parce! Quality of Serwice for regulated and
non-regulated products across gur entire portfolio We saw further progress
in gur performance this year delivering one of aur best ever parcel quality
performances m December 2014 We are driving impravements in first time
delevery rates through standardisation of best practice especially for key
initiatives like Delivery to Nmtghbour We zre closing the gap between aur
best and worst performing offices

Financial
Total UK costs Total reported costs for UK
businesses (UKPIL and Other)
before transformation costs

More information
see UKPIL, page 22

Group operating profit before

Reported Graup operating
transformation costs

profit before transformation
costs adjusted for foreign
exchange movements

More information
see Financial Review, page 25

Free cash flow

Free cash flow

More information
see Financial Review, page 26

Annual Report and Finanoial Statements 2014-15

Total reported UK costs before transformation costs were broadly flat

In UKPIL people costs increased due to the three per cent pay award and
Increase In the pension service charge This was offset by non-people
costs reducing due to cost control activities

Reparted Group operating profit before transformation costs reduced mamly
as a result of the increase in the pension service charge

Free cash flow excluding net cash flows from the London property portfolto
reduced in the year due to increased investment and one-off benefits to
working capital in the prior year
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UK parcels: adding value
and convenient services

The journey so far...

Lacal Collect

Delvery to Neighbour

Small parcel size mcreased

What’s in our plan...

Barcoding more parcels

Rollout of new handheld scanners
and finger scanners

20

Connect and ship threugh APls

Launched tracked returns

Launch of Click & Drop

More parcels scanned on the doorstep

International tracked returns

Royal Mail open seven days a week

Tnal of Sunday deliveries

Tracked returns portal

Further enhancemerits of Delivery Offices

Royal Mail ptc
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UK Parcels, International
& Letters (UKPIL)

Summary trading results

Adjusted? Adjusted
52 weeks 52 weeks  Underlying

{Em) 2015 2014 change?
Letters & other mail 3,400 3514 (3%)
Marketing mail 1,167 1111 5%
Total letters 4,567 4625 (1%}
Parcels 3,190 3162 1%

Revenue? 1,757 7787 Flat

Operating costs before transformation costs (7,142) {7179 {1%}

Operating profit before transformation costs 615 608

Operating profit margm hefore transformation costs 79% 78% 40 bps

Transformation costs (145) (241}

Dperating profit after transformation costs 470 367

Operating profit margin after transformation costs 6 1% 47% 20 bps

Volumes {m)

Letters

Addressed letters 13,009 13342 {43)

Unaddressed letters 3,157 3143 1%

Parcels

Royal Mal care network 1,015 991 3%

Parcelforce Worldwide 86 77 12%

Total 1,101 1068 3%

Trading performance

The increasing challenges in the UK parcels
market meant that cur parcel revenue for
the year was lower than we had originally
anticipated As a result UKPIL revenue was
flat at £7,757 million as the one per cent
decline in total letter revenue was offset by
a one per cent increase in parcel revenue

Parcel volumes were up three per cent with
growth in low average unit revenue {AUR)
import parcels and the impact of our mitiatives
i account parcels more than offsetting the
decline in higher AUR consurner/SME volumes
Parcel revenue grew by one per cent to

£3 190 millon reflectng thus change mn mix
and the impact of the competitive environment
on pricing Parcelforce Worldwide had strong
volume growth of 12 per cent driven by
growth in the existing customer base and new
business wins including customers from the
former City Link business Haowever it has seen
downward pressure on pricng as a result of
overcapacity in the market such thatts
revenue growth has been impacted

Addressed letter volumes declined by four per
cent (excluding the mpact of election mailings),
at the better end of our forecast range of a

4~-6 per cent decline per annum in the medium
term This was mainly due to the improvement
i UK economic conditions this year as we had
anticipated Overall letter revenue (ncluding
marketing mail) of £4,567 million decreased by
one per cent The mpact of elections more than
offset the estimated impact of direct delrvery in

the year of around £20 milhen Marketing mail
revenue of £1,167 milion, which includes
addressed and unaddressed marketing mail
as well as revenue from our data busnesses
of £82 million, was up five per cent as a result
of the improverment m UK economic
conditions and the impact of MarketReach

On a reported basis revenue reduced by
€30 mition to £2,757 million

Operating costs

Total adjusted operating costs before
transformation costs were down one per cent
better than our expectation of a flat
performance

People costs increased by one per cent as a
result of increased pay costs, due to the three
per cent frontline pay award and incentives
headcount expansion m Parcelforce Worldwide
and |T and the additional cost of delivering
election mail These increases were partially
offset by a 2 5 per cent improvement in
collections processing and delivery productivity
in the core network and savings achieved from
the maragement reorgamsation programme
announced in March 2014, of £42 million

We now expect this programme to deliver
savings of around £80 millon per annum

from 2015-16 In accordance with the 2013
pay agreement the frontine pay award for
2015-16 15 2 8 per cent We contimue to target
annual productvity improvements of 2-3 per
cent per annum As a result of the new
single-tier state pension scheme to be

mtroduced i April 2016 the Group expects
to see an increase In its employer National
Insurance contributions for employees
participating in the Royal Mail Pension Plan
{RMPP) of up to £75 mulkon which wouild
impact the 2016-17 financial year

Non-people costs declined by four per cent
Distribution and conveyance costs reduced
by five per cent partly due to a reduction m
termmal dues as a resuit of a change in the
geographic mix of export parcels in the period
Savings were also achieved on vehicle costs
through improved fleet management and on
fuel costs Diesel and jet fuel costs were
£186 mullion n the year, compared with
£195 mulion in the prior year We buy
forward a large part of our fuel requirements,
therefore we are not matenially exposed to
short-term fluctuations in ail prices We
expect fuel costs to be around £171 millon
m 2015-16 Infrastructure costs were four
per cent lower mamly due to cost savings

on property, with reduced spend in relation
to facilities management Depreciation and
amortisation of £242 million was broadly in
line with the prior year Other operating costs
decreased by one per cent

! Adjusted results exclude specific tems including the difference between the income statement pension charge and the total cash cost of pensions in¢cluding deficit payments
2 Allmovements are on an underlying basis unless atherwise stated Underlying change 1s calculated after adjusting for movements in foregn exchange in GLS working days in UKPIL and
other one-off items that distart the Group s undertying performance For volumes underlying movements are adjusted for warking days in UKPIL and exclude elections in letter volumes
* Stamped metered and other prepaid revenue channels are subject to statistical sampling surveys to derive the revenue relating to parcels marketing mail and fetters
These surveys are subject to continuous refinement which may over ime reallocate revenue between the products above and which may occaswonally lead to a consequent change

to this estimate
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

21




UK Parcels, International & Letters (UKPIL) (continued)

For 2015-16 we continue to target flat or
better UKPIL costs on an underlying basis

Adjusted gperating profit before
transformation costs was £615 million
giving a margin of 79 per cent up 40 basis
points on an underlying basis

Reported total costs before transformation
costs for UK businesses (UKPIL and Other)
were broadiy flat at £7 275 milion (2013-14
£7242 million)

See KPIs pages 18 - 19.

On a reported basis UKPIL operatmg costs
before transformation costs mcreased by

£34 million to £7,271 milion Reported pension
costs increased by £73 muilon over the prior
year, mainly due to the increase m the IAS 19
non-cash pension service charge caused by a
decrease in AA corporate bond yields

Transformation costs

Total transformation costs of £145 million
were marginally above our expectations due
to an mcreased number of people leaving the
busmness in the second half of the year The
prior year mncluded a £104 mithion prowvision
for the management reorganisation
programme announced i March 2014 of
which £6 miflion reversed in 2014-15 We
contmue to expect ongoing transformation
costs of around £120-140 million per annum
depending on the level of voluntary
redundancies announced m-year

Project costs mncluding costs relating to
Delivery Office revisions have reduced from
2013-14

The £9 million busmess transformation
payments relate to the Business
Transformation Agreement 2010 These
payments are now largely complete and
mimimal payments are expected going
forward

Transformations costs are the same on
a reported or adusted basis

Operating profit after transformation
costs

Adjusted operating profit after transformation
costs was £470 million giving a margin of

6 1 per cent up 20 hasis ponts on an
underlying basis

Reported operating profit after transformation
costs was £341 million giving a margin of
4 4 per cent
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Operating costs

Adjusted Adjusted
52 weeks 52 weeks  Underlying
(Em) 2015 2014 change?
People costs {4,789) (4 760) 1%
Distribution and conveyance costs (821) (855) (5%)
Infrastructure costs (919) (346} (4%)
Qther operatng costs (613 (618) {1%)
Total non-people costs 2,353 {2 415) (4%)
Total operating costs before transformation costs 7,142 {7179) {1%)
Transformation costs
Adjusted Adjusted
-~ 52 weeks 52 weeks
{£m) . &t . __;-‘__ 2015 2014
Valuntary redundancy - ongaing 87) {14)
Vaoluntary redundancy - management reorganisation programme 6 {102)
Project costs {(55) (108}
Business transformation payments (9 (17}
Total (145 {241)
Case study

Nominate a Neighbour

In March 2015 we launched Nominate a Neighbour a
new Initiative designed to further increase convenience
for customers and improve first ime delvery

The scheme was developed by frontline emplayees
trade union representatives and managers In a number
of our delivery offices A number of offices across the
UK helped in the development stage and tnalled the

nitiative

Under the Nominate a Newghbour scheme, when
customers pick up a parcel at a Delivery Office they are
asked if they would lke to nominate a preferred
neighbour to recewve parcels on their behalf in future

if they are not at home when we call A smple form is
completed so that identity and address information can
be verified

The postman or woman will try the designated address
first, before trying other neighbours nearby

This provides customers with further reassurance
about the location of their parcel and helps our
postmen and women on their delivery rounds

Royal Mail ple
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General Logistics Systems

(GLS)

Summary trading results (including discontimued operations)

52 weeks 52 weeks
(€Em) 2015 2014 Change
Revenue 2,100 1957 7%
Operating costs (1,954) {1829) 7%
Operating prefit 146 128
Qperating prefit margin 70% &5 5% 50 bps
(Em)
Revenue 1,653 1651
Operating costs {1,538) (1543)
Operating profit 115 108
Volumes (m)* 436 404 8%
Operating costs
52 weeks 52 weeks
(€m) 2015 2014 Change
People costs {470) {435) 8%
Distribution and conveyance costs (1,290) {1 204) 7%
Infrastructure costs (135) (128) 6%
Qther operating costs (59 62) {6%)
Total non-people costs (1,484 {1394) 6%
Total operating costs (1,954 (1829) 7%

Trading performance

GLS continues to perform well The business
delivered a better than expected revenue
performance this year with seven per cent
growth driven by an eight per cent increase
mn parcel volumes Revenue growth has been
achieved in all our markets with particularly
strong growth In ltaly, as well as growth n
emerging European markets Germany
France and ltaly, GLS core markets n
aggregate still account for around 70 per cent
of GLS revenue

On a reported basis revenue of £1 557 mullion
was flat as the improvement in underlying
Euro revenue was offset by the impact of
foreign exchange movements

Operating costs
Total operating costs were up seven per cent,
broadly in line wath volume growth

People costs mncreased by eight per cent as

a result of pay inflation and incentives, the
impact of acguisitions and semi-variable costs
driven by volume We have already seen some
impact of the introduction of mimimum wage
legislation in Germany which took effect from
1 January 2015 Non-pecple costs were up
six per cent Distribution and conveyance costs
were up seven per cent reflecting higher
volumes Infrastructure costs increased by

six per cent due to higher depreciation and
amortisation charges from | T investments
Other operating costs reduced by six per cent
mainty due to a non-recuwrting indirect tax
charge and higher France restructuring costs
in 2013-14

On a reported basis operating costs of
£1 442 milion were flat as the increase n
underlying Euro costs was offset by the
impact of foreign exchange movements

Operating profit

Reported operating profit mcreased to
£115 millign, representing a margin of
70 per cent

Germany

The competitive environment coupled

with a challenging labour market, has had

a contmued impact on GLS Germany

It saw revenue growth of three per cent
and remains the {argest market for GLS by
revenue On 31 March 2015 GLS Germany
sold its enttre holdng in its subsidiary DPD
Systemlogistik (DPD SL) which had revenue
of £96 milhon in the year and has been
reclassified as discontinued operations

France

The turnaround programme n GLS France
was ahead of plan this year Operating losses
reduced to €14 million {2013-14 €27 mullion}
as the cost reduction element of the
turnaround has progressed well and increased
revenue growth was achieved Revenue
growth of seven per cent came from existing
and new customers We are targeting GLS
France to be break-even mn 2016-17

* Includes volumes from DPD SL (2014-15 45 million 2013-14 44 mitlion)
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Italy

Despite an unfavourable econormic
environment GLS [taly has continued to
deliver strong organic growth which coupled
with the benefit of acquisitions last year drove
a 16 per cent increase m revenue GLS ltaly
continues to gain market share but this rate
of growth 1s not expected to continue

in 2015-16

Other developed European markets
(includes Austria, Belgium, Netherlands,
Denmark, Ireland, Spamn and Portugal)
Revenue increased across other developed
European markets which represent 21 per
cent {2013-14 21 per cent) of total GLS
revenue Whilst all countries saw revenue
growth the strongest was seen in Spam and
Ireland from a low hase

Developing/emerging European markets
{includes Hungary, Slovema, Slovakia,
Czech Republic, Romarnia, Poland and
Croatia)

Performance throughout the rest of Europe
has been strong with a good increase in
revenue from developing/emergng European
markets The largest growth was in Croava
and Romanta from a low base
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Financial review

Matthew Lester
Chief Finance Officer

Reported results {contimuing eperations}

Group revenue was flat at £9,328 million (2013-14 £9,357 milien) Operating costs before transformation costs of £8 717 mitlion (2013-14
£8 688 million) were broadly flat Group operating profit before transformation costs reduced to £611 million (2013-14 £669 million) and
operating profit after transformation costs increased to £466 million (2013-14 £428 million) Profit before tax reduced from £1 664 million
to £400 milion Earnings per share reduced from 1275 pence to 32 5 pence

Presentation of results

The remaining commentary in this financial review unltess otherwise indicated focuses on the adjusted? results (including discontinued
operations) and on movernents in revenue costs profits and margins on an underlying basis? This is consistent with the way that financial
performance 1s measured by Managerment and reported to the Board and assists in providing a meanmgful analysis of the tradmg results of the
Group As indicated i our financial report for the half year ended 28 September 2014, and as outlined in our Significant accounting policies
section on page 133 we have moved to presenting operating costs operating profit and earnings with the difference between the income
statement pension charge and the actual cash cost of pensions treated as a speafic item

Group revenue

Adjusted Adusted
52 weeks 52 weeks  Undertying

(Em} 2015 2014 change?
Letters 4,567 4625 {1%)
Parcels 3,190 3162 1%

UKPIL 71,757 7787 Flat

GLS 1,653 1651 7%

Other 14 18

Group 9,424 G456 1%

Group revenue mcreased by one per cent, due to parcel revenue growth in UKPIL and n GLS
See KPIs pages 18 - 19.
Parcel revenue accounted for 51 per cent of Group revenue (2013-14 51 per cent) The factors impacting revenue in the year are described
m the sections entitled ‘UK Parcels International & Letters {(UKPIL) and "General Logistics Systems (GLS)
Group operating costs

Adjusted Adjusted
52 weeks 52 weeks  Underlying

(Em) 2015 2014 change?

People costs {5,246 {5 224) 1%
Distrbution and conveyance costs {1,836 {1 869) 1%
Infrastructure costs (1,023) {1051) (3%)
Other operating costs (579 (583 {(1%)

Total non-people costs {3,438 {3 503 Flat

Operating costs before transformation costs (8,684 8727 1%

Transformation costs (145) (241)

Dperating costs after transformation costs (8,829) {8968) 1%

Group operating costs before transformation costs were up one per cent as lower UKPIL costs as a result of cost actions were offset by increases
in GLS mamly due to higher volumes The factors impacting operating costs i the year are described im the sections entitled UK Parcels
International & Letters {(UKPIL) and General Logistics Systems {GLS)'

! Adjusted results exclude specific tems including the difference between the income statement pension charge and the total cash cost of penstons mecluding deficit payments
The figuras include DPD Systemlogistik a subsidiary of GLS Germany which was owned by the Group far the full reporting period and sold followmg the year end and has been
reclassified as discontinued operations

2 Allmovements are on an underlying basis unless otherwise stated Underlymg change 1s calculated after adjusting for movernents in foraign exchange m GLS working days in UKPIL
and other one-off items that distart the Group s underlying performance See reconciliation for underlying movements on pages 29 - 30
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Group operating profit and margins

Adjusted Adjusted

52 weeks 52 weeks
{Em) 2015 2014
UKPIL 615 608
GLS 115 108
QOther 10 13
Group operating profit before transformation costs 740 729

Adjusted operating profit before transformation costs was £740 milion giving an operating profit margin before transformation costs
of 79 per cent, an increase of 40 basis points on an underlying basis

Reported operating profit before transformation costs adjusted for foreign exchange movements was £620 million

See KPIs pages 18 - 19

Transformation costs are described n the section entitled UK Parcels International & Letters (UKPIL)

Adjusted Adjusted
52 weeks 52 weeks

{Em) 2015 2014
UKPIL 470 367
GLS 115 108
Other 10 13
Group operating profit after transformation costs 595 488

Adjusted operating profit after transformation costs was £595 million with UKPIL contributing 79 per cent {2013~14 75 per cent) to the Group
total The operating profit margm after transformation costs increased by 20 basis points on an underlying basis to 6 3 per cent

Speaific items
Adjusted Adjusted
52 weeks 52 weeks
{€m) 2015 2014
Operating speafic items
Pension charge to cash difference (129) (58)
Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment (non-cash) - 1350
Transaction-related costs - (28)
Employee Free Shares charge? (non-cash) (169) {94)
Impairment and legacy costs {79) {(15)
Total operating specific tems 377} 1155
Non-aperating specific items - -
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 133 19
Profit on disposal of associate undertaking - 2
Net pension niterest (non-cash) 75 69
Total specific items (169) 1245

The £129 rmillon difference between the ncome statement pension charge {£552 mullion) and the actual cash paid out In respect of pensions,
meluding the Royal Mail Senior Executives Pension Plan (RMSEPP) £10 million deficit payment (£423 mullion), 1s treated as an operating specific
itemn The increase in the difference of £71 million has been driven by a decrease in AA corporate bond yields For 2015-16 given the continued
fall in AA corporate bond yields, the difference between the income statement charge and the cash cost 1s expected ta be around £255 million
an mcrease of around £125 million over 2014-15, mamly due to an mcrease n the IAS 19 pension service charge rate from 23 6 per cent to

29 8 per cent

Other operating speafic items n the period included the charge associated with the Employee Free Shares Offer of £169 milhien which was lower
than the £180 million we anticipated due to an adjustment for leavers in the year The charge for 2015-16 1s expected to be around £150 million
dependent on the level and mix of leavers Impairment and legacy costs of £79 million included a £24 mitlion one-off impairment charge in
respect of certamn [T assets a £19 million movernent In the prowviston for potential ndustrnat diseases claims driven by a reduction in the discount
rate and £5 milhon of other costs partially offset by a £15 million reversal of historical employment costs It also includes the charge in respect of
the antiopated fine on GLS France in the ongoing investigation by the French Competition Authonity and associated costs This has heen
reassessed at the full year to be £46 million (comprised of £40 millien for the anticipated fine and £6 million associated costs) in light of further
correspondence with the French Competition Authority and ther approach in other recent cases The actual level of the fine to be rmposed on
GLS France will not be known until the second half of 2015-16

Non-operating specific items included property and asset disposal gans of €233 milbon of which £106 mitlion 15 in respect of profit on the sale of
the Paddington site

? Includes £6 million (2013-14 £3 mitlion} provision far National Insurance which will be cash settled
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Financial review (continued)

Net pension mterest of £75 million 1s non-cash and 15 calculated by applying the schemes discount rate at the beginning of the year to the net
pension surplus The net pension mterest for 2015-16, based on the discount rate and net pension surplus at 29 March 2015 15 expected to

be a credit of £107 million
Net finance costs (excluding specfic items)

Net finance costs of £26 million (2013-14 £67 million) comprise finance costs of £30 mullon (2013-14 £71 rillion) offset by finance mcome of
£4 million (2013-14 £4 milion) The decrease i finance costs was largely due ta the new loans and barrowings {including the €500 million bond}

being at lower rates than the previous HM Gavernment facilities

Following the amendments to the syndicated bank facility in March 2015 and taking into account the full year impact of the Eurc bond, the

blended interest rate on gross debt (loans, bends and finance leases of £638 million at 29 March 2015) for 2015-16 15 expected to be
approxmmately three per cent

Taxation
Effective rate

The effective tax rate on reported Group profit before tax s 18 per cent (2013-14 23 per cent) The UK effective tax rate on reported profit is
11 per cent (2013-14 22 per cent) This rate is significantly lower than the UK corporation tax rate as a result of remvestment relief avarlable

to offset profit on UK property disposals GLS' effective tax rate on reported profit s 51 per cent (2013-14 37 per cent) reflecting a range of tax
rates across different territories some of which are higher than m the UK, and losses (primarily in France) for which no deferred tax credit has
been recognised The increase over the prior year is mamly due to the charge in respect of the anticipated fine on GLS France in the ongoing

nvestigation by the French Competition Authority for which we anticipate no tax relief

The effective tax rate on adjusted Group profits before tax 1s 24 per cent (2013-14 26 per cent) The rate has reduced broadly in line with the

reduction in the UK carporation tax rate
Current

The reported UK current tax charge of £7 milion (2013-14 £ mullion) represents a tax rate on profit hefore tax of two per cent {2013-14 rul
per cent) Taxable profits in the UK are as anticipated largely covered by a combimation of losses and capital allowance clams as well as the tax
impacts of Employee Share Schemes Reparted GLS current tax charge of £32 mulion (2013-14 £26 million) represents a tax rate of 46 per cent

(2013-14 34 per cent)
Deferred

The reported Group deferred tax charge was £33 million (2013-14 £349 million) This arose mamly as a result of capital allowance clams

and utilisation of brought forward losses In the prior period the charge was primarily i relation to the Group s pensian position

Earnings per share (EPS)
Adjusted EPS was 42 8 pence (reported 32 5 pence) on a basic and diluted basis

Summary free cash flow

52 weeks 52 weeks
(Em) 2015 2014
Reported EBITDA before transformatian costs - 889 942
Pension charge to cash difference {operating specific itern) 129 58
Adjusted EBITDA before transformation costs 1,018 1000
Trading working capital movements 1 (57)
Total mvestment (658) 617
Tax (37) (38)
Net finance casts paid (18) (33
Othar - SAYE share option scheme charge difference dividends from associate 5 2
In-year trading cash flow 3 257
Other working capital movements 11 140
Operating specific items 8) (35)
Proceeds from dispasal of property (excluding Londan property portfolia} plant and equipment and assocate undertaking
{non-operating specific item) 39 36
Free cash flow {before net cash flows from London property portfolio) 353 398
| ondon property portfolio net cash flows {non-aperating specific item) 100 -
Free cash flow 453 398

Free cash flow of £453 milhon was up £55 muthon It included £100 milion net cash flows from the London property portfolio (which are not

reflected in the KP! measure)

See KPIs pages 18 - 19
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In-year trading cash flow increased by £54 million to £311 million despite an mcrease n total cash investment, explamed betow

Adjusted EBITDA before transformation costs of £1 018 million increased due to the trading performance explaned above Trading working
capital movernents were broadly flat

[nvestment

52 weeks 52 weeks
(Em) 2015 2014
Growth capital expenditure (178) (201)
Replacement capital expenditure (252) {215)
Transformation operating expenditure (228) (201}
Total mvestment (658) {(617)
Proceeds from disposal of property (excluding London property portfolis} plant and equipment and assaciate undertaking 39 36
Net investment {619) {581}

Total mvestment mcreased from £617 mitlion to £658 milion Growth capital expenditure was mainly in relation to parcels projects, especially IT
to support barcoding, scanning and tracking and GLS The mam replacement capital expenditure mvestments were m relation to vehicles
property and IT projects Transformation operating expenditure was predomnantly m relation to voluntary redundancies Proceeds from the
disposal of praperty {excluding London property portfolo} plant and equipment were £39 million giving a net mvestment of £619 million Over
201314 and 2014-15 cumulative net cash mvestment was £1 2 billion as expected Gomng forward cash mvestment net of operating asset
disposals, is expected to be i the range £550-600 million per annum

Tax payments of £37 million are broadly m line with the current mcome taxation charge of £39 milion Net finance costs paid of £18 million
reduced due to lower net debt and a lower cost of debt in the year

Other working capital movements

52 weeks 52 weeks

(Em} 2015 2014
March 2015 payroll paid after balance sheet date of 29 March 2015 46 -
Stamps used but purchased in previous periods and other deferred revenue (35) (10)
Unwinding of pension prepayment made in March 2012 - 150
Total other warking capital movements 11 140

Other working capital movements resulted in an £11 million inflow There was a benefit of £46 million due to the timing of payroll payments in
respect of monthly paid staff with the payment for the March 2015 payroll occurring after 29 March 2015 This timing benefit will not reverse
until 2018-19 with 12 monthly payroll payments in all years until then This was offset by £35 million of stamps used in the year which had been
purchased n previous perieds and other deferred revenue movements In 2013-14 the movemnents largely related to a one-off benefit of

£150 milion m respect of the March 2012 pension prepayment

Net cash flows relating to the London property portfolio were £100 million and largely relate to the sale of the Paddington site in the year

Net debt
Net debt decreased by £280 million to £275 mition mamnly due to free cash flow generated offset by dividend payments of £200 million

In July 2014 Royal Mail 1ssued €500 million 2 375% Senior Fixed Rate Notes due July 2024 with a fixed annual interest coupon of 2 375%
The majarity of the proceeds were used to repay £350 million of the existing syndicated bank loans This increased the average maturity of the
Groups drawn down loans and loan faclities

in March 2015, the Group took advantage of favourable market conditions to negotiate amendments to its syndicated bank facility to convert the
remaming term loan mto a revolving credit facility for greater flexibility This had the effect of reducing the interest rates charged and extending
the maturity date to March 2020 with the option to extend for a further two years This enabled the remaming £250 millien of the existing
syndicated bank loans to be repaid on 9 March 2015, whilst mamtammg the same level of faciities The mcreased flexibility to pay down debt
when not being utilsed reduces future net interest cost

Dividends

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 14 3 pence per ordinary share payab'e on 31 July 2015 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members on 3 July 2015 subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 23 July 2015 This gives a total dvidend for the year
of 21 0 pence, an mcrease of five per cent over the notional 2013-14 full year dvidend of 20 0 pence
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Financial review (continued)

Property

On 14 Qctober 2014, the Company announced that contracts had been exchanged for the sale of the former Paddington Mail Centre site to Great
Western Developments Limited for £111 miltion in cash Total net cash proceeds of the sale of £108 million were received on completion on

8 December 2014 and a profit on disposal of £106 mullion has been recorded as a nan-operatmg specific iterm We continue to market the site

at Nine Elms and to evaluate our options in relation to the site at Mount Pleasant These larger sites will require further mvestment in order

to optimuse value which will be mamly met by the proceeds from the sale of the Paddington site

Pensions
The |AS 19 pension position at 29 March 2015 was a surplus of £3 179 miilion, compared with a surplus of £2,068 milion at 28 September 2014
and £1 723 million at 30 March 2014 The |AS 19 accounting position and key assumptions for the valuation are prowded in note 8

The process for the triennial valuation of the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) at 31 March 2015 has commenced and the outcorme will be
announced in due course If the assumptions used for the 2012 trienntal valuation of RMPP and RMSEPP are rolled forward to 31 March 2015,
the combined actuarial surplus would be €1 793 millon compared with £1,585 milion at 30 Septemnber 2014 and £1 422 million at 31 March
2014 s ths basis that the Pension Trustees and the Company use to assess the ongoing funding needs of these schemes The increase in the
surplus was largely driven by the return on assets i particular due ta the increase n the market value of gilts and derivative assets that are
prmcipally held to hedge mflation and interest rate risk To support the Company's commitment that subject to certam conditions the RMPP wilt
remam open to defmed benefit accrual until at least March 2018, the Trustee has hedged a large proportion of the interest and inflation exposure
on this expected future service benefit accrual On an actuarial basis the amount of the surplus relating to the liabilities hedged m advance of
those accrued as at March 2015 was approximately £700 million This element will unwind aver time

Under the 2012 triennial valuation of RMPP the Company agreed to pay ongoing cash contributions of 171 per cent of pensionable pay until
2018 At that ime this amounted to arcund £400 million per annum, and reflected the creation of an actuaral surplus of £2 6 billion as a result
of the Pensions Reform m 2013 Without this surplus the Company contributions required would have been around £700 million per annum
Accordingly the surplus was expected to declme over time Since then market conditions for defined benefit schemes have worsened However
the position of RMPP has heen protected to date by the hedging strategy explamed above such that we contmue to expect that the RMPP
actuarial surplus will reduce to neither a matertal surplus nor deficot by March 2018

Financial risks and related hedging
The Group 15 exposed to comrnodity and currency price risk The Group operates hedging policies which are described m the notes to the financial
statements

The farecast diesel and jet commodity exposures i UKPIL are set out below together with the sensitivity of 2015-16 operating profit to changes
m commodity prices and fuel duty

Residual

unhedged Impact on Impact on

Less fuel duty Underlying underlyimg 2015-16 2015-16

Forecast total (incl commodity commedity  operating profit  operating profit

cost (based on irrecoverable  expesure (incl exposure (incl of a10% of a 10%

price at VAT) - nat irrecoverable % of underlying irvecoverable Increase i increase in fuel

29 March 2015) hedged VAT) commodity VAT) commodity price duty

2015-16 Exposure £m £m £m hedged £m £m fm
Diesel 161 94 67 86 10 (1) 9
Jet 10 - 10 100 - - n/a
Total 171 94 77 87 10 (1) (9)

As a resuit of a reduction m the effective (after hedging impact) underlying diesel commodity costs for 2015-16 it 1s anticipated that the cost
will be reduced by £6 million, but without hedgmg this variance would have been £25 millien (based upon closing fuel prices at 29 March 2015}
Due to the policy of hedging mn advance the current low oil price will result In an anticipated lower effective diesel commaodity cost n the future

The UKPIL and Other bustness units' functional currency is Sterling, whilst GLS' functional currency is the Euro Therefore the translational
exposure to the Group's operating profit relates to GLS' profits

In 2014-15 the average exchange rate between Sterling and the Eurg was £1=€1 27, a seven per cent strengthening m Sterling compared with
£1=€1 19 In 2013-14, which resulted m a £7 mllton reduction m GLS reported operating profits At the consolidated Group earnings level GLS'
operating profits are targely offset by costs denominated m Euros {for instance payments in Euros in relation to mterest and taxes and to
overseas postal operators by UKPIL) such that a 10 per cent weakening of Sterling relative to the Euro/other European currencies does not have
a material impact

The Group manages its interest rate risk through a combination of fixed rate loans and leasing floating rate loans/facilities and floating rate
financial mvestments At 29 March 2015 all of the gross debt of £638 miltion was at fixed rate to maturity

Counterparty nisk s managed by limiting aggregate exposure to any mdnidual counterparty based on their financial strength
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Underlying change

The financial review unless otherwise mdicated focuses on the adjusted results {including discontinued operattons) and on movements i revenue
costs profits and margins on an underlying basis Underlying movements take into account dfferences m working days in UKPIL and movements
in foreign exchange m GLS In additton adjustments are made for non-recurring or distorting items, whech by their nature may be unpredictable
Faor the full year, we have made adjustments for the £28 million one-off bonus paid to staff in the second half of 2013-14 and the movement in
provisions m respect of the management reorganisation programme (MRP) of £110 mulkon {(£104 wullion provision m 2013-14 and a £6 mitlion
release in 2014-15} For volumes underlying movemnents are adjusted for working days m UKPIL (2013-14 304 8 2014-15 304}, and exclude
elections m letters volumes Due to the expected flow of traffic over holiday periods in 2015-16 we estimate that the impact of working days in
UKPIL will be around £25 million (2015-16 303 working days) See table below and overleaf for a reconahation for underlying movemeants

Reconcibation for underlying movements

Adjusted VAT One-off MRP Working Foreign Year;::;
52 weeks credit bonus  provision days exchange Underlying underlying
{Em) 2014 (UKPIL) (UKPIL) (UKPIL) (UKPIL) (GLS} comparator change
Revenue
Group 9456 - - - (20) (111) 9325 1%
UKPIL 7787 - - - (20) - 7767 Flat
GLS 1651 - - - - {111) 1540 7%
Costs
Group
People (5 224) {2) 28 - - 25 (5173) 1%
Distribution and conveyance costs (1869 {13} - - - 68 (1814) 1%
Infrastructure costs {1051) (12} - - - 7 {1 056) (3%)
Other operating costs {(583) {3) - - - 4 {582) (1%)
Nan-people casts {3 503) (28) - - - 79 {3452) Flat
Operating costs before transformation costs (8727) (30) 28 - - 104 (8 625) 1%
UKPIL
People (4,760} (2) 28 - - - (4734) 1%
Distribution and conveyance costs (855) {13) - - - - (868) (5%)
Infrastructure costs (940) (12) - - - - (958) (4%)
Other operating costs {618} {3) - - - - {621) {1%)
Non-pecple costs (2 419) (28) - - - - (2 447) (4%)
Operating costs before transformation costs  (7179) (30) 28 - - - (7181) {1%)
GLS
Operating costs {1543) - - - - 104 (1439) 7%
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Financial review {continued)

Reconciliatian for underlying movements (continued)

Adjusted VAT One-off MRP Working Foreign mr;.;:;
52 weeks credit bonus  provision ays exchange Underlying underlying
(Em) 2014 (UKPIL) (UKPIL) {UKPIL) (UKPIL) (GLS} comparator change
Profit, margins and EPS
Group
Operating profit before transfarmation costs 729 (30) 28 - (20} (7) 700 6%
Margin 77% 75% 40 bps
Transformation costs (241) - - 110 - - (131)
Operating profit after transformation costs 488 {30 28 110 (20) (7} 569 5%
Margin 52% 61% 20 bps
Profit before tax 421 {30} 28 110 (20) (7) 502
Tax (120 {131)
Profit for the period 311 3711
Profit attributable to the Group 308 368
Earnings per share 308p 368p
UKPIL
Operating profit before transformatton costs 608 (30 28 - {20} - 586 5%
Margm 78% 75% 40 bps
Transformation costs (241) - - 110 - - (131)
Operating profit after transfarmation costs 367 (30) 28 110 (20) - 455 3%
Margin 47% 59% 20 bps
GLS
Operating profit 108 - - - - (7) 1m 14%
Margin 65% 6 5% 50 bps

Events after the reporting period

0On 31 March 2015 after the financial year end, GLS Germany disposed of its wholly-owned subsidiary DPD Systemlogisttk GmbH & Co KG
{DPD SL) to DPD GeoPast {Deutschland} GmbH The disposal resulted in a post-tax profit of around €40 million {£29 million), which will be
reflected as a specific item in the Groups 2015-16 financial statements

Matthew Lester
Chief Fmance Officer
20 May 2015
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Business risks

The Governance section describes in detail how the Group manages its nisk from the Group Board levet its respective sub-committees and
through the organisation Further detaits can be found on pages 43 - 63

The table below details the principal business risks, their current status and how the Group mitigates these risks The status includes our
assessment of whether the risk 1s increasing (1) decreasing () or stable {(¥) The alignment to strategy indicates those aspects of the business
strategy that would he impacted by the risk were it to matenialise

Principal risk

Status How we are mitigating the risk

Atignment to
strategy

Changes i market conditions and customer behaviour

The letters and parcels markets are
increasingly competitive customers centinue
to demand mare and our competitors are
responding guickly to these changing demands

Customer behaviour and Royal Mail's
responsiveness to market changes retative
to that of competitors

Changes in customer behaviour and changes
to the markets in which the Group sells its
preducts and services could impact our
forecasts for letter and parcel volumes

There 15 a risk that our product offerings and
custorner experience may not adequately
meet evolving customer needs or that we are
unable to innovate or adapt our commercial
and operaticnal actwvities quickly enough to
respond to changes in the market

Economic environment

Historically there has been a corretation
between economic conditions and the level

of parcel and letter vofumes Flat or adverse
economic conditions could impact our ability to
maintain and grow revenue by either reducing
volumes or encouraging customers to adopt
cheaper service opttons far sending letters

and parcels

A number of carrers are
expandmng their operations
Additional market capacity

increases downward price .
pressure
At the same time customers .

increasmngly demand faster
more flexible and responsive
services with hugh reliability

There 15 a continuing

reguirement to invest In .
growth and imhovation to

meet these challenges in the
marketplace

Economic conditions in the

UK improved gver the year
The recovery in Europe
remams fragile Low growth
or recession in Europe could
impact our mternational parcel
volumes including those
handled by GLS

We use continuous in-depth market
monitaring and research to track how well
we match our customers needs including
relative to our competitors

We have implemented a range of products
and service enhancements at pace

Further intiatives will provide service
enhancements including additional
tracking capability and delivery solutions
and enhancing customers online
experience

Qur Mailmen campaign 1s promoting the
value of marketing mail

We have a robust modelling and
forecasting framework that uses a range
of quantitative and qualitative approaches
to provide early warnings of changes to
overall volumes and the profile of letter
and parcel volumes and to assess the
effect of ur pricing structures

We continually review and upgrade

these models

We have taken short-term actions and
are developing longer-term responses
to control costs

Strategic links key

Being a successful parcels business

Annual Report and Financal Statements 2014-15
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Business risks (continued)

Principal risk

Status

How we are nutigating the risk

Alignment to
strategy

Business transformation

Royal Mail must continuously became mare
efficient and flexible m order to compete
effectively in the letters and parcels markets

Efficiency

The success of our sirategy relies on the
effective control of costs and the delivery
of efficency benefits

Attracting and retaining senior
management and key personnel

Our performance operating results and future
growth depend on our ability to attract and
retam talent with the appropriate level

of expertise

IT transformation

The scale and complexity of the IT
transformation programme and the ongoing
requirement for effective management of
the transition are sources of risk to its
successful delivery

Failure to improve our IT systems or
successfully )implement the |T transformation
prograrmme would increase the risk of secunty
breaches and attacks a matenal adverse effect
on the Groups operations and IT systems
being unable to support the business plan

We continue to make
efficiency improvements QOur
productivity improvement 1s
within our target range
However Ofcom has
anncunced a review of what is
a reasonable rate of efficiency
improvement for Royal Mail

It may make unfavourable
changes to the regulatory
framewaork to mcentivise
further efficiency

Turnover in senier and key
personnel has been at normal
levels for the business during
the year but this remains an
inherent business risk

The transformation
programme will continue to
run at its peak throughout the
next financial year moving
from one service provider to a
diversified supplier model This
impacts all of our core systems
At the same time we have
projects runming in parallel

te give customers a higher
standard of service using more
sophisticated technology

* We have agreed with the CWU a
programme to enable better alignment
of resourcing and workload

¢ Qur Together for Growth programme
supported by a joint mediation process
facilitates a collaborative approach to
improving efficiency at a local level

» Atask force will address attendance
issues with a particular focus on
leng-term employee absence

= A cost-conscious regime is in place
to understand cost drivers better and
further develop and embed cost-
consciousness and IMpose rigorous
control over discretionary spend

® The Groups remuneration policy sets out
that the overall remuneration package
should be sufficiently competitive to
attract retain and motivate executives
with the cemmercial expertence to run
a large complex business in a highly
challengmg cantext

» We operate a succession planning process
and have in place a talent identification
and development programme

* The IT transformation programme has a
stretching target completion date that will
minimise the risk of operating outdated
legacy systems

*  We have strengthened standard
programme management and governance
disciplines to provide mtensive focus on
key aspects of the programme such as
managimg interdependencies with other
programmes and implementing the
transition

Cur Internal Audit department provides
mdependent assurance about the
programme delivery
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Principal risk

Status

How we are mitigating the risk

Alignment to
strategy

Regulatory and legislative environment

The business operates I3 a regulated
enviranment Changes m legal and regulatory
reguirements could impact our ability to meet
our targets and gcals

Sustamahibty of the Universal Service
Obligation (USO)

In our liberalised postal market other
operators are able to offer direct delivery
services by cherry-picking easy-to-serve
urban areas, without having to adhere to the
same high delivery requirements and quality
standards as Royal Mail

The cembinatien of mandated access!
uncertainty about access price proposals and
the rollout of direct delivery, and structurat
decline in letters poses a serious nisk to the
Groups future abilty to earn revenue
necessary to ensure the sustamnable
pravision of the USO

Ouring 2014 we made

a submussign ta Ofcom
requesting that it brought
forward a full review of the
impact of direct delivery an
the Unwversal Service
However n December 2014
Ofcorn deaded that there were
no grounds for regulatory
imterventicn at this time
This may lead to further
direct delivery expansion

In the future

Whisti a subsidiary of PastNL
has expanded its direct
delivery operation into several
urban areas across the UK

On 11 May 2015 Whistl
announced that 1t had
camimenced an extensive
review of the viability and
potential for the rollout of an
end-to-end postal delivery
service In the UK {ts current
end-to-end service Is
suspended during the

review process

Ofcom also announced In
December 2014 that it would
be carrying out a review of
the regulatory rules that apply
to Rayal Mail s access prices
{Access Pricing Review)
Ofcoms proposals represent
amore restrictive regime that
would prevent Royal Mail from
responding to competition
putting the financia
sustainability of the Universal
Service at risk

We proposed certain changes
to our access contracts m
January 2014 Some of these
proposals are the subject of a
Competrbon Act investigation
by Ofcom They were
suspended never implemented
and have now been withdrawn

We are engaging with stakeholders,
mcluding polittoans, economists and
academics about the threats to the
fiancial sustainability of the Universal
Service The Commons Business
Innovation and Skills Cormmittee has
published a report calling for Gfcom

to take steps to ensure the Universal
Service can be protected

We have also submitted a detailed
response to Ofcom’s proposals under
the Access Pricing Review setting
out our view that the proposals are
dispropartionate

1 Royat Mail 1s obligated to provide access to its inward mail centres by our Regulator Ofcam This means that competators to Royal Mail can collect and sort mail posted by husmesses

and hand it to Royal Mail for final mile delwvery

Annual Report and Pinancial Staternents 2014-15
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Business risks {continued)

Principal risk

Status

How we are mitigating the risk

Alignment to
strategy

VAT status

Royal Mait 1s currently exempt from Value
Added Tax (VAT) in anumber of areas m which
this status 1s under threat

* HMRCs implementation of VAT legislation
on mandated access services has been
subject to a judicial review,

* The European Commission is reviewing VAT
exernptions more generally and postal
services fall within the scope of that review

e The EU has published a proposat for a
Vouchers Directive as currently drafted
this would alter the VAT treatrment of
postage stamps

Although Royal Mail could benefit frorm greater
recoverability of VAT on costs if the VAT
exemption for USO and access services was
removed the cost to customers who cannot
reclaimn VAT would be increased making us
less competitive

The judicial review found that
HMRC has correctly
implemented VAT legislation
and the serwvices should remain »
exempt from VAT However the
plaintiff in the case has been
granted leave to appeal the
decision and we may not

have a definitive resolution
until 2016

The European Commission has
published details of responses
o 1ts consultation about the
future of VAT exemptions but
has not progressed the matter
further There has been no
indication of the likely outcome
or timescate of the exercise

The proposed Vouchers
Directive remains under
discussion m Brussels

We will contimue to support HMRC, as
required m defending its implementation
of VAT legislation in respect of access
services

We have established a direct link with the
European Commission and continue to
lobby more widely in relation to both the
Vouchers Directive and the VAT status

of postal services

We lraise with HM Treasury to seek to
mimimise the impact of the proposed
Vouchers [hrective

Employment legislation

Changes to laws and regulations relating to
employment {(Includng the interpretation and
enforcement of those laws and regulations)
could drectly or indirectly increase the
Groups labour costs, which, given the size of
the Groups workforce could have an adverse
effect on the Group

The Employment Appeals

Tribunal has ruled that in
excluding regular avertime

from holiday pay calculations

the Government has
misinterpreted the Working .
Time Directive since 1998

Whilst this decision appears to
have crystallised the risk of
having to include cvertime in
the calculation of holiday pay
the position I1s still unclear as
to how to calculate the
appropriate payments and
exactly who should receve
such payments The case law
15 still evolving In this area

We are closely monitoring developments
In the case law in this area and are n
discussions with cur recognised unions
as ta how to deal with this 1ssue We hope
to take a collaborative approach once the
case law becomes clearer

Based cn our estimates of the potential
financial impact we believe that we have
made sufficient provision for any historic
liabitities that may arnse
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Alignment to

Primeipal risk Status How we are mitigating the risk strategy

Pension risk

The Group continues to cperate a defined
benefit pension scherme the Royal Mail Pension
Plan open ta accruat for existing members

Affordability of the Royal Mail Pension * The RMPP Trustee i1s continuing to hedge
Plan future interest rate and inflation rate
The first review of our exposure to reduce the nsk that the

commitment, which will be Groups commitment to March 2018
carnied out in conjunction with
cannot be met

the unions will be completed
by March 2018 « We are engaging with the CWU and Unite/
CMA on the emerging issues and potentral

The actuanal cost of providing an additional
year s benefit was around £700 million based
on the Plans March 2012 actuanal valuation

In recogmtion of the surplus that was created

by Pensicns Reform in September 2013 the A large proportion of the Plans

Group was able to mamtain its cash
contribution at around £400 million a year

As part of Pensions Reform the Group
commutted subject to conditions to keep the
Plan open without further amendment until at
least March 2018

Changes in fmancaial market conditions, or
demographic or cther factors may impact our
continued ability to fund this commitrnent

future mterest rate and mflation
rate exposure has been hedged
and we expect there to be
neither a material surplus nor
deficit at March 2018

However giit yields have
continued ta fall creating a
Tisk to the affardability of the
Plan after that date

In addition, under the 2012
actuarial valuation the
Company 1s required to pay
additional contributions of up
to £50 miltion a year from April
2016 if the Trustee considers
these necessary to mamtain
the Plan's projected funding
position n March 2019

This requirernent will be
reviewed as part of the Plan's
March 2015 actuanal
valuation The valuation
process has commenced and
the outcorne will be announced
in due course

courses of action

Industrial relations

There 1s extensive trade union recognition
m respect of our workforce m the UK

Industrial action * We have agreed and implemented with
the CWU a Joint Statement on Growth
Efficiency and Incentives, enabling
collaborative Improvements in operational
efficency

There Is a nsk that one or more matenal
disagreements or disputes between the Group
and 1ts trade un:ons could result in widespread
localised or natienal industral actior

The current pay deal runs until
2015-16 and 15 rooted in the
Agenda for Growth agreement
developed jontly with the CWU
The agreement represents a * The Jomt Statement 1s supported by our
fundamental change in our Together for Growth traming pregramme
relationship with the CWU an industnal relations and business skills
and promotes stability in package for managers and CWU
industrial relations representatives

Widespread localised or nattoral industrial
action would cause matenat disruption to our
husiness m the UK and would be likely to result
m an immediate and potentially ongomg
significant loss of revenue for the Group It may
also cause Royal Mail to fal to meet the Quality
of Service targets prescribed by Ofcom leading
to enforcement action and fines

However the increasmgly * We have established a process that uses
competitive environment tramed mediators nomimated by and
and the need for change will representing both the CWLU and the
challenge Royal Mail and 1ts business for resolution of local disputes
trade unigns to find effective

solutions without recourse to

industnal action
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Corporate Responsibility

Responsibility (eader

Ast

2015 Dow Jones Sustamability
Index leader (transportation and
transportation mfrastructure
industry)

4.5 stars

out of five n BITC’s Corporate
Responsibility Index - UK's
leadmg benchmark for
corporate responsibility

Our performance

Champion

Corporate National
Partnership Champion,
Charity Times Awards
(with Prostate Cancer UK)

st

delivery business awarded triple
certification to the Carbon Trust
Standard for carbon, water

and waste
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84 per cent

of people n the UK think Royal
Mail 1s an important part of
local communtties

Ipsos MORI, 2014

10 per cent

reduction in our lost time
accident frequency rate since
last year
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Our corporate responsibility strategy is an integral part of realising our core strategic
priorities. The objectives at the heart of our business and corporate responsibility
strategies are the same - to generate sustainable shareholder value and to ensure
a sound and sustainable Universal Service.

The links between our corporate respansibility objectives and our core strategic priorities are

shown In the table below

Bemng a
successful  Managing Bemg
parcels the decline customer
Corporate responsibility objective business n letters focused
Delivering economuc and social benefit v v v
to the communities we serve
Driving colleague advocacy of the Group v v
and its commiunity role
Managing the environmental impacts of v v
our business and operations
Delivering our transformation responsibly v v v
Communicating our management of corporate v v

responsibilities openly and transparently

We report progress agaimst our corporate
responsibility abjectwves under the areas of
Customer People Community Suppliers
and Enviranment

Measuring our progress

We have been named global leader for 2015
in our industry m the Dow Jones Sustanability
Indices We achieved the top ranking m both
the Dow Jones Sustanability Warld Index and
Dow Jones Sustamnability Europe Index ahead
of around 100 other organisations in marine,
rail, trucking freight forwardng and logistics
busmesses The ranking follows our first

ever submission to the index as a publicly
listed company

Business in the Community s Corporate
Responsibility Index 1s anather good way of
measuring our performance In the 2015
Index, Royal Mail was ranked one of the
most responsible companies i the UK after
scoring 98 per cent in its assessment

We were awarded a rating of 4 5 stars

out of a possible five

Our customers
Being customer focused 1s one of our three
strategic priorities {see page 16) We are

innovating to meet their needs We are also
focusmg on improving our efficiency

In October 2014 we introduced a new,
extended size for our Small Parcel format
enabling both consumers and SME customers
to fit more and larger items into the parcels
they send We marked the launch of the new
Small Parcel sizing with a Christmas
promotion - allowing customers to send
Second Class parcels up to 2kg for the price
of up to 1kg In February 2015 we announced
that we had decided to embed this price into
our 2014-15 price changes This means that
there continues to be a single price for Second
Class parcels weighing up to 2kg and this
remains unchanged at £2 80

Delivering when we say we will 1s a key
component of our service standards

In 2014-15 we recorded a reduction n
custorner complamts from 465 500° to
445,500 For the first time in four years
customer complamts reduced across all four
of the key areas we measure - redirections
redelvery musdelvery, and Something for
You cards

See KPls pages 18 - 19.

After our custorners our employees are best
placed to evaluate how customer focused our
products and services really are We use our
annual Employee Survey to gauge what they
think about key aspects of the custormer
experience This year, we agan achieved a
custerner focus score of 69

See KPls pages 18 - 19.

Our people

Employee engagement 1s one of the key
drivers in our busimess success Our Employee
Survey helps us identify the areas where we
are doing well and those we need to improve
This year, we acheved an improved emplayee
engagement score of 56 up from 54 in
2013-14

See KPis pages 18 - 19.

Engaged employees are essential for the
customer focused culture that we are bullding
at Royal Mall Engagement i1s ane of the three
people-related KPIs on our Corporate
Balanced Scovecard

Building a dialogue through our mternal
communication channels is a vital aspect
of our strategy

During 2014-15 we undertook the following
mtiatives

» Continued our ‘Town Hall programme,
conducting almost 40 meetings addressing
thousands of colleagues

® Held approximately 350 on-site
engagement sessions to brief frontkne
colleagues and

* Brought together approximately 3 000
operations managers and unicn
representatives at our annual Operations
Conference

As part of our ground-breaking Agenda for
Growth agreement with the CWU we have
launched 60 nmitiatives In November 2014,
we completed traming 10 mediators selected
from amongst our employees Our Agenda
for Growth agreement was awarded Best
Employee Relations Initiative for 2014 by the
Chartered Institute of Personnel Development

* Total number of complamts for 2013-14 has been restated from 458 739 to 465 461 to include 5722 complaints from Stamps and Callectibles

Annual Report and Fimanoal Statements 2014-15
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Corporate Responsibility (continued)

Trammg and career development
Ensurmg our people have the skills they need
to do the job is fundamental to the success
of the busmess In 2014-15 atmost 54,0007
colleagues attended instructor-led training
mn the UK with gver 40 5007 colleagues
attendmg web-based training sessions Key
programmes include the Customer and You
programme aimed at developing skills to
impraove the customer experience and the
Management Acceleration Programme
developed with Oxford University s Said
Business Schaol to support effective
management and leadership

Durmng 2014-15 we recruited 844 workplace
coaches to support the development of cur
pecple m role This brings the total number
of workplace coaches across the business

to 2,553 Our aim 15 to eventually have one
workplace coach for every 25 employees

We are also deploying advanced driver
coaching to help reduce the risk of acadents
reduce our fuel consumption and reduce
wear and tear of our vehicles

In Germany GLS runs a dual degree
prograrmme for students at Technische
Hochschule Mittelhessen - University of
Applied Sciences Students are able to apply
their academic traiming working at GLS whilst
studying for their degree Similarly GLS
employees are offered the opportunity to
study business administration at the same
university, and senior managers participate
in the Management Development Programme
aimed at enhancing their leadership skills

Promoting diversity

Royal Mall emplays a diverse mix of people
that reflects the communities we serve We
are committed to being an equal oppartunities
employer and we proactively seek to recruit
people from socially excluded groups It is

our policy to provide opportunities for our
employees based on an individual s
performance and skills, with ne discrimination
against protected characteristics®

We made significant progress in 2014-15
under the direction of our new Diversity
Counal Gender diversity has been a strength
of Royal Mail's diversity programme We were
named as one of The Times Top 50 Employers
for Women again m 2015 At our Board and
sentor management grades we have refatively
high gender diversity (see adjacent table)

At Board level, 33 per cent of members are
female On average FTSE 100 companies
have 23 5* per cent female representation

on ther boards

Our Board Diversity Policy 1s set out In the
Corporate Governance section

At senior management level 29 per cent

of emplayees are female compared to

14 per cent in operational functions We are
committed to improving the gender balance
across all areas of the busmess

Royal Mail s ethnic profile 1s broadly
representative of the UK population®

Arcund 10 per cent of our employees

declare themselves ta be from ethnic mimority
backgrounds We work with Business in the
Community s (BITC} Opportumty Now and
Race for Opportunity programmes, which
promote best practice in equal opportunities

As a Disability Two Ticks employer, Royat Mait
welcomes job applications from candidates
with a disability or health condition Qur
recruitment processes seek to ensure a fair
approach for people with disabilities and

we Interwiew all disabled applicants who meet
the rminimum criteria for a role We make
reasonable adjustments to the workplace to
support employees who becorne disabled We
also provide traming as required, for example
in assistive technology and software

We deliver deaf awareness training
workshops for hearing impaired employees,
their colleagues and managers We also focus
on ensuring those with disabilities are not
discriminated agamst through the provision of
anti-discrimimation workshops Approximately
six per cent of our employees have a disability

We are a member of Stonewall’s Diversity
Champions programme which campaigns for
equality for lesbian gay, bisexual and
transgender (LGBT) people We took steps

to better understand the needs of our LGBT
employees in 2015 by establishing an LGBT
and Friends steering group We atso piloted
a voluntary declaration m our Employee
Survey At the end of the reporting period
the Diversity Councit alsa established a SAME
(Black Asian and Mimority Ethnic) Steering
Group and a Disability Steering Group to
drive its work in these areas of our

Safety

The safety and wellbeing of our workforce i1s
an endunng priority for us Qur safety goal 15
to reduce the number of accidents to zero, a
commutment driven throughout the business
by a specific safety KP1in our Corporate
Balanced Scorecard

We continue to make progress driving down
accident rates We achieved a Lost Time
Accident Frequency Rate of 067 in 2014-15
{compared with 0 77 in 2013-14)

See KPIs pages 18 - 19

We were concerned when an increase in
absence was recorded due to sickness during
the early part of 2014-15, and that there
was a particular rise In cases of long-term
sickness We have set up a taskforce to work
across the busmess and have also rolled out
a new case management programme to
support employees unable to work as a
result of mental health and musculoskeletal
problems - two of the major causes of
long-term sickness at Royal Mail

We strive to improve our safety performance
in everything we do [t 1s with great regret that
we report four people dted n connection with
our activities in the UK in the past year At the
time of writing three of these were found not
to be attrhutable to Royal Mall undertakings

diversity strategy

UKPIL GLS
Gender distribution (number of people) Female Male Female Male
Royal Mail ple Board 3 [
Senior Management 664 1,646 36 251

Management
Administration
Dperational

1509 589
1566 1085 000 2308
18,810 111716 1,802 7.02

% This represents the number of attendees Actual number of colleagues may be lower as one person may have attended multiple training sessicns
* Race colour ethnic or national origin nationality disability marital or cvil partner status sexual orientation pregnancy or maternity age religian or belhef (including political opmion

m Northern Ireland) sex and gender reassignment

¢ The female FTSE Board Report 2015 Cranfield University School of Management

* 2011 Census data
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We lbaise closely with the relevant authorities
and undertake our own detailed mvestigations
to establish the root cause of each accident
and, where possible, to deterrmine what
lessons can be learned Findings are discussed
at Board level and communicated across

the Group

Our communities

In 2014-15, Royal Mall contnibuted

£76 million® directly to charities good
causes and schemes for disadvantaged
groups We also supported £533,000 of
colleague fundraising for charities and good
causes across the UK In addition our people
donated £2 5 millon to hundreds of charities
and goed causes through our award-winming
payroll giving programme

During the year, Royal Mall provided
£483,000 m matched giving and grants
schemes to support employees furdraisimg
for charities and good causes

Cur two-year partnership with Prostate
Cancer UK ended during the reporting
period We raised £2 34 milion for the
charity, mcluding matched giving This
funded positions far 36 specialist prostate
cancer nurses We won the Charity Times
Corporate National Partnership Champian
award for 2014 We also raised aver
£200 000 for our runner-up chanties,
Alzheimer s Society and Whizz-Kidz

In September 2014 we faunched a new
partnership with the Stroke Association
We hope to raise £2 million for the charity
to fund Life After Stroke grants for up to
10,000 stroke survivars

GLS uses its services to support good causes
across Europe During the run-up to
Chnstmas GLS Ireland transported presents
for children to Barnardo's centres, free of
charge In Germany GLS transports
mformation brachures for the breast cancer
charity, Brustkrebs eV, helping the charity
to reduce Its costs substantially

Qur suppliers

In the UK we contribute around £2 5 billion
annually procuring goods and services from
around 5 500 suppliers

We are committed to ensuring that our
suppliers mamtain high standards of social,
ethical and environmental conduct We expect
supphers to adhere to our Responsible
Procurement Code of Conduct Our Code

15 based on the UN Global Compact's 10
principles around good human rights, labour
and environmental practice and ants-
corruption In addition we encourage them

to set objectives to mprove their performance
in social, environmental and ethical 1ssues

Strategic repoart

Governance

Case study
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Eyes and ears in the hunt for missing people

In November 2014, we launched a partnership with the
charity Missing People, that puts postmen and women
at the forefront of the search for high nisk vulnerable
2dults and children in the UK

We distribute the chanity's missing people alerts
through our network of handheld scanners which are
usually used to track and sign for deliveries These
reach 124 Q00 of our people mvalved m collection,
processing and delivery of letters and parcels

We target messages to specific geographic areas to
ensure we reach postmen and women on the most
relevant collect:on and delivery routes When the scope
of the search for a missing person goes national we
broadcast alerts across our entire network leveraging
our full scale to support efforts to find them

This is the first trme that an organisation has made its
full range of business communication channels avallable
to support the charity’s efforts The launch of our
partnership was picked up by numerous national and
local print and broadcast media cutlets reaching an
estimated 18 million people

In 2014-15, we developed a new procurement
standard to ensure the agencies who provide
us with temporary employees meet our
standards on diversity We are working closely
with Peugeot to develop prototypes for
delivery vans with improved safety security
and fuel efficency In addition duning the

year we updated our governance process

so that contracts with critical social and
environmental risks are subject to

Board approval

We remain one of few companies globally to
hotd the Chartered Institute of Purchasing and
Supply's Platinum Standard for procurement
and supply chatn management

Ethical prinaiples are also embedded in the
Partner Code used by GLS Germany These
require suppliers working with GLS in the
distribution of parcels to adhere to principles
relating to anti-bribery and corruption and
health and safety

¢ Includes our mandated commitments to Articles for the Bund and BPMA totalling £4 & millon

Annual Report and Financal Statements 2014-15

Our environment

We aim to minimise the environmental impact
of our business operations Managmg and
reducing our impact in a responsible manner
will help us save costs, compete more effectively
and debiver a good service to our customers

In 2014, Rayal Mail became the first detivery
business to be awarded triple certification to

the Carbon Trust Standard for carbon, water
and waste This recogrises our achievements
In managig and reducing our impacts

During 2014-15, we took steps to

integrate environment management into

our Group-wide Safety, Health and Wellbemng
Management System This provides a
co-ordinated framework and structure to raise
the profile of environmental management and
help drive our programme forward

QOur Environment Policy Staternent overteaf
sets out our approach to environmental 1ssues
in our operations A full version of the Policy
can be accessed online at

www rovalmailgroup com/responsiility/
policies
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Corporate Responsibility (continued)

The table below sets aut our Group Scope 1
and Scope 2 carbon dioxide equivatent {C0,e)
emissians for 2014-15 Qur target is to achieve
a 20 per cent reduction n cur UKPIL emisstons
(including Scopes 1 2 and 3} by 2020-21,
compared to a 2004-05 baseline In 2014-15
our total UK carbon foctprint mcreased by

3 3 per cent’ compared to the previous year
On a normalised basis emissions rase by

3 & per cent per £1 mittion revenue Compared
with our baseline emissions are down by

16 per cent We believe we are on track to
achieve our long term target We diverted 78
per cent of waste from landfill last year,
surpassing our 2014-15 target of 70 per cent
We alse recorded a reduction of one per cent
1 our use of water during the year

In GLS enviranmental management and
performance 1s driven through its ThinkGreen
mnitative The programme has three key ams
to use resources responsibly reduce
emissions and optimise waste management
Key inittatives to help GLS achieve these
objectives include modernising the fleet and
butdings, optimising transport planning and
implementing local green measures

Our Enviranment Policy Statement
We commit to

+ Comply with all relevant legislation
regulations and other voluntary
commitments,

+ Prevent pollution incidents and manage
our environmental impacts through an
environmental management system
whuch aligns with 15014001

* Seek ways to contmue to mmprove our
environmental performance through
clear measurement and management
of aur impacts, mvestment in technology
and employee engagement This will be
delivered in partnership with Royal Mail
Group’s comprehensive programme for
continuaus tmpraovement

* Ensure our employees are fully engaged
with our programme of activity and act
in a responsible manner, and

* Work with Government industry
partners environmental organisations
and others to learn share and promote
environmental best practice and

Innovation
2014-15 CO,e Emissions by Scope (000 tonnes)®® Total UKPIL GLS
Scope 110 5005 4875 130
Scope 2 166 4 1454 210
Totat 6669 6329 340
Tonnes Cl,e per £1m revenue 708
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Human rights

We are committed to upholding human rights
both mternally and externally to the busmess
We commit to obeying the laws, rules and
regulations of every country tm which we
operate Inaddition we respect and support
the United Nations Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and the International Labour
Organization Fundamental Cenventions
covermg freedom of association. the abolition
of forced labour, equality and the elmmation
of child labour Qur commitments and
expectations - both for ourselves and for

our suppliers - are set out n our Corporate
Responsibility Policy and our Respansible
Procurement Code of Conduct

(www royalmailgroup com/responsibility/
policies) During 2015-16 we plan to
undertake a review of our business aganst
the UN Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights

This Strategic report was approved by the
Board on 20 May 2015

S

Emily Pang
Company Secretary

7 2013-14 data has been restated from ¢ 705 200 to ¢ 709 500 to include electricity losses assaciated with rail electricity losses

& Wea quanbfy and report aur arganisational greenhouse gas emissions according ta the Department for Envronment, Food & Rural Affars Envirormentat Reporting Guidelines 2013 and
have utiised the UK Gavernment 2014 Conversion Factars for Company Reparting m order to calculate C0, equwalent emizsions from corresponding activity data We have reported all
material Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions for which we consider ourselves responsible and exclude mmaterial sources such as fugitive emissions from ar cenditioning m owned vehicles

? (0,e emissions have heen assured by EY

ONatural gas data has been estimated for seven months this year due ta hiling problems at British Gas
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Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code} and its
statement requirements

The following sections explain how the
Campany apphes the mam principles set
out in the UK Corporate Governance Code
September 2012 issued by the Fmancial
Reporting Council {FRC) as required by
the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) and how it meets other
relevant requirements mcluding provisions
of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
of the FCA Both Codes are publicly
available at the website of the FRC

{www frc org uk)

The Board considers that the Company
complied with the full provisions of the
Code during the year

The FRC updated the UK Corporate
Governance Code in September 2014
The 2014 Code applies to reporting
periods begnning on or after 1 October
2014 This means the changes will apply
for the Company with effect from April
2015 for annual reporting in 2015-16

Annyal Report and Finanaa! Statements 2014-15

Chairman’s introduction

Dear Sharehaolder

The Board of the Company 15 committed to
ensuring that it provides effective leadership
and promotes uncompromising ethical
standards One of the ways in which the
Board achieves this 1s by requirmg that

good governance principles and practices
are adhered to throughout the Company
The Board determmed that the following

1s a helpful summary of its role

Good corporate governance 1s about helping
to run the Company well

It mvolves ensuring that an effective internal
framework of systems and controls 1s put n
place which clearly defines authority and
accountahility and promates success whilst
permitting the management of risk to
appropriate levels It involves the exercise

of judgement as to the definitions of success
the appropriateness of risk and the levels of
delegation to the Executive The exercise of
this Judgement is the responsibility of the
Board and involves constderation of processes
and assumptions as well as outcomes

It also involves the creation of a sensitive
interface for the views of shareholders and
other stakeholders to be given appropriate
consideration when reaching these judgements

The Executive team I1s required to provide
such information to the Board as the Board
needs to enable 1t to exercise its judgement
over these matters

There 1s a very fine distinction between the
approval of processes and therr defimition
Wherever possible, It s the role of the

Board to approve process rather than imitiate
or define it Only exceptionally would the
Board mtervene to mitiate or define

Financal statements Other infarmation

The Board also sets the tone for the Company
The way i which 1t conducts itself its attitude
to ethical matters, its defimitions of success
and the assessment of appropriate risk atl
define the atmosphere withm which the
Executive team works

Good corporate governance 1s not about
adhering to codes of practice {although
adherence may constitute a part of the
evidence of good governance) but rather about
the exercise of a mindset to do what 1s right

One of the challenges facing any Board 15

the way m which the Non-Executive and the
Executive Directars interact It 1s clear that
they each have the same legal responsibility
but it 1s generally unrealistic to expect
Executive Directors to speak individually

with the same freedom as the Non-Executive
Directors Equally, Executive Directars who
just toe the executive kne m contradiction

of thetr own views may not be effectively
contributing to good governance A well-
functioning Board needs to find the right
balance between hearing the collective
Executive view and being aware of the natural
internal tensions In an Executive team

MNotwithstanding the tensions created by many
external expectations, which may be wholly or
in part unrealistic a successful Board should,
ideally be composed of a group of respected,
experienced, like-minded but diverse people
who coalesce around a cornmon purpose

of promoting the long-term success of the
Company provide a unified vision of the
definitions of success and appropriate risk
endeavour to support management {ie those
who honestly criticise at times but encourage
all the time) and who create confidence in all
stakeholders i the integrity of the busimess

41
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Chairman’s introduction

to Corporate Governance (continued)

A Board meeting should feel like 2 meeting

at which everyone 1s participating to solve
problems together Above all all participants
should be able to say after a Board meeting
that value has been added as a result of the
meeting taking place This added value will
come i many forms challenge advice clarity
imagimnation support sharing of problems

or creating strategic mtent The list 1s not
exhaustive

Board membership is for 365 days of the year
Board responsibiities do not start and end
with formal meetmgs Board members,

on the Company s and theirr own mitiative
should endeavour to engage outside meetings
to bring their experience to the assistance

of the Executive team wherever possible

42

Above all there should be a sense of value
added from the engagement of the Board
members in all ther mteraction with the
Company formal or otherwise

To enhance its performance and effectiveness
the Board sets itself explicit objectives which
are separate from chjectives set for the
Company and for the Chief Executive Officer,
following the outcome of the Board appraisal
process for the prior year In relation to the
objectives for the year ended 29 March 2015
the Board has regularly monitored its
performance aganst these and has found
this process adds value

Donald Brydon, CBE
Chairman
20 May 2015
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Board of Directors

Donald Brydan, CBE N* R
Chairman

Appointed te the Board?: & September 20132

Key areas of prior experience. Finance,
manufacturmg governance insurance

Current external appointments
* Charrman of The Sage Group plc

» Chairman of the Medical Research Council
» Charman of Chance to Shine

e Charman of TWBT Ltd

+ Director, Science Museum Foundation

* Director, The Foundation of Science and
Technology

« Patron of the British Postal Museumn

Previous relevant experience:

+ 20 years with Barclays Group during
which time he was Chairman and Chief
Executive of BZW Investment Management
and acting Chief Executive of BZW

e 15 years with the AXA Group including
holding the posts of Chairman and Chief
Executive of AXA Investment Managers
and Charrman of AXA Framlngton

« Chairman of Smiths Group

« Chawrman of the London Metal Exchange
¢ Chawman of Amersham plc

+ (Charman of Taylor Nelson Sofres plc

¢ Chawrman of IFS School of Finance

* Chairman of EveryChild an international
childrens charity

* Director of Alled Domecq ple, Scottish
Power plc and AXA UK plc

Moya Greene C*
Chief Executive Officer

Appomted to the Board®; 6 September 2013

Key areas of prior experience Postal
sector finance retal transport

Current external appointments
* Non-Executive Director of Great-West
Lifeco Inc

Previous relevant expenence
¢ President and Chief Executive Officer of
Canada Post Corporation

¢ Assistant Deputy Minister for Transport
Canada

» Semor Vice President, and Chief
Admunistration Officer Retail Products,
at Canadian Impenal Bank of Commerce

* Vice Charman of Purolator Courier Ltd
a Canadian express parcel company

* Semor Vice President for aperational
effectiveness at Bombardier

* Non-Executive Director of Tim Hortons In¢
in Canada Member of the Audit
Commuttee Human Resources Commuttee
and Remuneration and Compensation
Committee

+ Managing Director Infrastructure Finance
at TD Securities Inc

! The Dwrector was apponted on 6 September 2013 to the Board of Royal Mail Limited which changed its name to

Royal Mail plc on 19 September 2013

2 Appointed Charrman of Royal Mall Holdmgs plc on 26 March 2009
3 The Directar was appointed on 6 September 2013 to the Board of Reyal Mail Limited which changed its name to

Royal Mail plc on 19 September 2013

¢ Appeinted Sensor Independeny Director of Royal Marl Haldings plc on 1 Aprd 2011
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Orna Ni-Chionna A N R*
Senior Independent Non-Executrve Director

Appointed to the Board*- 20 Septernber 2013

Key areas of prior experience Consumer
focus retall strategy

Current external appointments
» Charr of Client Service at Eden McCallum
LLP

* Non-Executive Director of Saga plc
¢ Deputy Charrman of the National Trust

Previous relevant experience
s Partner at McKinsey & Company

s Senior Independent Director of HMV plc
Northern Foods plc and BUPA

+ Non-Executive Director of Bank of Ireland
UK Holdings plc and Bristol & West plc

Key to membership of Board Committees
A Audit and Risk Committee

N Nomination Commuttee

P Pensions Committee

R Remuneration Committee

C Chief Executve s Committee (CEC)

* Chair of the Commuttee
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Matthew Lester P C
Chief Finance Qfficer

Appomted to the Board® & September 2013

Key areas of prior experience. Finance,
accounting consumer goods financial
services

Current external appointments
» Non-Executive Director of Man Group plc

* Mamn committee member of the 100 Group
of Fmance Directors and Chairman of its
Investor Relations and Markets Comnittee

Previous relevant experience
* Group Finance Director at ICAP plc

* Group Fmancial Controller and Group
Treasurer Diageo plc

+ Held positions at Klemwort Benson after
qualifymg as a chartered accountant with
Arthur Andersen
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John Allant A
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board- 20 September 2013

Key areas of prior experience Retall postal
sector logistics

Current external appointments.

e Charman of Barratt Developments plc Ship
Midco Limited (tradmg as WorldPay Limited)
and London First (from 1 January 2015}

* Charman of Tesco PLC from (1 March 2015}
* Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the
DHL UK Foundation

Previous relevant experience:

= Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent
Director of Dixons Carphone plc {resigned
17 February 2015)

* Senior executive and corporate Board
member of Deutsche Post World Net

» Chief Financial Officer and corporate Board
member of Deutsche Post DHL

® (Chief Executive Dfficer of Exel plc a supply
chain logistics company

e Charman of Care UK Health & Social Care
Holdmgs Limited

« Non-Executive Director of the Home Office
Supervisory Board

* Non-Executive Director at PHS Group plc.
1SS A/S, National Grid ple Wolseley pic,
Hamleys plc 31 plc and Connell plc

= Senior adviser to Alix Partners
* Regent of the University of Edinburgh
TResigned as Non-Executive Director an 30 April 2015
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Nick Horler AN
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 20 September 2013

Key areas of prior expertence. Retal,
energy transport

Current external appointments:
» Charman of Alderney Renewable
Energy Ltd

+ Charman of Meter Prowvida Ltd
¢ Chawman of Alder and Allan

« Non-Executive Director of The Go-Ahead
Group plc {member of Audit Remuneration
and Nomination Committees)

* Non-Executive Director of Thames Water
Utilities Limited

Previous relevant experience
e Chief Executive Officer of Scottish Power

» Managing Oirector Retail and Board
member of £ ON UK plc

* Managmg Oirector of Powergen Energy
Trading Limited

Directors’ origimal appointment dates to the Board of a Royal Mail parent company

Director Royal Mail Holdings plc Royal Mail Group Limsted
Donald Brydon CBE 27 January 20092 1 Aprit 2012

Moya Greene 15 July 2010 1 Apri 2012

Orna Ni-Chionna 1 June 2010° 1 April 2012

Matthew Lester 24 November 2010 1 Apnl 2012

John Allan - 14 January 2013

Nick Horler 1 Aprit 2010 1 Apnl 2012

Cath Keers 1 June 2010 1 April 2012

Paul Murray 1 August 2009 1 April 2012

Les Owen 27 January 2010 1 April 2012

This table shows the dates that the Dhirectors were appomted to the Board of Royal Mail
Holdings ple, the parent Company until 1 April 2012, and the Board of Royal Mail Group Limited,

the parent Campany untit 12 September 2013

# The Director was appointed on 6 September 2013 to the Board of Royal Mail Limited which ¢hanged its name to

Royal Mail plc on 19 September 2013
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Cath Keers AN
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 20 September 2013

Key areas of prior experience Retail
consumer focus

Current external appointments:

+ Non-Executive Director of Home Retail
Group plc and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee since July 2012

* Non-Executive Director of the msurance
group Liverpool Victora Friendly Society
Limited (LV=)

Previous relevant experience
e Customer Director and Marketing Director
of 02 UK

+ Various marketmng strategy and business
development roles at Next, BSkyB Avon
and Thorn EM|
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Paul Murray A*P R
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 20 September 2013

Key areas of prior experience, Finance,
energy technology

Current external appointments
* Non-Executive Director of Independent
Oiland Gas plc

e Non-Executive Director of Naked
Energy Ltd

s Non-Executive Director of Qinetiq
Group plc

* Non-Executive Director of Ventive Ltd

* Audit Committee Chairman at Qmetiqg
Group plc

Previous relevant expenence
o Senmor Independent Director of Taylor
Nelson Sofres plc

* Non-Executive Director of Thomson SA
and of Tangent Communications plc

* Group Finance Director of Carlton
Communications plc and of LASMO plc

Board attendance

Fimanaial statements
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Les Owen AR P*
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board. 20 September 2013

Key areas of prior experience Finance,
Pens(ons INsurance

Current external appointments,

Non-Executive Chairman of Jelf Group plc
Non-Executive Director of Computershare

Non-Executive Director of Discovery
Holdings a South African listed health and
life msurer

Previous relevant experience

Group Chief Executive Officer of AXA Asia
Pacific Holdings Limited

Chief Executive Officer of AXA Sun Life plc
a member of the Globat AXA Group
Executive Board and responsible for AXAs
Asian Life Insurance and Wealth
Management operations

Non-Executive Director of Post Office
Limited

Non-Executive Director of Just Retirement
Group ple

Non-Executive Director of CPP Group plc

During the year, the Directors attended the following number of meetings of the Board

Eligibte

to attend Attended
Total number of meetings 12
Chairman
Donald Brydon 12 12
Executive Directors
Moya Greene 12 11+
Matthew Lester i2 12
Non-Executive Directors
John Allan 12 12
Nick Horler 12 18
Cath Keers i2 11¢
Paul Murray 12 12
Orna Ni-Chienna 12 11°
Les Owen 12 11

* Moya Greene was unable to attend the Beard meeting on 18 July 2014 due te prior engagements

® Nick Horler was unable to attend the Board meeting on 18 July 2014 due to prior engagements

¢ Cath Keers was unable to attend the Board meeting on 28 January 2015 due to prior engagements

@ Qrna Ni-Chtonna was unable to attend the Board meeting on 21 January 2015 due to prior engagements
E Les Owen was unable to attend the Beard meeting an 29 March 2015 due to ilness
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Board of Directors (continued)

Changes to the Board during the year
* Jan Babiak resigned from the Royal Mail
plc Board of Directors on 29 April 2014

* Mark Higson resigned from the Board and
left the business following the AGM on
24 July 2014

* Donald Brydon informed the Board in
January 2015 of his mtention to step down
from the Board The Senior Independent
Director (SID), Orna Ni-Chionna has
irbiated a process to appoint his successor
Donald wall continue to chair the Board
until at least the 2015 AGM

* Followmg his appointment as charman of
Tesco PLC John Allan informed the Board
in February 2015 of his mtention to stand
down as a Non-Executive Director It was
confirmed on 20 March 2015 that he
would resign as a Non-Executive Director
with effect from 30 April 2015

There have been no other changes to the
Board during the year

Board diversity policy

Diversity including professional, international
and ethnic diversity 1s a key factor when
assessing the Board's compaosition It ensures
there i1s the correct balance of skills,
experience and expertise amongst Non-
Executive Directors, to lead decision-making
and assess the performance and strategy of
the Company

The Board has adopted a Board Dwersity
Policy to ensure transparency and diversity
in making appointments to the Board on
the recommendatton of the Nomimation
Committee This policy expresses the
commutment to prmciples of non-
discrmination against protected
characteristics® and to the promotion of

far participation and equality of opportunity
for all The Board assesses whether it is
compliant with that policy through its Board
effectiveness review The Board has also
adopted within this policy a process for Board
appointments (including procedures for

appointing a new Chairman) where an
appomtment becomes necessary following

a resignation or addittonal characteristics are
identified as necessary during the Board
effectiveness review

The gender balance of the Board 1s also taken
into consideration when recruiting a new
Non-Executive Director This is reflected by
the current composition of the Board We are
one of the few companies in the FTSE 100
that has a female Chief Executive Officer and
at 29 March 2015, two of the six
Non-Executive Directors (33 3 per cent)
ncluding the SID, were also female The
Commuttee does not feel that it s approprate
to set a quota regarding the number of
women on the Board but will look to mamtam
a strong representation of women on the
Board

The data depicted below 1s at 29 March 2015

L R Y] “esrsssssanvInee

¢ Race calour ethnic or national arigin nationalty disability marital or el partner status sexual orientation pregnancy or maternity age religion or helief (includng political opinion

in Northern Ireland) sex and gender reassignment
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Statement of Corporate Governance

Board Responsibtlities

Role of the Board

The Board 15 responsible for setting the
objectives and strategy far the Group and
for monitoring its performance and risk
management The Board has adopted terms
of reference setting out its duties and
obligations and has defined those matters
that are reserved exclusively for its
consideration These include the approval

of strategic plans, financial statements,
acquisitions and disposals major contracts
projects and capital expenditure The Board
has also developed objectives as a framework
for its work for the next 18 months and
progress in achieving these objectives is
reviewed at each Board meeting

Board focus

Some of the key areas of facus during the
year were as follows {a number of these areas
are also considered by the Board committees)

The Groups Strategy

Revenue growth i core and new areas
Productivity and efficiency

New technology,

Senior management talent,

Health and Safety

Compliance and regulation,

Investor and shareholder relatsons,
General Logistic Systems and

Board effectiveness

Expected focus for the next year

The Groups Strategy,

Compliance and regulation

Revenue growth in core and new areas
Productivity efficiency and cost reduction,
Technology

Review of Board composition,

Channel strategies and

» Health and Safety

Board Committees

Certan responsibilities are delegated by the
Board to the Commuttees {shown in the
following diagram) The details of these Board
Commttees are autlimed later in this report
The chair of each of the Board Committees
reports to the Board on matters discussed
at Committee meetings and highlights any
significant 1ssues requiring the Board s
attention Reports on the work of the Audit
and Risk Committee Nomination Committee
and Pensions Committee during the year are
given on pages 50-56 The work of the
Remuneration Committee can be found on
page 57 and in the Directors remuneration
report on pages 64-75

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

Shareholder relations

Communication with shareholders 15 given
high priority A full Annual Report and
Financial Statements is sent to all
shareholders who wish to receive one and
there are presentations after our
announcement of the half year and full year
results which are available to watch live and
on replay on our website All mformation on
our actvities published financial results and
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
can be found on our Comnpany website,
www royalmailgroup com

There 15 regular dialogue with our instituetional
shareholders The Chairman and the SID are
also availahle to consult with shareholders

The Board regularly receives an update on
interaction with investors and shareholders

to ensure that the Board has an understanding
of their views In addition the SID provides a
pomnt of contact for those shareholders who
wish to raise 1ssues with the Board, other
than through the Charman

The AGM 15 used to communicate with all
investors and the Board welcomes their
participation

Board infoermation

The Board recewes busmess and fmancial
performance reports at each Board meeting
as well as standing reports on Health and
Safety and from the Company Secretary

In addstion, Directors have access to a Board
information archive containing background
and supporting documents for reference in
performance of their duties The Directors
receve regular updates on developments n
matters such as corporate governance These
processes enable the Company to comply with
the provisions of the Caode requiring the timely
provision of information to Directors

Risk management and internal controls
The Board 1s responsible for mamtainmng a risk
management and internal control system and
for managing principal risks faced by the
Group This s described m more detail in the
Audit and Risk Committee Report on

pages 50- 54

Board Roles
Role of the Chairman
The Chairman’s responsibilities include

* Chamng meetings of the Board and
general meetings of the Company,

= Setting the Board's agenda and ensurmg
that adequate time 1s available for
discusston of all agenda items, in particular
strategic 1ssues

+ Setting clear expectations concerning the
Companys culture values and behaviours,

* Ensuring the Board determines the nature
and extent of significant risks that the
Company 1s willing to embrace n
implementing its strategy

* Ensuring the Board has effective decision-
making processes and applies sufficient
challenge to major proposals,

» Encouraging all Board members to engage
in Board and Committee meetings by
drawing on therr skills experience
knowledge and where appropriate,
independence

s [Developing productive warking
relationships with the Chuef Executive
Officer and Executive Directors and
canstructive relations between Executive
Dwrectors and Non-Executive Directors

e Ensuring effective communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders and
that Directors are made aware of ther
views, and

* Ensuring the performance of the Board
its Committees and mdmnidual Directors
1s evaluated at least once a year and to
act on the results of such evaluatians
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Statement of Corporate Governance (continued)

Role of the Non-Executive Directors
The Board considers that each of the
Non-Executive Directors 1s ndependent
This means that m the view of the Board they
have no links to the Executive Directors and
other managers and no husiness or other
relattonship with the Company that coutd
interfere with their judgement The Board
at least annually reviews and authorises
the schedule of Directors mterests including
any potential conflicts

Each Non-Executive Director plays an
nstrumental role in the decisions that are
made by the Board and its Committees

They chatlenge Management regarding the
performance of the Company with regard to
the Company's goals and objectives They also
momitor financial controls and the systems

of risk management

The Non-Executive Directors and the
Chawrman met on a number of occasions
during this period without the Executive
Directors being present These meetings

are an important way to develop the workmng
relationships between the Non-Executive
Directors and to assess the performance

of Management

In accordance with the requirements of

the Code the terms of appomtment for the
Non-Executive Directors are available for
mspection at the Companys registered office
during normal office hours and they will be
made available at the AGM for a period of
15 mmutes prior to the commencerent of
the meeting and also during the meeting

Role of the Semior Independent Director
As recommended by the Code the Board
appointed Orna Ni-Chionna gne of its
independent Non-Executive Directors to be
the SID The SID 1s available to meet with
shareholders if they have concerns that the
normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer or other Executive Directors have
failed to resolve or for which such channels

of communication are mappropriate

The SID met with the Non-Executive Directors
and Executive Directars during the year to
assess the performance of the Chairman

48

Role of the Company Secretary

Directors may take independent professional
advice in the furtherance of their duties at the
Group's expense All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary the appointment and removal of
whom 1s a matter for the Board as a whole
The Company Secretary ensures Board
procedures are followed and regularly
reviewed and s a source of advice to the
Chairman and the Board on implementation
of the Code

Board composition

At the end of the year the Board of Royal Mall
plc comprised a Chairman two Executive
Directors and six Non-Executive Directors
Prior to their appoitment as Directors of the
Company, each of the Directars had been

a Director of Royal Mail Group Limited The
biographies of each of the Directors, setting
out thew current roles, commitments and
previous experience, are on pages 43 - 45

Board terms of appointment

Time commitments

The terms of appontment for the Non-
Executive Directors require them to devote a
mmmum of two days a month to warking for
the Company - although in practice they tend
to devote more time than the mimimum
requirement

The Non-Executive Directors were required
to declare their other significant commitments
prior to their appomtment and the Board 1s
nformed of any subsequent changes The
Company has announced to the London Stock
Exchange any changes to their directorships
on the boards of other publicly quoted
companies since the Company s privatisation

The Board 15 confident that all its members
have the knowledge talent and experienice to
perform the functions required of a Diector
of the business Executive Directors have
rolling 12-menth cantracts and Non-
Executive Directors are generally appainted
for three-year terms There 15 also a clear
dwision of responsibilities between the
Chasrman and the Chief Executive Officer

QOutside appomtments

The Board believes that there are significant
benefits to both the Group and the mdividual
from Executive Directors accepting non-
executive directorships of cormpanies outside
the Group The Board’s approach Is normally
to limit Executive Directors to one non-
executive directorship for which the Director
may retam the fees

Director induction and training

On appointment all the Directors take part
in an induction programme i which they
receive information about the Group, the role
of the Board and matters reserved for its
decision the role of the principal Board
Committees the Groups Corporate
Governance arrangements and the latest
financial mformation about the Group This
15 supplemented by visits to key business
locations and meeting key personnel

Chairman’s appointment

A Board subcommittee chaired by the SID and
comprising all the Non-Executwe Directors
has been established to help with the process
of appointing a new Charrman

An international search firm the Zygos
Partnership {who has not previously had

a busmess refationshep with the Company
and therefore 1s not subject to any conflicts
of interest), was appomted to assist

with this process

Royal Mail plc
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Governance

Strategic report

Board Effectiveness Review

The effectiveness of the Board, its Committees the Executive and Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman was assessed in 2014 by an
external consultancy {who has not previously had a business relationship with the Company and therefore 1s not subject to any conflicts of
interest} Independent Board Evaluation This independent team observed several Board and Committee meetings with supporting matenials
provided as pre-reading by the Company The external consultant also conducted mdividua! mterviews with each Board member and other
relevant stakeholders such as senior executives and managers Participants were interviewed according to a set agenda tailored for the Board
The review covered a range of topics including succession planning, operations, composition, skills and experience diversity how the Board works
together governance and compliance

The Board has made good progress withm its first year as a bisted company and s dedicated to build upon this The Board 1s also cammitted to
the success of the Campany and demaonstrated this in their support to the senigr management team durimg the [nitial Public Offering The results
were encouraging and a number of improvements were identified Actions for the year have been agreed and several actions have already been
undertaken A summary of the actions are listed below

Culture and Dynamics

Insights Actions agreed/Undertaken

Management information Traming has been delivered to ensure that the mitial nformation flow
to the Board 15 sucemct and fit for purpose Improvements have been
made to the timing and delivery of information

Engagement with the senior management Continue to engage mformally with the senior management and have
a good understanding of ther roles and respansihilities for talent
management, for example regular meetngs for Board Members
and Sernvyor Managers have been established

Strategy and Operations

Insights Actions agreed/Undertaken
Strategy sessions Continue to focus on the Board's longer-term blue-sky thinking and
time has been set aside for this

Risk management The Board continues to ensure appropriate debate Is given to key
business risk management issues An additional Audit and Risk
Committee meeting has been scheduled to discuss amongst other
matters Risk Management 1ssues

Entrepreneurship Encourage entrepreneurship through the busmess, whilst maintamning
the right checks and balances

Composition and Tenure

Insights Actions agreed/Undertaken
Succession Planning To continue to focus on succession and talent management
Board traming and induction To refresh the Board induction process and to provide governance

tramning for Directors as well as reviewing the overall education
programme Refresher tranmg on governance was provided to the
Board n March 2015

Board composition/Skils A review of the Board skills will be carried out to identify and align
them to the Company s strategy A process has been mitiated to appomt
the Chairmans successar Characteristics were identified for addtional
appomtments to mclude strategic skills as well as factors such as
diversity customer experience and international experience

Annual Report and Finanoial Statements 2014-15 49




Statement of Corporate Governance {continued)

Audit and Risk Committee report

Introduction from the Chair

Dear Shareholder,

The Commuttee has two mam areas of
responsibility The first is to review and
recommend to the Board all financial
statements and disclosures The second I1s
to satisfy itself that internal controls and risk
management processes put in place by the
management team are working effectively
The Commuttee gets mdependent assurance
from the Groups Internal Audit and Risk
Management (JA and RM) function and atso
recewves regular reports from the Compliance
function as well as the external auditor (EY)
across a wide range of 1ssues in support of
their respective oversight responsibilities
The Commuttee 1s further supported by the
Risk Management Committee (RMC) a
management committee of the Chief
Executive’s Committee with a reporting line
to the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) The
RMC’s key responsibilities are to drive the
monitoring dentification and management
of key risks i the organisation

Alongside myself the members of the
Commuttee are all mdependent Mon-Executive
Directors - Orna Ni-Chionna, John Aflan
(resigned 30 April 2015) Mick Horler,

Cath Keers and Les Owen

During the year the Comrmittee contmued to
challenge the assumptions and judgements
made by Management in determiming the
half year and full year financial results of the
Company and to assess for appropriateness
their disclosure in the finanaal statements
We reviewed the Group Risk Profile on a
quarterly basis with particular focus on risks
where likelihood or impact had changed or
mcreased along with thewr supporting action
plans to manage those risks We paid
particular attention to the nisks posed to
Royal Mail by direct detivery (see Business
risks page 33) and our significant T
transformation programme We also recerved
updates on three internal audit reports which
were rated as unsatisfactory to establish
whether appropriate actions had been taken
and the concerns raised by the reports had
been resolved
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In light of the public focus on supplier rebates,
we sought to reconfirm our supplier
agreements and the accounting treatment

of any rebate arrangements that are In place
No significant rebates were identified and
those that were in place were accounted

for appropriately

Following the French Competition Authority
mvestigatian of GLS France (along with other
parcels distribution companies, atleging
anti-competitive practices and ilegal price-
fixing), we reviewed the compliance
framework and rts implementatien across the
Group Where weaknesses were identified we
approved the necessary actions to strengthen
the framework including enhanced multi-
jurisdictional traiming and commumications

ta emphasise the impaortance of compliance
throughout the Group

Audit tender

In early 2014, the Committee decided to
mnitiate a competitive audit tender process

in lrght of emergmg best practice, new
requirements with respect to audit tenure and
the fact that the existing auditor, EY, had been
the incumbent since 1986 without any tender
process having been undertaken Durmg the
vear a ‘Tender Working Team, nominated by
the Committee undertook an audit tender
process The team comprised myself John
Allan and Les Owen, supported by relevant
experts within the business At the beginning
of the process, we approached nine firms

to assess their mterest in participating n the
audit tender ther ability to perform the audit,
and to confirm their independence
Subsequently, three audit firms took part i
the tender process The information gathermg
phase of the tender invotved the provision by
Royal Mal! of relevant mformation via a secure
data room a day at the Shared Service Centre
in Chesterfield to hold discussions with
indmduals key to the audit process a meeting
m London with senior fmance management
from GLS, followed by meetings with the Chief
Finance Officer and the Non-Executive
Directors on the Tender Working Team

In July 2014, each frm submitted a proposal
docurnent that included an audit plan and
approach {with particular reference to certan
accountmg challenges specific to Royal Mat)
details of their proposed team and a critique
of the Royal Mail plc consoldated Annuat
Report and Fiancial Statements 2013-14
Presentations were then made to the Tender
Working Team m August 2014

The Tender Working Team assessed the
proposals an the basis of the audit firms
proposed approach their understanding of
the husmess and its specific requirements for
the statutory and regulatory audit the quality

of ther proposed audit teams including
consideratton of continuity and succession
plans, their capability to provide the necessary
assurance to the Committee across the Group
review of ther May 2014 FRC Audit Quality
Inspection Reports and the proposed fee
guantum and structure Feedback from key
mdviduals mvalved in the audit tender process
was also taken into consideration

Following a thorough review of the praposals
the Tender Working Team selected KPMG as
external auditor, with Richard Pinckard as
audit engagement partner The Committee
supported this conclusion and in September
2014 recommended to the Board that KPMG
be appointed auditor to the Group The
proposal to appamt KPMG as external auditer
will be put to the 2015 AGM for shareholder
approval

Paul Murray
Charr Audit and Risk Committee

Commuttee membership and attendance

Eligthle

to attend Attended
Total number
of meetings 5
Chair
Paul Murray 5 5
Members
Jahn Allan 5 4
Nick Horler 5 5
Orpa Ni-Chionna 5 5
Les Gwen 5 5
Cath Keers 5 5

Meetings of the Committee were also
attended, where relevant by the Chairman

of the Baard, the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Finance Officer, other members of semor
management and representatives from the
external auditor, EY The Board constders that
a number of the members of the Committee
have recent and relevant financial experience
i particular Paul Murray (the Charr) and

Les Owen

Audit and Risk Commuttee Terms of
Reference

The full terms of reference for the Committee
can be found on our website

www royalmailgroup com/about-us/
management-committees/audit-and-risk-
committee

Rayal Mail ple
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Key areas of focus during the year
Matters the Committee considered during
the year mclude

= Finanaal reporting, particularly in
considering mformation presented by
management on sigruficant accounting
Judgemnents and palicies adapted m respect
of the Company s half year and full year
results and the assessment of whether the
Annual Report and Financal Statements
were far, balanced and understandable

+ Risk management and mternal control
recewving regular updates from |A and RM
on the resuilts of their reviews and risk
management mandatory standards

+ Corporate Governance Framewark

+ Compliance Framework mncluding recewing
quarterly updates from the Group
Compliance team on areas within their
oversight remit and

+ Technology and the risks posed by the
major transformation programme the
Company 1s undertaking

Key areas of focus for next year
+ Best practice in external reporting

* Parcels strategy and automation

Strategic report
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» Technology and the stabilisation of services
and benefits delivered by the major
transformatton programme, and

+ The requirements of the 2014 Corporate
Governance Code including the new
viability statement

Meeting cycle and agenda items
The Committee uses a meeting tracker
approved once a year which provides a
framework for each meeting agenda

Durmg 2014-15 the Committee met five times

* One meetimg related to the French
Competition Authority mvestigatron

Of the four regular meetings

+ Two meetings manly focused on the half
year and full year results and

* Two meetings mainly focused on internal
audit and nisk management

However all regular meetngs contan
elements of both fimancial reporting and
internal audit and risk management, with
reports from the Group Financial Controller
and the Director of |A and RM being standing
items on all agendas

Key activity in relation to the finanaal statements
The mamn areas of focus for the Committee durng the year m relatton to the financial statements were

Financial statements Other mmformation

Rebance on external and in-house
experts

The Groups actuary Towers Watson Limited,
provides expert opinion and long-term
assumption advice with respect to pension
accounting and the assessment of other
long-term liabilities The Committee has
concluded that Towers Watson Limited has
the necessary expertise and resources

The Committee also relies on

* Advice and mformation provided by the
General Counsel with respect to specific
provisions and other contingent liahilities
and

* An independent survey of households to
statistically calculate a distribution using
95 per ¢ent confidence limit which 1s used
to estimate the number/value of stamps
that have been bought by the public but
not used

The external auditor had full access to these
experts and, using thewr own actuarial and
statistical experts, was able to provide further
assurance to the Committee on these matters
The Committee 15 satisfied that the General
Counsel has or has access to, the relevant
necessary expertise and resources and that
the company conducting the statistical surveys
also has the relevant necessary expertise

and resources

Matter considered

What the Committee did

New matters arising in the year

French Competition Authority mvestigation (£46 miltion, see

note 4 on page 86 and note 20 on page 120)

In October 2014 Royal Mall entered mto a settlement agreement with
the French Competition Authority in respect of the alleged breaches of
antitrust laws by one of its subsidiaries GLS France during the period
before the end of 2010 At the half year a proviston of £18 million was
raised for the anticipated fine and associated costs (comprised of

£12 million for the anticipated fine and £6 million for the associated
costs) At the full year, the provision for the anticipated fine has been
reassessed to be £40 million m light of further correspondence wath
the French Competition Authority and their approach in other recent
cases Of the £6 million provision for the assocated costs, £4 million
has been utilised to date

The actua! fine to be imposed will not be known until the second half of
2015-16 and the level of provision recorded at the half and full year for
the anticipated fine and associated costs 1s a matter of judgement
hased on legal advice

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

A range of potential outcomes from the mvestigation was presented by
Management, based on external legal adwice with ther best estimate
of a potential fine selected

The Committee reviewed and challenged Management's assumptions
and invited EY's views on the proposed level of provision

The Committee wilt continue to scrutinise the level of provision and
ensure that it 1s adjusted appropriately until the proceedings are
concluded and the fine and associated costs are paid
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Statement of Corporate Governance (continued)

Matter considered

What the Committee did

Non-GAAP measures of performance - disclosure

(see Financial Review on page 24 and Significant

accounting policies on page 131)

The Group has moved to a presentation of profit and loss on an
adjusted basis that excludes specific tems and reports movements on
an underlying basis

From March 2015 this will mclude a specific tem adjusting the mecome
statemnent pension charge for the actual cash cost of pensions

Management believes that the use of certain non-GAAP measures
assists with the understanding of the performance of the Group The
Committee discussed Management's proposal to move to an adjusted
measure of profit at the November 2014 and March 2015 meetings

We challenged the various adjustments proposed and the disclosure
of the non-GAAP measures in {ight of the requirement for the annual
report and financial statements to be fawr, balanced and understandable

We concluded that the disclosure of non-GAAP measures does assist
with the understandmg of the performance of the business

Ongoing matters constdered due to their materiality and/or the application of judgement

Advance customer payments

(£286 million, see note 27 on page 127}

The Group estimates the amounts of stamps and meter credits that
have been sold but not used prior to the half year and year end

Although the relevant survey and extrapolation Is ¢conducted by an
independent company the leve! at which a stamp holding 1s considered
to be abnarmal and therefore excluded from the estimate 15 a
judgement made by management This jJudgement impacts revenue
profit and net assets

Royal Mail Defined Benefit Pension Surplus

(£3.179 million, see balance sheet and note 8 on page 93)
The valuation of the pension labibities relies on the estimation of
long-term assumptions such as RPI/CPI and mortality Small
rmovements N these assumptions can lead to matenal impacts on
the balance sheet

in view of the complexity of accounting for pension schemes, significant
focus is required cn the associated disclosure to ensure that it is far,
balanced and understandable

Industrial diseases claims provision

(£81 million, see note 20 on page 120)

The Group is liable for clarms brought by employees {past and current)
and by mndividuals who were employed in the General Post Office
Telecommunications dvision and whose employment ceased prior to
October 1981 The provision covers the estimate of claims that could
be recewed over the next 25-40 years Changes to the provision will
impact the income statement and net assets

Impact of changing employment legislation

(see Business risks on page 34)

The Group has a large workforce and changes to laws and
regulations relating to employment can have a significant effect on
the Groups results

The Commuttee cantinued to review and challenge the methodology
and ocutcome from the statistical survey at the half year and full year
along wath the judgement made by Management as to the level at
which a stamp holding 1s considered abnormal We compared the level
of deferred income recogrised by Management at each reporting
pertod to ensure a consistent application

Separately the auditor used their own experts to review the statistical
processes and assess the judgemental assurmption

We concluded that the level of deferred revenue remamed appropnate

Key long-term assumptions were prepared by the Groups actuary
Towers Watson Limited and benchmarked to prevailing economic
mdicators and other large pension schemes The assumptions were
reviewed and approved by the Pensions Cormmittee (see Report on
page 56) All of these assumptions are disclosed m note 8 to the
financial statements Changes in the assumptions were summansed for
the Committee and explanations prowvided for the returns on scheme
assets particularly as a result of the lability hedging strategy

The auditor used their own independent actuarial experts to confirm
that the assumptions used were reasonable and appropriate

To determine whether the level of provisioning in the balance sheet was
reasonable, the Committee examined reparts from Management and
estimates of the gross provision (ncluding the number of clams
incurred but not received and the associated expected cash outflow
undiscounted) calculated by the Groups actuary Towers Watson
Limited The discount factor used by Towers Watson as advised by
Management to calculate the present value of the provision was
validated aganst applicable bond rates We compared the discounted
provision to the provisions recorded at previous reparting dates and to
recent cash settlements confirmed by the General Counsel

We recewved EY s comments on the assumptions and the calculation
used to reach the discounted provision and concluded that the
approach taken to setting the prowvision continued to be appropriate

Throughout the year the Committee received regular updates on
relevant employment law cases from the General Counsel along with
mpact assessments of judgements on the Group

In light of the legal updates we examined reports prepared by
Management to determine whether their interpretation of the
potential liabilittes for the Group was appropriate

The Committee concluded that these patential labilities were
accounted for appropriately based on the legal assessments provided
by the General Counsel

52

Royal Mail plc



sessnun
IR x]

Strategic report Governance Financial statements Other information

-
L R R R R R R R R rR R ressessenNEcsEsErNsaTTETR AN, L R Y P P YR Y NN

Ceananns

Audit Commuttee effectiveness

Durmg the year the Committee was assessed
as part of the external evaluation carned out
by Independent Board Evaluation Further
details can be found in the Statement of
Corporate Governance on page 49 One area
of potential improvement was the provision
of appropriate traiming to ensure that the
members are up to date with technical and
auditing developments, and the need to
schedule another Comimittee meeting in
January In addition the Chair has used a
short questionnaire to help determine
priorities The conclusion of the evaluation was
that the Committee continues to be effective

Effectiveness of the external

audit process

During the year, the Committee reviewed the
planning methodology and proposed audit
approach presented by the external auditor
and the Chair of the Committee attended an
audit planning event where the areas of audit
risk were discussed and agreed The
Commuttee reviewed and approved the
respective engagement letters for the
statutory and regulatory audits

At the end of the half year review and year
end statutory audit, the Committee received
reports from EY covering significant 1ssues
identified and discussed during the audit wisits
These reports were compared with the
matters that Management had identified, to
ensure consistency The Committee also held
regular private meetings with the external
auditor

During the year the Committee reviewed
the externat auditor s 2014 Audit Quality
Inspection Report and discussed with them
the findings of that report and those from
a review of ther auds files

At the conclusion of the full years audit the
Committee performed a specific assessment
of the external audit process This was
supported by the results of discussions

with indmidual Committee members and
questionnarmes completed by relevant
mdmiduals within the business covering areas
such as the preparation for the audit the
calibre of the audit teams, the audst scope
communications technical expertise and
audit governance and independence

The effectiveness of Management n the
external audit process 1s assessed pnncipally
in retation to the timely dentification and
resolution of areas of accounting judgement
the quality and trmelmess of papers analysing
those judgements the identification of audit
adjustments and the level of audit fee
over-runs

Annual Repart and Financizl Statements 2014-15

After taking all of the above into consideration
the Committee concluded that the audit team
and EY as a firm, had demonstrated that they
had appropriate qualifications resources and
expertise and that the audit process was
effective

Safeguarding the independence and
objectwvity of the external auditor

EY have been the imcumbent auditor since
therr appointment on 11 June 1985 The
current externat audit partner i1s Richard
Wilson who was appointed to lead the audit
m June 2011 As noted above, a competitive
tender process for the award of the external
audit has been held during the year

The Committee has a policy in respect of
non-audit work which requires Management
to seek pre-approval prior to the engagement
of the external auditor for the prowision of any
non-audit services This is to ensure that the
level of fees earned from non-audit services
and the type of services prowided do not
impair the external auditor s mdependence
and objectivity In general the external auditor
1s not appraached to perform non-audit work
However the auditor may be appointed to
perform non-audit services iIf there 1s a
genuine efficency m doing so This could
follow a competitive tender process invalving
the external auditor The Comimittee currently
permuts the external auditor to provide
non-audit services in respect of audit-related
services tax services and other services
msofar as permitted by auditor independence
rules The Committee has delegated authority
to the Chief Fmance Officer to pre-approve
assignments up to £25 000 with an annual
lwnit of £500,000

For 2014-15%, EY undertook non-audit
services in relation to tax advice reviews and
filings, corporate sustamability reporting
assurance and the 1IXBRL tagging of the
Group s subsidiary financial statements Total
fees for non-audit services were £265 000
which represented around 13 per cent of the
external audit fee

The Committee also has a policy that restricts
the recruitment or secondment of individuals
emplayed by the external auditor into
positions that prowide financial reporting
oversight where they could exercise influence
over the financial or regulatory statements

of the Group or the level of audit and
non-audit fees

Risk management and internal

control overview

The Board believes that effective risk
management and a sound control environment
are fundamental to the Group The UK
Corporate Governance Code requires the
Board to mamtatn sound risk management
and internal control systems to review ther
effectiveness at least annually and to report

on this review to shareholders A sound system
of internal control depends on a thorough and
regular evaluation of the nature and extent to
which the Group 1s exposed to nsk

The Groups risk management and mternal
control system 1s designed to manage rather
than elminate risk as taking on manageable
risk 1s an inherent part of undertaking the
commeroal actmties of the Group The
system can only provide reasonable, not
absolute assurance agamst matertal
misstatement or loss

There 1s an ongoing process for identifying
evaluating and managing the prmcipal risks
faced by the Group in accordance with the
guidance detailed by the UK Carporate
Governance Code mcluding financial
operational and comphance risks and risks
to reputation The process has been in place
throughout the year and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements

Risk management and internal

control framework

The Group-wide risk management framework
includes risk gavernance nsk identificaton
measurement and management, and risk
reporting and sets out the top-down and
‘hottom-up’ approach to nisk identification for
the Group During the year the business has

* Reviewed its Risk Management
Framewaork, Risk Management Policy
and Risk Management Guide received
self-assessment validations from the
prioritised business units and functions
on compliance with the Risk Management
Mandatory Standards and provided
independent assurance of a sample of
these submissions,

= Continued its emerging nisk identification
process through regular structured
dialogue with subject matter experts
across the business, and

» For a sample of risks on the Group Risk
Profile independently validated the
supporting risk analysis mformation
indudmng the mitigation plans

The Group's approach to risk management
1s based on the underlying principle of ine
management accountability for effective
implementation of internal controls to
manage risk
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The Graup recognises and uses the principle
of the "Three Lines of Defence

1 First Lime comprises primary controls over
the risks to the business, located in the
day-to-day aperation and includes
established management organisation,
policies and documentation, budgets, and
performance management

2 Second Lme comprises iternal monitaring
and oversight of the first line including
regular reviews, assessments, and
annual sign-offs

3 Third Line comprises independent
assessment of the first and second lines
by the 1A and RM function and others
{including external audit)

Assessing the effectiveness of the system
of risk management and internal contral
In addition to the speafic constitution,
meetings reliance on experts and focus areas
highlighted above, the Committee uses a
number of mechanisms to help it to arrive at
its conclusion on the effectiveness of the
systemn of risk management and internal
control in the business These mclude

1 Risk governance

The Board has delegated responsibility for
specific review of risk and control processes
to the Committee and the Committee m turn
15 supported by the RMC, to help discharge
its duties The RMC meets ta pramote and
support the establishment, communication
and embedding of risk management
throughout the Group and to ensure that risks
that are significant at Group level are being
effectively managed

2. Assurance from internal Audit

1A and RM provides independent assurance to
executive Management and the Board an the
effectiveness of the internal control system
and elements of the Risk Management
Process, mcluding compliance with the Risk
Management Mandatory Standards, and
validation of mitigation plans for Group Risks
1A and RM establishes and agrees with the
Committee an annual plan of assignments and
activities based on discussions with the Board
and Management, and also takmng mto account
known 155ues in the business areas of known
importance to the delivery of the busimess
plan, areas subject to strong or emergmg
regulation or legislation, and known 1ssues in
the industry
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The Internal Audit work programme, focused
towards the key busmess priorities for
2014-15 mcluded

* Business Transformation reviews including
Parcels and IT Service Transition,

+ Major business process reviews mcluding
Netwark Access Billing, Order to Cash,
IT Disaster Recovery, and International
Revenue Controls

* (Continued rellmg programme of review of
the basic busmess controls and validation
reviews related to the management of
mdmvidual risks on the Group Risk Profile,
and

« Confarmance of key uruts/functions to
defined Risk Management Mandatary
Standards

3 External audit activity

External audits and reviews take place during
the year to provide Management, the Board
and the Regulator with assurance an specific
matters Activity includes

e The external auditor performs a statutory
year end audit

* The external auditor performs an audit
of the requlatory accounts as part of
Urwversal Service Provider (USP)
accountmg reguirements

» The externally measured end-to-end
Quality of Service is audited by an
ndependent accounting firm (appointed by
Ofcom)] as part of Rayal Mail s Designated
Uruversal Service Provider condition
requrements and

e The Unwversal Service Obligation {US0O)
dally collections and deliveries performance
reporting and methodology 15 assured hy
an Independent accounting firm (appainted
by Royal Mail} as part of Royal Mail's
destgnated Universal Service

Whistleblowing

Arrangements are in place to enable
employees to raise concerns about potential
wrongdomngs in confidence and to ensure
independent investigation of such matters
During the year |A and RM reported to the
Committee on the number of natifications and
the time taken to process them through the
Employee Drsclosure Committee (EDC)

Nomination Committee report
Introduction from the Char

Dear Shareholder,

As noted in the announcement an 20 January
2015 | have informed the Board of my
mtention to step down from the Board The
SID, Orna Ni-Chionna, has mitiated a process
to appomt my successor and | wall continue to
chair the Board until at least the 2015 AGM
Likewise followmng his appontment as
Charrran of Tesco PLC John Allan resigned
as a Non-Executive Director with effect
from 30 April 2015 As aresult of this,

the Committee has started to assess the
composition of the Board to take account

of the changes

In 2014 an external Board evaluation was
undertaken (see page 49) the results of which
were encouraging |t gave reassurance that
the Board and 1ts Commuttees continue to
waork effectively

As well as succession planning and the
contmued evaluation of the balance of skills
knowledge and experience of the Board the
Committee continues to focus on diversity,
reviewing leadership attributes, appraving
changes to senior managerment and various
appaintments within the Company

The followmag report outlines the Committee s
membership and attendance, its rale, its focus
durmg the year, Directors re-election and
diversity

Donald Brydon
Chair of the Nommnation Cammittee
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Eligible
to attend Attended

Total number
of meetmgs 3

Chayr

Donald Brydon 3 3
Members

Orna Ni-Chionna

Nick Horler 3
Cath Keers 3
3

W W L

Meetings of the Committee were also
attended, where relevant, by the Company
Secretary the Deputy Company Secretary
and the Group HR Director The Chief
Executive Officer and other Non-Executive
Directors have also attended when required

Nomination Committee Terms of
Reference

The full terms of reference for the Committee
¢an be found on our website

www royalmailgroup com/about-us/
managernent-committees/nommation-
committee

Role of the Committee

A summary of the responsibilities of the
Committee In connection with appointments
to the Board and semior management
pasitions 15 shown below

* To regularly review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to evaluate
the halance of skills knowledge experience
and diversity on the Board to inform the
capabilities required for a particular
appomntment

e To give full consideration to succession
planrung for Directors and senior
management

e Todentify and nommate for the approval
of the Board candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise,

+ To evaluate before any appomntment 1s
made by the Board, the balance of skills,
knowledge experience and diversity on the
Board and m the light of this evaluation
consider, where appropriate, preparing a
description of the role and capabilities
required for a particular appantment
In identifying suitable candidates the
Commuttee may use open advertising or
the serwvices of external adwvisers to
facilitate the search

Annual Repart and Finanaal Statements 2014-15

Governance :

To ensure that on appomtment to the
Board Non-Executive Directors recewe

a formal letter of appaintment setting out
clearly what 1s expected of thern in terms
of e commuitment committee service
and invelvernent outside Board meetings

For the appomtment of a Charman to
prepare a job description including the time
commitment expected A proposed
Charrman's other significant commitments
should be disclosed to the Board before
appomtment and any changes to the
Charrman's commitments should be
reported to the Board as they arise

To review annually the time required
from Non-Executive Directors to fulfil
ther duties,

To make recommendations to the Board
on

- Formulatig succession plans for both
Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors and in particular for the key
roles of the Charrman and Chief
Executive Officer

- Sutable candidates for the role of
the SID,

- Membership of the Board Committees
in consultation with the Chairs of those
committees

- The re-appomtment of any Nan-
Executive Director at the conelusion
of their specified term of office having
given due regard to their performance
and ability to continue ta contribute to
the Board and

- The re-election of Directors by
sharehelders under the re-election
provisions of the Code or the retirement
by ratation provisions m the Companys
Articles of Association {the Articles)
having due regard to their performance
and ability to continue to contnibute to
the Board and the need for progressive
refreshing of the Board

To nominate swtable candidates for other
Senior management positions, and

To review the succession management
pracess within the Company for the top
120 senior management positions

Financial statements Other information i

Key areas of focus during the year
Matters the Commuittee considered during
the year include

* Reviewng leadership attnbutes n
conunction with an external adviser,
Norman Broadbent |

* Choosing an external consultancy to
undertake a Board evaluation exercise

* Approving changes to the roles of certam
members of senior management

+ Reviewmg the Board s policy on dversity
as outlined on page 46,

e CEC talent review,

¢ Appomntment of Directors and Secretary
to subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, and

e Appomtment of Pension Trustees

Key areas of focus for next year

* Assessing the composition of the Board
following the departures of Donald Brydon
and John Aflan from the Board,

* Succession planning and talent
management, and

* Appointment of Directors and Secretary
to subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

Directors’ re-election

The Commuttee considers the performance of
each ndwidual Directar whether he or she
continues to be effective and can demonstrate
commitment to the role and whether they
should be proposed for election at the AGM
Biographical details of each of the Directors
together with details of therr skills and
experience may be found on pages 43 - 45
Following a performance evaluation of each
Director and the Board as a whole all
Directors are considered by the Board to be
fully effective
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Committee membership and attendance

Rewviewing major policy regulatory,
legislative accounting reporting industnial

Eligibte
toattend  Attended relations and Governmental 1ssues
Jotal number of impacting the pension schemes as from
meetimgs 3 time to time 1s necessary at the request
Char of the Board, Management or any member
Les Owen 3 3 of the Pensions Committee and making
Members decisions recommendations or reporting
Matthew Lester 3 3 to the Board accordmgly
Paul Murray 3 3 Key areas of focus during the year
Jan Babiak* 1 L Matters the Committee considered during the
Pen5i0n5 committee report *Jan Babiak resigned from the Board on 29 April 2014 year include
{ntroduction from the Charr * Scherne funding,

Dear Shareholder,

The responsibilities delegated to the
Committee by the Board include the review
and approval of abjectives m relation to the
Royal Mail pension schermes monitormg
performance of these schemes, considering
recommendations and reports from

The meetings of the Committee have also
been attended by the Company Secretary
the Director of Corporate Fmance the
Group Fiancial Controller, the Head of
Pensions Strategy and representatives from
the Company s pensions advisers, Towers
Watson Limited

Pensions Committee Terms of Reference

Investment strategy and risk management
nvestment performance and fees,

The impact of pension legistation changes
and

Pensions accounting and treatment of
scheme surplus

managernent in relation to policy and strategy
concerning pensions and investrent matters

The full terms of reference for the Commuttee

can be found on our website Key areas of focus for next year

that are significant to the Group and where

appropriate making recommendations to the

Audit and Risk Commuttee and the Board
The Cormmuittee reports and makes

recommendations to the Board (and to Royal

Mail Group Limited as principal employer of
the Group s pensions schemes) on

s Pension matters which it reasonably
considers are of strategic importance
to the Group,

* Pension-related matters nvolving a
fmancial impact of over £100 million,

* Material changes to benefits that require
rule changes or changes to the pensian
scheme Trust Deeds other than those
requred for changes in legislation, and

= Matenal matters in relation to the
accounting for the Group's pensions
obligations

The Committee 1s supported by the Pensions

Policy Committee, whose members are the

Chief Finance Officer, the Company Secretary,

the Group HR Director and representatives
from the CWU and Unite/CMA

Further details of the Commuttee’s Tole, its

membership and the key areas of focus during

the year are set out below

Les Owen
Chair of the Pensions Committee
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www royalmailgroup com/about-us/
management-and-committees/pensions-
committee

Role of the Committee
Further to the responsibilities outlimed m the
Committee Chair's statement, the role of the
Committee also includes

Reviewing reports from the Trustee
Executive on the Royal Mai pension
schemes finanoal position nvestment
performance, administration levels and
ather actwities,

Reviewing recommendations from the
Pensions Policy Cornmittee and approving
assurnptions retating to funding valuations
and the Statement of Investment
Principles

Approving, m accordance with the pension
schemes' Rules, the appointment
re-appomtment removal pericd of
appomtment and remuneration of the
Chair of Trustees This approval will be
gwen on behalf of the Board following
consultation with the Chair and on the
recommendation of Management, and

Matters the Committee expect to be
considermg during the year ahead include

* The pension schemes funding valuations,
and any implications for future benefit
design

» Investment strategy and risk management,
* Pensions accountmg
* Pension scheme admimistration and

= The impact of new pensions freedoms on
the schemes

Royat Mail plc
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Remuneration Committee
Committee membership and attendance

Eligible

to attend Attended
Total number
of meetings 7
Charr
Orna Ni-Chionna 7 7
Members
Donald Brydon 7 7
Paul Murray 7 7
Les Owen 7 7

Meetings of the Committee were also
attended, where relevant, by the Chief
Executive Officer, Group HR Director,
Company Secretary other members of senior
management and representatives from the
executive remuneration consultants, New
Bridge Street and latterly PwC

No individual was present when matters
regarding thewr own remuneration were
discussed

Remuneration Committee Terms of
Reference

The full Terms of Reference for the Committee
¢an he found on our website

http /fwww royalmailgroup com/about-us/
management-and-committees/remuneration-
committee

Role of the Committee

¢ To determine and recommend for the
Board s approval the framework for the
remuneration of the senor executives of
the Group

¢ To determine the individual remuneration
arrangements for the Chairman, the
Executive Directars and the Company
Secretary and

» To agree the targets for any performance-
related incentive schemes applicable to
senior executives

Key areas of focus during the year
Details of the work carried out by the
Remuneration Committee and the decisions
made are outlined in the Directors
remuneratton report on pages 64 - 75

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

Strategic report

Governance

Other Committees:

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee supports
the Audit and Risk Committee and meets te
premote and support the establishment
communication and embedding of nisk
management throughout the busmmess The
Committee meets quarterly and is chared
by the Cheef Executive Officer

Disclosure Committee

The role of the Disclosure Committee 15 to
assist the Executive Directors in fulfilling ther
responsibility for oversight of the accuracy and
timeliness of the disclosures made by the
Company In relation to its financaial and other
reporting The Committee meets on a regular
basis during the reporting process and 1s
chared by the Chief Executive Officer

Financial statements

Other information
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Statement of Corporate Governance (continued)

Chief Executive’s Committee
The Group has a committed management
team which has successfully transformed the
Company and allowed for its public flotation
in 2013 Through the Chief Executive's
Commuttee the team manages the key
strategies of the Group with an overall
framework of financial risk and busmess
controls to meet the needs of stakeholders

Biographies for the Chief Executive Committee
can be found below
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Moya Greene
Chief Executive Officer

See ‘Our Board of Directors’ on
pages 43 - 45.
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Catherine Doran
Chief Information Officer

Current roles

+ _omed Royal Mail in September 2011 as
Chief Information Officer

* A Non-Executive Director for Defra and
BQF

¢ Member of the CIC Board for e-skills UK
Previous work history

* Joined Royal Mail from Netwark Rail
where she led the company-wide
transformation pregramme
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Stephen Agar
Managing Director, Consumer and Network
Access

Current role

= Appomnted Managing Director, Consumer
and Network Access in October 2011

* Responsible for the regulated letters
business {both US0D and Access)

Previous work history

* A harrister who started his career n the
Government Legal Service before moving
to Racal Electronics plc

* Jomed Roya! Maill in 1991

Mitmessrensssssassensnsnsrne *rservrseseen

Neil Harnby
General Counsel

Current role
= Apponted General Counsel in January 2012
Previous work history

= Previously General Counsel for the
European and Middle Eastern Dwision of
GE Capital, the fmancial services unit of
the General Electric Company

= Before joinng GE, he was a Partner at
Lmklaters LLP

e Y R R R R N O I Y -

Rico Back
Chief Executive Officer GLS

Current role

* Appomnted Chief Executive Officer of GLS

m October 1999
Previous work history

* Founding manager of German Parcel n
1989, which was acquired by the Group

n 1999
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Matthew Lester
Chief Finance Officer

See 'Our Board of Directors’ on

pages 43 - 45
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Jon Millidge
Group HR Orrector

Current role
+ Apponted Group HR Director in February
2014

* Pension Scheme Trustee of the Royal Mail
Defined Contribution Plan

Previous work history

e Jomed Rayal Mail in 1985 as a graduate
and has worked across a number of the
busimnesses with the Group

* Previously Company Secretary from May
2010 to February 2014 and prior to that
was the Acting Group HR Director
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Emily Pang
Company Secretary

Current role

* Appomnted as Company Secretary n
February 2014, in addition to her current
responsibilities

+ Jomed the Group as Chief of Staff for Royal
Mail Group it April 2011

Previous work history

* Prior to joming Royal Mail worked at
Canada Post where she was Executive
Chief of Staff and the mterim Lead
Executive for Human Resources

* Pror to that worked at CIBC a major
Canadian bank

» Emilys a Chartered Accountant

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15
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Mike Newnham
Chief Customer Officer

Current role
¢ Appointed Chief Customer Officer in March

Previous work history
* Led the Consumer dwision of Orange m
the UK

* Prior to that held a number of executive
board positions at Orange

Stuart Simpson
Deputy Chief Operations Officer

Current role

« Jomed the Royal Mait m 2009 and
appointed Deputy Chief Operations Officer
m January 2014

* Prior to this he was running Operations for
the West Region of the UK and was the
Fimance Director for UK Operations

Previous work history

e Worked in the automotive industry for
15 years with senior roles in Finance and
Strategy the last ten of which were based
outside the UK
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Shane O’Riordain
Managmg Director, Communications, Strategy
Regulation and Pricing

Current role
¢ Appointed Managing Director
Communications m Novermnber 2010

* Subsequently assumed responsibility for
Strategy and i 2014, Regulation and
Pricing

Previous work history

« [irector of Communications for Royal Mail
Group

» Held a number of Group Communications
Director positions in the banking and
financial sector at Lloyds Banking Group,
HBOS Halifax and Flemings
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Sue Whalley
Chief Operations Officer

Current role

+ Joned Royal Mail n 2006 and was
appointed Chief Operations Officer in
January 2014

¢ Responsible for leading the next phase
of the transformation in Operations, with
specific focus on further development
of safety, quality efficiency, culture and
innovation

* Previously as Regulation and Government
Affairs Director, led the programmed work
for privatisation

Previous work history

+ Consultant at McKmsey and Company for
17 years the last six of which as a partner
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Directors’ Report

Introduction

The Directors present their repart together
with audied finanoal staterments for {he year
ended 29 March 2015

Strategic report

To enable the assessment of how the Directors
have performed ther duty to promote the
success of the Company, the Companies Act
2006 requires the Directors to set out in this
repart a far review of the business of the
Group during the year, the position of the
Group at the end of the year and a description
of the principal rnisks and uncertainties facing
the Group This information can he found m
the following sections of the Annual Report
and Financial Statements and are incorporated
by reference

The mformation required to be disclosed in
the Annual Report under Listing Rule 98 4R
1s marked with an asterisk below

Index Page
Business model 14
Strategy for delvering ohjectives 16
Results 4
Fmancal assets and babilities 80
Business risks 3
Corporate responsibility 36
Greenhouse gas emissions 40
Disabled employees 38
Our pegple 37
Going concern 83
Long-Term Incentive Plans* 99
Statement of the amount

of mterest capitalised* 121 and 124
Dividend waiver* 50

Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The Strategic report and the Directors report
together include the management report
requred by the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules (DTR4 1) of the UK Financial Conduct
Authority (Disclosure and Transparency
Rules), the Directors having consulted with the
managerent on such matters

Corporate Governance statement

The Disclosure and Transparency Rules
reguire certam mformation to be included
In a corparate governance statement in
the Directors Report This mformation can
be found in the Statement of Corporate
Governance on pages 47 - 5% and is
mcorporated into this Directors Repart

by reference
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Dividends

Fimal dividend

The Board recommends a final tividend of
14 3 pence per ordnary share, giving a total
dwidend for the year of 21 O pence per
ardinary share The final dvidend wilt be
payable on 31 July 2015 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of
members on 3 July 2015

Dividends and distribution

The Company may by ardinary resolution
from time to time declare dividends not
exceeding the amount recommended by the
Board Subject to the Companies Act 2004
the Board may pay mterm dividends and also
any fixed rate dividend, whenever the financial
position of the Campany, in the opmion of the
Board justifies its payment If the Board acts
in good faith 1t is not {iable to holders of
shares with preferred or par passt rights

for losses arising from the payment of interim
or fixed dividends on other shares All
dividends shall be appartioned and paid pro
rata according to the amounts paid up on

the shares

Dividend waivers

The trustee of the Royal Mail Share Incentive
Ptan will not receive any dividends {other than
any special dividend declared by the Board) on
Free Shares which it has not been possible to
award to, or which have been forfeited by
participants in the plan

Political donations

No political donations were made during the
year and the Company intends to continue Its
policy of not making such denations for the
foreseeable future

Future developments

Possible future developments are described in
Our strategy on pages 16 - 17 and Business
risks on pages 31 - 35 of the Strategic report

Share capital

As at 29 March 2015 the Company s issued
share capital comprised 1 Q00 000 000
ordinary shares of one penny each as set gut
N note 28 to the accounts on page 127

A block listing of 5,000 000 shares was
undertaken in November 2014 hut none
as yet have been issued

Rights and obligations attaching

to shares

Veoting

Subject to the provisions of the Articles and
to any special rights or restrictions as to
voting attached to any class of shares in the
Company (of which there 15 none), members
will be entitled to vate at a general meeting
as follows

» On ashow of hands every member
present in person has ane vote and every
proxy present who has been duly apponted
by one or more members will have one
vote, except that a proxy has one vote for
and one vote against if the proxy has been
duly appomted by more than one member
and the proxy has been instructed by ane
or more members to vote for and by one
or mare other members to vote agamst,

* Far this purpose, the Articles provide that,
where a proxy (s given discretion as ta how
to vote on a show of hands, this will be
treated as an mstruction by the relevant
member to vote m the way that the proxy
decides to exeraise that discretion and

* Onapoll every member has one vate per
share held by him, her or it and he she or
It may vote in person or by one or more
proxies Where he she or it appomnts mare
than one proxy. the proxies appomted by
hum, her or it taken together shall not have
more extensive voting tights than the
member could exercise in person

In the case of jont holders of a share, the vote
of the senior holder who tenders a vote
whether in person or by proxy, shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the
other jomt holders and for this purpose
seniority shall be determmed by the order
which the mames stand in the register in
respect of the joint holding

No member shall be entitled to vote at any
general meeting or class meeting In respect
of any share held by him her or it If any call
or ather sum then payable by him her ar it
in respect of that share remains unpaid or if
a member has been served with a restriction
notice (as defined m the Articles) after failure
to provide the Company with mformation
concerning mterests in those shares required
to be provided under the Companies Act
2006 Currently all rssued shares are

fully paid
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Voting nstructions may be submitted
electronically at www sharevaote co uk by
following the online mstructtons

Employees allocated Free Shares under the
Employee Free Shares Offer which are held

i trust by the Trustee of the Royal Mait Share
Incentive Plan, are entitled to exercise any
voting rights m respect of such Free Shares
by instructing the Trustee how to vote on
their behalf

Deadline for voting rights

Full details of the deadlines for exercising
voting rnights n respect of the resolutions
to be considered at the AGM to be held on
23 July 2015 will be set out in the Notice
of Annual General Meeting

Special rights

There are no persons holding securities that
carry spectal nghts with regard to the control
of the Group

Transfer of shares

Subsect to the Articles any member may
transfer all or any of his or her certificated
shares by an instrument of transfer n any
usual form or m any other form which the
Board may approve The instrument of
transfer must be signed by or on behalf of the
transferor and (in the case of a partly-paid
share) the transferee

The transferor of a share 1s deemed to remamn
the holder until the transferee’s name 15
entered in the register

The Board can decline to register any transfer
of any share which 1s not a fully paid share
The Board may also decline to register a
transfer of a certificated share unless the
nstrument of transfer

() 1s duly stamped or certified or otherwise
shown to the satisfaction of the Board
to be exempt from stamp duty and 15
accompanied by the relevant share
certificate and such other evidence of the
right to transfer as the Board may
reasonably require,

() 15 n respect of only one class of share, and

{u} f to jomt transferees 1s in favour of not
maore than four such transferees

Registration of a transfer of an uncertificated
share may be refused n the arcumstances set
out In the uncertificated securities rules (as
defined in the Articles) and where in the case
of a transfer to jomt holders the number of
Jjomt halders to whom the uncertificated share
I1s to be transferred exceeds four
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Authaority of the Directors to allot shares
By a resolution passed by shareholders on
24 July 2014, at the AGM, the Directors were
authorised subject to certam Imitations to
allot shares in the Company and to grant
rights to subscribe for or to convert any
security into shares in the Company

{a) up to a nommal amount of £3 333 333
and

(b} comprising equity securities up to a
nommal amount of £6,666,666 (such
amount to be reduced by any allotments
made under paragraph {a) above) in
connection with an offer by way of a
rights 1ssue,

The authorities conferred on the Directors to
allot securities under paragraph (a) and (b} will
expire on the date of the 2015 AGM or on

31 July 2015 whichever 15 sooner, {the Expiry
Date} The Directors will be seeking a new
authonty for the Directors to allot shares and
to grant subscription and canversion rights to
ensure that the Directors continue to have the
flexibility to act mn the best interests of
shareholders when opportunities arise by
1ssuing new shares or granting such rights
The Board was also given authority to allot
equity securities far cash or to sell Ordinary
Shares as treasury shares for cash subject

to certam Imitations such authority to apply
until the Expiry Date

Purchase of own shares by the Company
By a resolution passed by shareholders on
24 July 2014 at the AGM the Company was
authorised to purchase up to a maximum
number of 100,000,000 of its Ordinary
Shares pursuant to certain imitations such
power to apply until the Expiry Date The
Company did not repurchase any of its
Ordinary Shares during the year ended

29 March 2015

The Directors require express authorisation
from shareholders to purchase our own
shares Accordmgly at the 2015 AGM, the
Directors will seek authority to make
market purchases of up to a maximum of
ten per cent of issued share capital At the
present trme the Company has no plans to
exercise this authority

Employee Benefit Trust

On 18 July 2014 the Board approved a
proposat to establish a discretionary trust with
employees (including Executive Directors of
the Company) as beneficiaries n the form of
an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT), to hold
Company shares to be used under any equity
based employee benefits scheme The EBT
was established after the AGM m July 2014

Financial statements

As at 29 March 2015 a total of 40,935
{2013-14 nil) shares were held by the EBT on
behalf of the Company

Substantial shareholdings

As at 29 March 2015 the Company had been
notified 1n accordance with the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, of the following mterests
amounting to three per cent or more of the
voting rights in the 1ssued ordmary share

Other information

vesessvesessesunas secsssascscccscnne sssserecnse

capital of the Company

Number % of voting
Shareholder of shares rights
Postal Services
Hotding Company
Ltd 299840000 2998%
Equiniti Share Plan
Trustees Limited 84 437195 B 44
GIC Private Limited 39 343 389 393%

As at 20 May 2015 the Company had been
notified in accordance with the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the following mterests
amounting to three per cent or more of the
voting rights in the 1ssued ordmary share
capital of the Company

Number % of voting
Shareholder of shares rights
Postal Services
Hotding Company
Ltd 299840000 2998%
Equiniti Share Plan
Trustees Limited 84 437195 8 444

Amendment to the Company’s Articles

of Association

Any amendments to the Company's Articles
may be made in accordance with the
pravisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way
of special resolution

Indemnnity of Directors

To the extent permitted by the Companies
Acts the Company may indemnify any
Director or former Director of the Company or
any associated company against any Liability
and may purchase and maimntam for any
Director or former Director of the Company
ar any associated company msurance agamst
any lhiability

Appointment and replacement

of Directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary
resolution of the Company, the Directors
shall be no fewer than two and no more than
15 n number
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Following privatisation, Directors may now

be apposinted by the Company by ordimary
resolution or by the Board There 15 also an
agreement in place with Postal Services
Holding Company Limited (PSH) which grants
PSH the right to nominate one Non-Executive
Director for appomtment to the Board for so
long as PSH (together with its associates) s
entitled to exercise or to control the exercise
of ten per cent or mare of the voting rights
exercisable at a general meeting of the
Company

In accordance with the Code, all Directors
of the Company are subject to annual
re-election

A Director appomted by the Board or PSH
holds office anly until the next AGM and 1s
then eligible for election by the shareholders
The Company's Articles provide that, at each
AGM all those Directors who have been in
office at the time of the two preceding AGMs
and who did not retire at either of them, or
who have held office with the Company, other
than employment or executive office for a
continuous period of nine years or mare at the
date of the AGM, shall retire from office and
may offer themselves for re-appointment by
shareholders The Board has, however,
decided to follow the Code as referred to
above so that all Directors are suhject to
annual re-election

In addition to any power of removal conferred
by the Companies Act, the Company may by
special resolution remove any Director before
the expiration of his or her period of office

Donald Bryden informed the Board in January
2015 of his intention to step down from the
Board but will continue to chaw the Board
until at least the 2015 AGM

John Allan informed the Board in February
2015 of his intention to stand down as a
Non-Executive Director and it was confirmed
on 20 March 2015 that he would resign as

a Non-Executive Director with effect from
30 April 2015

Directors and their interests

The Directars of the Company durmg the year
are given on pages 43 - 46 Details of the
mterest of the Directors and. where applicable
therr Connected Persons in the Ordinary
Shares of the Cormnpany and of Lang-Term
Incentive Plan Awards over Grdmary Shares
of the Company are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 64-75

There are procedures in place to deal with
any conflicts of interest and these have
operated effectively
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Powers of the Directors

The business of the Company will be managed
by the Board who may exercise all the powers
of the Company subject to the provisions af
the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and any
ardinary resolution of the Company

Directors’ annual bonus and Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) awards upon a
change n the control of the Company
Upon a change of control of the Company
share awards under the annual bonus and
vesting under the 2014 LTIP arrangements
could pay out on a pro-rated basis If the
performance conditions have heen met

The performance-testing period waould
automnatically end on the date of the change in
control Under the 2011 LTIP arrangements,
awards granted more than 12 months prior
to a change m control would not be pro-rated
Awards granted less than 12 months prior

to a change m control would typically be
pro-rated, unless the Remuneration
Committee decides otherwise

Events after the reporting period

On 31 March 2015, after the financial year
end the Group's GLS Germany subsidiary
disposed of its 100 per cent owned subsidiary
DPD Systemlogistik GmbH & Co KG (DPD SL)
to DPD GeoPost (Deutschland) GmbH The
disposal resulted m a post-tax profit of
around €40 rmillion (£29 mullion) which

will be reflected in the Group's 2015-16
financial statements

Financral risk management

The Group’s fmancial sk management
objectives and policies and the mamn risks
arising from the Group's financial assets and
liabilittes are summarised in note 14 to the
accounts on page 105 See the financial risks
and related hedgmg contamed on page 28 of
the Financial review in the Strategic report

Change of control

The following agreements contam provisions
permitting exercise of termiation or other
rights m the event of a change of control

The Mails Distribution Agreement with Post
Office Limited provides for the supply of
certam services to the Group and allows for a
request for renegotiation of terms in the event
of a change of control of ether party where
such change of control 1s likely to have a
material adverse effect an the party not
undergomg the change of control

The Outsourcing Agreement with CSC
Computer Sciences Limited covers the
provision of a wide range of IT goods and
services and allows for termination of the
agreement by either party on a change of
control of the other in certam circumstances

The Services Agreement with British
Telecommunications plc {BT) allows BT
to terminate the agreement on a change
of control of Royal Mail to one of BT's
competitors

The Syndicated Loan Facility with various
financial mstitutions provides the Group with
arevolving credit facility for general corporate
and working capital purposes The agreement
contams provision on a change of control of
the Group for negotiation of the continuation
of the agreement or cancellatron by a lender

The €500 milion bond 1ssued by the Company
m July 2014 contains provisions such that, on
a change of control that 1s combmed with a
credit rating downgrade i certam
crcumstances the noteholders may reguire
the Company to redeem or at the Companys
option purchase the notes for their principal
amount together with mterest accrued to

(but exctudng) the date of redemption

or repurchase

Royal Mail ple



Branches

As a global group our interests and activities
are held or operated through subsidiaries
branches, joint arrangements or assocates
which are established in, and subject to the laws
and regulations of many different junisdictions

New products and services

In the ordinary course of business the Group
develops new products and services in each of
its business units

Environmental sacial and governance risks
The Strategic Report together with
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions which are
located on page 40 set cut key environmental
social and governance (ESG) risks faced by

the business

The Board identifies and assesses significant
nisks, including those relating to ESG matters
through the mamtenance and review of the
Group Risk Profile This contans significant
current nisks, including ESG risks which are
identified at an early stage of becorning known
as part of the lang-term business perspective
Emerging nsk identification 1s conducted by
experts in the busmess and risk management
15 owned and managed at the operational
level, supported centralty An independent
effectiveness review by an independent
external auditor confirmed good links between
the strategy of the Company and currently
identified risks and that apprapreate
mportance 1s placed on risk management by
executives within the Group The Company
maintains a range of policies and procedures
for managing busmess risks which nclude
ESG-related matters

The Board annually reviews the Company’s
Corporate Responsibility report, which
covers in detai the Group's non-financal
{ESG) performance The report is prepared in
alignment with the reporting framework of
the Global Reporting Initiatsve Index and the
Company s performance is assessed aganst
mternational sustainability mdices The
Company reports progress agamst corporate
responsibility objectrves under five areas
Customer People Community Suppliers

and Environment See also pages 36 - 40
for a summary of key corporate
responsibility aspects

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15
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Going concern

These consolidated financal statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis
The financial performance and position of
the Group, its cash flows and 1ts approach

to capital management are set out i the
Fmancial review on pages 24 - 30 The Board
has reviewed the Group's projections for the
next 12 months and the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue i operational
existence for at least 12 months

By Order of the Board

L Py

Audit information Emily Pang
The Directors confirm that, so far as they are Company Secretary
’ 20 May 2015

aware, there i1s nao relevant audit information
(as defined m section 418 of the Companies Royal Mail pic

Act 2006} of which the Auditor s unaware 100 Victorra Embankment
and that each Director has taken all London

reasonzable steps to make themselves EC4Y OHQ

aware of any relevant audit information and

to establish that the auditor is aware of Company number 08680755
that information

This confirmation I1s given and should be
mterpreted in accordance with the provisions
of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Disclaimer

The purpose of this Annual Report and
Financial Statements 1s to provide information
to the members of the Company The Annual
Report and Financral Statements have been
prepared for, and only for, the members of the
Cornpany, as a bedy and no other persons
The Company, its Directors and employees,
agents or advisers do not accept or assume
responsibility to any other person to whom
tfus document is shown or mto whose hands
it may come and any such responsibility or
liabikty 1s expressly disclaimed

The Annual Report and Financial Statements
contain certain forward-looking statements
with respect to the operations, performance
and financial condition of the Group By their
nature these statements involve uncertanty,
since future events and crcumstances can
cause results and developments to differ
matenally from those anticipated The
forward-locking statements reflect knowledge
and information available at the date of
preparatien of this Annual Report and
Financial Statements and the Company
undertakes no obligation to update these
forward-looking statements Nothing in this
Annual Report and Financial Statements
should be construed as a profit forecast
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Directors’ remuneration report

Orna Ni-Chionna
Chair, Remuneration Committee

The past year has been challengmg in many
respects but the team delivered a substantial
increase In adjusted operating profit before
transformation costs to £740 mullion

In addition

* We have maintamed our leading position
in the competitive UK delivery market

» ‘We have introduced around 30 new
projects including new services, products
and promotions to improve our customer
offering,

* Areduction of one per cent was delivered
i UKPIL operating costs before
transformation costs, ahead of our
expectations,

» Free cash flow increased to £453 rullion
from £398 milion and

* We met our regulatory Quality of Service
standard for First Class mail and exceeded
our target for Second Class mail

Annual bonus and Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) awards for 2014-15

Our Company's good performance resulted
In payouts on both our annual bonus and
our LTIP award i accordance with our
remuneration palicy This policy ams to
reward stretching performance, which
generates sustainable and improving
returns for our shareholders

Annual bonus

Our performance in 2014-15 resulted in

the achrevement of a high score agamst the
financial, people and customer targets in our
Corporate Balanced Scorecard, which make
up 80 per cent of the potentiat annual bonus
Performance against personal objectives,
which are set by the Committee and represent
20 per cent of the potentral bonus, was

also high

This resulted in a bonus of 79 per cent of
salary for our Chief Executive Officer (CEO),
Moya Greene and 79 per cent of salary for
our Chief Fmance Officer {CFO), Matthew
Lester More detail about the annual bonus
targets and performance agamst specific KPls
IS given on page 70
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Dear Shareholder,

In July 2014 we held our first ever Annual General
Meeting as a Public Listed Company, and | was pleased
that our new Remuneration Policy won overwhelming
shareholder support in a binding vote, and that our
Annual Implementation Report on remuneration won
a similar level of support in the advisory vote.

LTIP

During 2014-15, the Company achieved the
stretching performance targets that were sat
n 2012 for Operating Profits and Return on
Total Assets as part of the LTIP As a result
100 per cent of the 2012 LTIP vested for each
of the two Executive Directors equivalent to
70 per cent of salary The Committee had

no reason to use Its discretion to reduce the
award More details of the LTIP payout can
be found on page 71

Actions Taken within the Palicy

In my letter to you last year | referred to
the fact that our business was facing many
significant challenges Responding te those
challenges was requiring the transformation
of almost everything that the Company does
In fact the pace of market change has
intensified in our parcels busimess and as
described elsewhere in this Remuneration
Report, the management team has therefore
accelerated the pace of implementation

of operational and technical change while
devising strategic moves that aim to deliver
contmued success in the future

With this fast changing Company and fast
changing market environment as context,
the Committee considered carefully whether
any element of our remuneration policy,

or its overall design, should be changed for
2015-16 We decided not to propose

any changes to the overall design of our
remuneration this year We will keep our
policy under review and we reserve the option
of makmg changes next year if we deem that
to be necessary We would of course have to
put any change in remuneration policy to
you as a shareholder for your approval

However, | would like to mention a few actions
that we decided to take withm the framework
of the current policy

1 We increased the salary of our CEQ by
10 per cent effectve from 1 January
2015 'nour view her role has expanded
substantially m complexity since 2010 and
i particular since we became a public
company and she had received no increase
of any sort in her salary since Joining the

company in July 2010, 1e almost five
years ago Even after this mcrease, her
salary and potential pay remains well
below typical levels in companies of
comparable size and complexity During
that time the majority of our postrnen and
postwomen have seen salary increases
totalling slightly more than this percentage

2 We are introducing additional measures
within the Corporate Balanced Scorecard
for our Executive Directors The thmking
behind this move 1s that we are keen to
align the annuat bonus more closely with
the long-term objectives of the company
and we believe that having a greater
proportion of strategic measures will go
some way to achieving this The potential
value of the annuat bonus will not change
More detail 1s given on page 65

3 We have introduced clawback clauses to
our policies, formalising and simphfying
the Cormmittee’s ability to take back banus
payments were circumstances to come
to light that would warrant such a move

The remander of this Remuneration Report
has been written in accordance with the new
regulations that came nto force last year

| hope that you will feel able ta support the
Implementation Report this year |look
forward to continued dialogue with you

aver the coming years

Drna Ni-Chionna
Chawr, Remuneration Commuttee

Royal Maill plc
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Summary of our Policy and its application

What 15 our Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors and how have we applied it?
In the table below we have summarised the relevant parts of the approved Remuneration Policy how it has been implemented for 2014-15 and
how 1t will be iImplemented for 2015-16

Governance
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Element Summary of Policy Implementation in 2014-15 Implementation in 2015-16
Base salary Salary levels for the Executive Moya Greenes salary was Moya Greene s salary increased to £547 800 an increase of 10 per cent
Directors are normally reviewed €498 000 from 1 Apnl 2014 (effective 1 January 2015} Matthew Lester s salary remains unchanged
annually gec:]f:cl)gerl‘}emg ctlj'kanged °r';‘ 1 Ja;uary When rewtewmg the salaries the Committee took mto account the factors
The Commuttee takes nto account fons Jon?l',rl\ggm jﬁrl;gglgntgoethe set out in the adjacent column
fafcttr?rscsuch az t{’\he Pe"ff""m"’”“ new salary rate of £547 800 Prior to this iIncrease Moya Greene s salary has not changed since her
ok the Lompany ihe performance i ual saiary paid in the year was  appaintment to the Company in July 200" Over this period* our frontine
and experience of the individual £510 450) employees have recewed an average salary increase of 11 per cent as
any changes in role or shown in the table below
responsihility assessment against  Matthew Lester s salary imcreased
relevant comparator groups by six per cent to £454 065 from
nternal relativities and the level of 1 April 2014 This increase was % Increase
increase beng offered to our consistent with the salary increase  salary 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
frontine employees The given to our frontline employees *r
Commuttee will consider these for 2013 and 2014 Maya Greene 10 0 0 0 0 0
factors to determine the maximum Matthew
amgunt that would be paid in base Lester 0 6 0 0 0 0
salary for an Executive Director Average
employee 28 30 30 35 14 20
* Increase over the periad July 2010 - January 2015
**No further changes will he made to her salary in the 2015-16 fmancial
year
Benefits Provision of a company car and In line with palicy No change
health msurance or the cash
equivalent of any benefits not
taken
Under her contract Moya Greene
1s entitled to twa return flights to
Canada each year financial advice
and use of a drver for
business-related travel
Pension Company contrnibution to a defmed  £200 000 per annum cash No change

cantribution pension scheme and/
or a cash supplement {in lieu of
pension;

allowance for the CED

40 per cent of salary cash
allowance far the CFO

Annual bonus

Maximum award level of 100 per
cent of salary

s 80 per cent based on financial
efficency people and customer
targets and strategic objectives
as set out m the Corporate
Balanced Scorecard and
reviewed annually

» 20 per cent based on the
achievement of challenging
personal objectives

A minimum leve! of operating profit
must be achieved before any bonus
15 payable to an Executive Director

Clawback provisians have been
included i the annual bonus

60 per cent of the maximum bonus
will be earned for strang
performance and 100 per cent for
maximuem performance which 1s
unchanged from the previous year

Farward-leoking targets and
weightings are deemed to be
commercially sensitive but will be
disclosed retrospectively in next
years report

The Corporate Balanced Scorecard
camprised

s 25 per cent fmancial targets
» 25 per cent customer targets

* 25 per cent people-related
targets and

s 25 per cent performance
targets

Muare details on the targets and the
extent to which they are met are
set out an page 70

The Corporate Balanced Scorecard for Executive Directors will comprise

30 per cent financiat and efficiency targets

Product ity

UKPIL people casts

UKPIL non-people costs

Group revenue

Group operating profit before transformation costs
Group free cashilow

15 per cent customer targets

- First Class quality of service

- Parcels quality of serwice

- Business customer satisfaction
- Complamts

15 per cent people-related targets
- Accdent rate

- Sick absence

- Employee engagement

- Employee customer focus

40 per cent strategy objectives

This mereases focus on the inkage between the short-term and long-term
objectives of the Company It wall include achieving progress on the culture
change mitlative changing the Company s product mix and buslding our
capacity to move at speed in response ta the changing marketplace

Annual Report and Financal Statements 2014-15
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Directors’ remuneration report {continued)

Element Summary of Policy Implementation in 2014-15 Implementation i 2015-16
LTIP Maximum award level of 98 per For the awards granted in 2014 For the awards granted in 2015 the measures will remain the same as for
cent of salary the measures are as set out n the  the 2014 award (see below)

Performance measures and/er adjacent column

weightings will reflect the business

strategy at the ime and are The details of the targets and their
measured over three years level of satisfaction for the 2012
Malus and clawback previsions LTIP award are prowvided on

are included m the LTIP page &7

vesting (% of award)
Measure Weighting Threshold Maximum
EPS* 50 125 50
Operating prefit margin
before transformation
costs** 35 875 35
Total shareholder return
VEFSUS & comparator group 15 75 15

* The EPS range will be disclosed prior to the 2015 AGM The LTIP 2015
grant of awards will take place after the AGM

++The targets set for the operating profit margin performance condition are
considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive However they will
be disclosed retrospectively at the end of the performance period

The relative TSR performance target wall compare the Companys TSR
against other companies m the FTSE 100 imdex (excluding rmiring and
financiat companies) If Rayal Mails TSR perfarmance is rankad at the middle
of the group 75 per cent of the total award will vest increasmng te full
vesting (15 per cent of the total award) if performance 15 1n the top guartile
of the group

Shareholding 100 per cenit of salary
requirement

shares to meet any associated tax obligation) until this is achieved

Executive Directors are expected to keep any shares they already own and 50 per cent of any shares released under the LTIP (after selling sufficient

Our Remuneration Palicy recetved a shareholder vote of 97 per cent in favour at the 2014 AGM The full Remuneration Policy 15 set out on our

website www royalmailgroup corn
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What did the Executive Directors earn for the 2014-15 financial year?
The single figure of remuneration for Moya Greene was £1 522,248 For Matthew Lester it was £1 310611
A full breakdown 1s set out on page 69

How does this compare to our policy?
The following charts show the single figure of remuneration far the Executive Directors aganst the remuneratron policy scenarios applying for 2014-15

Assumptions are as set out In the approved Remuneration Palicy

What performance was achieved under the ncentives in 2014-15?
A summary of the annual bonus outcornes for the 2014-15 year 1s set out below More details on targets and outcomes are given on page 70

Corporate Balanced Scorecard (80%)

Financial (20%) Customer (20%) People (20%) Performance {20%} Persanal (201}
Total UK costs Stretch First Class Quality ~ Above target Safety Above target Group revenue Abcve threshold  Moya Greene

of Service 175%
Group aperatng  Target Mean busimess Stretch Employee Stretch Productvity for ~ Above target Malthf;\rmsliester
profit before customer engagement collections
transformation satisfaction pracessing and Mark Higson
costs delivery 96%
Free cash flow Above target  Customer Above target Customer focus  Threshold Composite parcels  Above threshold

complaints quality of service

61 5% out of 80%

Moya Greene £432,762, 79 0% of salary
Total award Matthew Lester £358,711, 79 0% of salary
Mark Higson £79,663, 58 8% of salary*

* Mark Higson stood down from the Board and left the Company on 24 July 2014 He was eligible to be considered for a pro rata banus for 2014-15 covering the period from 1 April 2014
up to 24 July 2014

The outcome of the 2012 LTIiP award s set out below More detasls on targets and outcomes are given on page 71

% of target 2014-15LTIP Resulting cash awards
Measure Target® Outcome* achieved vesting (%) Moya Greene Matthew Lester Mark Higson
Operating Profit before
transformation costs £679 millen  £682 million 100 élél%eot?g;laalsﬁt £3501£0 £300924 €225 956
ROTA 227% 23 4% 103

* Operating profit 1s based on reported operating profit adapted to adjustments approved by the Remuneration Committee These adjustments were in respect of the change from the
current pension rate to that embedded in the 2013 Business Plan and the impact of foreign exchange movements The Remuneration Commuttee decided that these adjustments
were required in order to determine the true comparative operating profit for the purposes of the LTIP

How many shares and rights to shares do our Executive Directors hold?

Executive Director Interest in shares Interest in sharg: ::I:rz "'::::'e?ér::ﬂ:{zz Total potential interests Total put:gt;a{ Tft:;f::;
Moya Greene 3759 3 200589 204 348 165
Matthew Lester 3759 4 178 065 181 824 177
Mark Higson* 3643 4 79342 B2 985 86

* Atas 24 July 2014

Annual Report and Finanaal Statements 2014-15 67
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

As part of the IPO Executive Directors were restricted in the number of shares they could purchase in the Employee Priority Offer (Maxmum
£10000) No LTIP awards have vested in shares The first time an LTIP may vest in shares 1s in 2014 {subject to the performance criteria bemng
met) and therefore the Executive Directors in time will be able to build up the required shareholding

Executive Directors are expected to build up a shareholding equivalent to 100 per cent of therr salary

What are the Executive Directors’ terms of employment?
The Executive Directors are employed under service contracts The dates of these contracts are

Date of Contract Notice Period (months)
Moya Greene 15 July 2010 . 12
Matthew Lester 24 November 2010 12

The contracts have an ndefinite term that may be terminated by the Executive Directors with six months” written notice The Company can
terminate contracts with 12 months notice Copies of the Executive Directors service contracts are avallable for inspection at the
Company s AGM

Moya Greene s contract dates from her appomntment to the Company in 2010 As disclosed in the Prospectus her contract may be terminated
immediately by the Company Unless the Company terminates the contract due to gross misconduct or a material breach of the obligations
under the service contract it would be required to make a payment equalling 12 months' base salary and an annual bonus referable to the
12 month period m which the termination occurs The assessment of the annual bonus award would be made in Ine with normal practice

for determining bonuses

What are the terms of appointment for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors?

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman) are appomted by roling letters of appomtment The Non-Executive Directors are
appointed for up to three years subject to annual review and re-election One months notice 1s required by either party {four months notice
In the case of the Chairman) The dates of the Chairmans and Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are set out in the table below

Date of Contract Unexpired Term (months)
Donald Brydon —20 September 2013 '16
John Allan DZD September 2013 -Resngned 30 April 2015
Jan Babiak -20 Septernber 2013 -Res:gned 29 April 2014
Nick Horler -20 September 2013 -16
Cath Keers .20 September 2013 -16
Paul Murray -20 Septermnber 2013 -16
Orna Ni-Chionna -20 September 2013 .16
Les Owen _20 September 2013 -16

All the Non-Executive Directors (includmg the Chairman) were appomnted in 2013 for an initial term commencmng an 20 September 2013 until
the conclusion of the 2016 AGM approximately three years later

The Company follows the UK Corporate Governance Code s recommendation that all directors of FTSE 350 companies be subject to annual
re-appointment by shareholders
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Annual Report on Remuneration
This part of the Directors Remuneration Report sets out details on how the remuneration policy has been applied for 2014-15 Detalled

mformation about the Directors remuneration set out below and on pages 69 - 75 has been audited by the Companys mdependent auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

What did the Directors earn for the 2014-15 financial year? (Audited)
The single remuneration figure table below sets out the remuneration receved by the Directors for 2014-15 (or for performance periods ending
m 2014-15 in respect of the LTIP) and for the purposes of comparisen, for 2013-14

Short-Term Long-Term
£'000 SalaryfFees Benefits? Imcentive Plan?  Incentive Plan® Pension Other Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2034 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2024 2015 2014

Chairman

Donald Brydon 210 200 - - - - - - - - - - 210 200
Executive Directors

Moya Greene 510 498 29 29 433 385 350 488 200 200 {250)* 1,522 1350
Mark Higson 135 428 5 15 80 245 226 420 54 174 3165 - 816 1279
Matthew Lester 454 428 15 15 359 328 301 419 182 171 ~ 1,311 1361
Non-Executive Directors®

John Allan’ 45 40 - - - - - - - - - - 45 40
Jan Babiak® 3 40 - - - - - - - - - - 3 40
Nick Horler 45 40 - - - - - - - - - - 45 40
Cath Keers 45 40 - - - - - - - - - - 45 40
Paul Murray 60 50 - - - - - - - - - - 60 50
Orna Ni-Chionna 70 60 - - - - - - - - - - 70 60
Les Owen 55 40 - - - - - - - - - - 55 40
Total 1,632 1864 49 5¢ 871 958 877 1327 436 542 316 (250} 4,182 4,500

! Benefits nclude medical insurance and car allowance The figure for Moya Greene also includes return fights to Canada

2 Bonuses are determined based an the salary as at 1 January 2015 m line with the Company s policy for all staff wha are ebgible for a bonus See page 70 for details on bonus
outcomes for the year being reported on and the calculation of the banus included in the smgle tetal figure of remuneration All bonus payments are made in cash

3 Tha current year figure relates to the 2012 LTIP award The prior year figure relates to the 2011 LTIP award which was based on performance to 30 March 2014 See page 71
for details of the LTIP value included in the single total figure of remuneraticn

* The figure for Moya Greene relates to a relocatton payment As previously disclosed Moya Greene voluntarily offered ta return the amount she received from this asststance
It was confirmed m Royal Mail s Prospectus (September 2013} that Royal Mail has receved payment for the after tax amount and an additional amount representing an
independent professional estimate of the unrealised gam assocated with the assistance recerved

# The payment m beu of notsce of £292 509 plus unused annual leave of £23 891 Details of the payment to Mark Higson are set out in fult on page 72

¢ The Board decided to review the fees of the Non-Executive Directors this year in ine with current practice (with the Remuneration Commuttee reviewing the Chairman s fees)
The Board and the Remuneration Committee felt that it was appropriate now that the Company has been Usted for a reasonable period to review the actual workload of the
Non-Executive Directors and Charman gven the Campany s profile and the challenges internally and externally that it faces The result of the rewtews was that the fees for the
Chairman were increased by 9 5 per cent to £230 000 and for the remainder of the Non-Executve Directors by 11 1 per cent to £50 000 These increases took effect from
1 April 2015 The Board and the Remuneraticn Committee banchmarked the resulting fee levels to ensure that they were in lme with sharehelder approved Palicy

? John Allan resigned an 30 April 2015
¢ Jan Babiak resigned on 29 Aprd 2014
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

How was the pay in the above table linked to performance in 2014-15?

A} Annual bonus

Annual bonus performance 1s measured over a single financial year against a range of financral and non-financial targets as set out in the
Corporate Balanced Scorecard and agamnst personal objectives The maximum bonus opportunity for the CEQ and CFO was 100 per cent
of salary

The table below contams a summary of the corporate metrics under the Corporate Balanced Scorecard which are used to determine 80 per cent
of the bonus award for the CEO and CFO

% of scorecard Weighting Measure Target  Actual Achievement Outcome
5% Total UK costs (Em}) ) 7434 7 275" Stretch 831
Financial (25%)* R i b abil P e 620 620 Target 100%
10% Free cash flow {Em) ) 300 353 Above Target 15 8%
10% First Class Quality of Service {%) ) 930 93 1 Above Target 11 3%
Customer (25%) 10% Mean business customer satisfaction ) 75 76. Stretch 167% |
5% Customer complants (‘000) ) 4600 4455 Above Target 74% I
10%  Safety " 069 067  Above Target 14 4%
Peaple (25%) 10% Employee engagement ) 55 56- Stretch 16 7%
5% Customer focus ) 70 69 Threshold 25%
10% Group revenue* (£m) 9485 9 556: Above threshold 67%
Performance (25%) 10% Eéﬁﬁé‘fy‘ gy Tor collections, processing and 22 25 Above Target 140%
5% Composite parcels qualty of service (%) ) 953 95 0 Above threshold 43%
Total 100% 128 2%
As a % of the award 80% 61 5%

* Financial targets and actuals are based on reported results subject to adjustments approved by the Remuneration Committee Group revenue and Group operating profit befare
transformation costs are adjusted for foreign exchange movements Free cash flow excludes net cash flows from the London preperty portfolio

A minimum level of operating profit before transformation costs and financial objectives identifying and simplementmg revenue opportunities
other specific items must be achieved before an Executive Director to support the future top line and improving the clarity of value drivers
becomes eligible for a payment For the year n question this minimum for GLS

profit level was £520 million actual profit achieved was £620 mullion Performance agamst these objectives was reviewed by the Committee

20 per cent of the annual bonus is based on speafic personal targets, and the resulting aggregate annual bonus awards for 2014-15 were
which are set at the start of the year and are based on each Executive as follows

Director s area of responsibility Personal targets for the CEQ mcluded » Moya Greene £432762 790 per cent of salary

speafic objectives relating to implementing strategic and operational

changes, execution of an appropriate real estate strategy, delivering the = Matthew Lester £358 711, 790 per cent of salary

Company s obligations under the 2014 Agenda for Growth agreement -

with the CWU ncreasing the pace of change in UKPIL and identifying * Mark Higsan™™* £79.663. 58 8 per cent of salary

and developing significant new revenue opportunities Personal targets  ** Salary pro-rated to leaving date of 24 July 2014

for the CFO included specific objectives relating to the strategic and
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Other information

The 2012 LTIP grant was a cash award based on performance over three financial years to 29 March 2015 It was subject to twa performance

conéitions

The primary metric was operating profit before transformation costs

Operating profit performance in the final year of the performance period Proportion of target award vesting

Less than 70 per cent of target 0 per cent
70 per cent to 80 per cent of target [
80 per cent to 100 per cent of target
100 per cent to 120 per cent of target
More than 120 per cent of target

The secondary metric was a downwards-only adjustment based on ROTA targets

0 per cent to 80 per cent vesting on a straght-tine sliding seale

100 per cent to 140 per cent vesting on a straght-line sliding scale
140 per cent vesting {1e a maximum of 98 per cent of salary}

80 per cent to 100 per cent vesting on a straight-kine sliding scale

ROTA performance over the performance pertod Adjustment

Less than 75 per cent of target Award lapses
7% per cent to 90 per cent of target

More than 90 per cent of target Nene

The outcome of the 2012 award was as follows

50 per cent reduction m the level of vesting achieved under the
operating profit performance condition

% of target ) Resulting cash awards
Measure Target* Cutcome* achieved 2014-15 LTIP vesting Moya Greene Matthew Lester
Operating profit before transformation costs £679m £682m 100 100%
ROTA 227y 2341 103 {equivalent ta 70% of salary} £350140 £300924

* Qperating prafit 1s based on reported operating profit adapted to adjustments approved by the Remuneration Committee These adjustments were i respect of the change from the
current pension rate to that embedded m the 2013 Busmess Plan and the impact of foreign exchange movements The Remuneration Committee decided that these adjustments

were required in order to determine the true comparative operating prafit for the purposes of the LTIP

The 2014 LTIP share awards were granted on 24 July 2014 and are subject to the following performance conditions

Threshold Maximum
Weighting (%) Target Vesting (% of Target Vesting (% of
Measure award) agward)
EPS* 50 9% CAGR 125 21% CAGR 50
Operating profit margin befara transformation costs** 35 - 875 - 35
Total shareholder return versus FTSE10Q (excluding
miring and financial companies) 15 Median 75 Top Quartile 15
The base EPS i1s the notional EPS excluding specific termns for the 2013-14 financial year of 26 3 pence
"The precise figures are deemed to be cammeraally sensitive but will be disclosed on vesting of the award
What previous LTIP awards remain outstanding at the year end? (Audited)
The table below sets out details of the LTIP awards outstanding at the year end
Maximum value % vesting at
of award at Maximum value threshold Final year of
grant of award at performance performance Number of
Year Type (% salary) grant {£'000) {% salary) period shares
Moya Greene 2013  LTIP {rnghts}* 98 488 0 2015-16 92 232
) 2014 LTIP (shares} 98 488 28 2016-17 108,357
Matthew Lester 2013 LTIP {nghts}* 98 419 0 2015-16 79268
2014 LTIP (shares) 98 445 28 2016-17 98797

2013 LTIP awards were converted mto conditional rights to acquire Ordmary Shares on 19 December 2013

The 2013 LTIP cash awards are suhject to the same performance conditions and sliding scale of targets as the 2012 award The precise
operating profit and ROTA figures are deemed to be commercially sensitive However, full details of the targets and performance achieved agamst

them will be disclosed on vesting of the award
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Have any payments been made to past Directors in the year? (Audited)
No payments have been made to past Directors of Royal Mail plc during the year

What about payments for Loss of 0ffice? (Audited)
As stated in the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013-14, Mark Higson stood down from the Board and ceased employment with
the Company with effect from the end of our AGM on 24 July 2014

In connection with the termimation of his employment Mark received

Payment in lieu of notice
In line with Mark's contractual entitlement, the Company made a payment in lieu of notice for the period 25 July 2014 - 29 March 2015
The total payment was for £292 509 In addition Mark was entitled to receive a payment of £23 891 n respect of unused annual leave

The payments were calculated as set out in the table below

Element Method of calcutation Amount
Salary -E:ght months and six days pay .£292 509
Pension -Ceased at termination .EU
Unused Annual Leave -14 5 days paid in lieu '£23 891

2015 Annual bonus payment
Mark was also eligible for a pro rata bonus for 2014-15 covering the perod from 1 April 2014 up to 24 July 2014 The total payment n respect
of the annual bonus will be £79,663 See page 70 for further details of the satisfaction of the bonus targets

The payment was calculated as follows -~
Base Salary (£428 400) x Corporate + Persanal Bonus as a percentage of salary (58 8%) x Proportion of Fmancial Year n role (31 6%} = £79.663

Long-Term Incentive Plan

As Mark 1s a good leaver, as defimed i the LTIP rules awards allocated to Mark in 2012 and 2013 under the Royat Mail LTIP will be released to
him on the normal vesting dates m 2015 and 2016 respectively subject to the LTIP performance targets having been achieved The award will
be reduced pro rata, ta reflect the proportton of the performance period when Mark was in role Details of the 2012 award are included in the
LTIP section on page 67

The following table sets out further details regarding the 2013 award

Number of shares subject to Proportion of performance  Maximum number of shares Maximum value of shares
Award the award period completed in role capable of release capable of release*
2013 79342 447, 35263 £55862

* Valued using the share price on 27 March 2015 of £4 42

The number of these shares actually released will be based on the level of the satisfaction of the performance conditions at the normal release
date

In respect of the 2012 LTIP award the performance period fiished at the year end of 29 March 2015 The level of the satisfaction of the
performance conditions {see page 67) was 70 per cent

Benefits
Mark benefited from private medical cover for the period of his notice In addition the Company will make a contribution to the outplacement
fees mcurred by Mark up ta the value of £50,000 plus VAT
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What is the current shareholding of the
Board? (Audited)

This table sets out details of the shareholdings
of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors
as at 29 March 2015 There has been no
change in the Directors interests in the
ordinary share capital of the Company
between 29 March and 20 May 2015

How does TSR compare to that of other
similar companies?

This graph shows the cumulative Totat
Sharehalder Return of the Group since IPO
relative to the FTSE 100 Index The FTSE
100 Index has been chosen for comparison as
the Company is a constituent of the Index and
it provides a henchmark of the performance
of other large UK listed companies

How much does Royal Mail spend on pay?
This table shows the Group's actual spend on
pay {for all employees) relative to dividends,
revenue and operating profits

We have chosen to include revenue as this
measure represents the amount of money the
company recewed during the year and
provides a clear illustration of the ratio of our
people costs to our income

Annual Report and Finanaial Statements 2014-15
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Maximum Total
Interest m scheme Total potential
Interestin  shares asa mterests potential interests as
shares % salary unvested interests a % salary
Chairman
Donald Brydon 15,530 - - - -
Executive Directors
Moya Greene 3,759 3 200,589 204,348 145
Matthew Lester 3,759 [ 178,065 181,824 177
Mark Higson* 3,643 h 79.342 82,985 86
Non-Executive Directors
John Allan 3,257
Jan Babiak** 3,030 - - - -
Nick Horler 3,173 - - - -
Cath Keers 3,030 - - - -
Paul Murray 15,477 - - - -
Orna Ni-Chionna 3,173 - - - -
Les Owen 3,030 - - -

* Asat 24 July 2014
**Resigned on 29 April 2014
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This graph shows the value by 31 March 2015 of £100 invested in Royal Mail on 10 Qctober 2013
compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

What has the pay for the Chief Executive been over the last six years?
The total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive Officer over the last six financial years is shawn in the table below The annual bonus pay
out and LTIP vesting level as a percentage of the maximum opportunity 1s also shown

Remuneration of the
Chief Executive Officer

Adam Crozier

Moya Greene*

i 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12
Total Remuneration (€ 000) . 858 2,428 778 1107
STIP award as % maximum i - - £1% 4%
LTIP award as % maximumn - 100% -

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
1962 1360 1,522
80% 77% 85%
100% 100% 69%

*Movea Greene joined i July 2010

How does the change in the Chief Executive Officer’s pay compare to that for Royal Mail employees?
The table below shows the percentage change in the Chuef Executive Officer s salary benefits and annual bonus between 2013-14 and 2014-15
compared with that for the average employee of the Group The population used to obtain the average salary 1s the frontine employee salary

Moya Greene

Average Employee?

2014-15 2013-14 % Change 201415 2013-14 % Change
Satary £547.800° £498.000 10 £24 307 £23585 3
Benefits £29,000 £29,000 - - - .
STIP £432762 £385000 12 £3486 £3132 11

! The papulation used to obtam the average salary is the fronthne employee salary The population used to obtam the average employee STIP is the full STIP-eligible population
2 The new salary came into effect from 1 January 2015 The actual salary paid to the CEO in the year was £510 450

Do the Executive Directors receive fees
from external appointments?

The Executive Directors are entitled to receive
fees from external appointments Moya
Greene was a Non-Executive Director at

Tim Hortons Inc and recewved fees of £45 573
(Sterling equivalent) for the last reported
financial year Moya Greene ceased to be a
Non-Executwe Director of Tim Hortons In¢

in December 2014 She joned the Board of
Great-West Lifeco Inc as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 7 May 2015
Great-West Lifeca Inc 15 listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange Matthew Lester s a
Non-Executive Director at Man Group ple and
recewved fees of £95 000 for the last reported
financial year

T4

Composition of the committee, advice
received and response to changes to the
corporate governance code

The members of the Committee during the
last financial year were Orna NiI-Chionna
{Chair} Donald Brydon Jan Babiak, Paul
Murray, and Les Owen Jan Bahiak resigned
as a Non-Executive Director on 29 Aprif 2014
and ceased to be a Committee member

The Committee takes mformation and advice
from inside and outside the Group Internal
support was provided by the Group HR
Director (supported by other members of
the HR department as appropniate) and the
Company Secretary The Chief Executive
Officer was inwited to attend meetings where
appropnate No mdedual was present when
matters relating to bus or her own
remuneration were discussed

Following a competitive tender process PwC
was appomted by the Commuttee in October
2014 to act as its ndependent adviser Prior
to the appointment of PwC New Bridge
Street (NBS) was the Commuttees
independent adviser The total fees paid n
respect of services to the Committee were
as follows

NBS - April to Qctober £94 707
PwC - October to March £127,000

NBS and PwC are signatories to the
Remuneration Consultants Code of Conduct
and reported directly to the chair of the
Committee The Chair of the Committee
meets regularly with its advisers without
Management present The Committee 1s
satisfied that the adwice it recerves 1s objective
and independent

The Committee 1s comfortable that the way
we implement Paolicy is in line with the new
UK Corparate Governance Code (applying
for fimancial years beginming on or after

1 October 2014) The following table sets
out the key elements of the revised Code
and how mplementation of the Company's
remuneration policy for Executive Directars
1s in line with this

Royal Mail plc
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Code Provision Company Remuneration Policy

Executive Directors’ remuneration should be  The Company operates
designed to promote the long-term success

» the LTIP which provides shares subject to performance at the end of a three year performance
of the Company

period, and
» a mmmum shareholding requirement for its Executive Directors of 100% of salary

It1s the Commuttee’s view that the combmation of the LTIP and shareholdmg requirement
provides a holistic approach to ensuring Executive Directors are focused on the long-term success
of the Company

Schemes should include provisions that The Annual Bonus and LTIP mcludes malus and clawback pravisions The circumstances n which
would enable the company to recover sums malus and clawback could apply are as follows

pad or withhold the payment of any sum
and speaify the circumstances mn which it
would be appropriate to do so

+ discovery of a material misstatement resulting m an adjustment in the audited consolidated
accounts of the Company

= the assessment of any performance target or condition in respect of an award was based on
error or inaccurate or misleading mformation

= the discovery that any mformation used to determine the cash subject to a bonus and number
of shares subject to an award was based on error, or Inaccurate or musleading mformation,

* action or conduct of a participant which, in the reasonable opimion of the Board amounts to
fraud or gross misconduct

For the Annual Bonus malus will apply to the date of the bonus determmation and clawback will
apply for three years from the date of the honus determination For the LTIP malus wilt apply to
the date of vesting and clawback for three years from the date of vesting

The Cammitteg believes that the rules of the Plans prowide sufficient powers to enforce matus
and clawback if required

For share-based remuneration, the The policy contains a mimmum shareholding requirement for Executive Directors of 100% of
Remuneration Committee should consider salary The Committee does not feel at this point taking into account the levels and the basis on
requring directors to hold a minimum number  which the Company pays its Executive Directors that there I1s a current requirement to include
of shares and to hold shares for a further holding periods However, the Committee will review the position on an annual basis

period after vesting or exercise mcluding for
a perted after leaving the company subject to
the need to finance any costs of acquisition
and assooiated tax habiities

VOTING BY SHAREHOLDERS ON LAST YEAR'S REMUNERATION REPORT
The table below shows the advisory vote an the 2013-14 Remuneration Report at the 2014 AGM

Number of votes cast For Against Withheld
609567259 607734 557 1832702 7761617
9970% 030%

The table below shows the binding vote on the 2013-14 Remuneration Policy at the 2014 AGM

Number of vates cast For Agamst Withheld
610900,442 589,564,599 21335843 6422 408
96 51% 349%

The Committee believes that this very strong level of suppart from shareholders on the Policy and its implernentation means no changes are
currently requred to the Policy operated by the Company

Approved by the Board on 20 May and signed by
Orna Ni-Chionna
Char Remuneration Committee
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Consolidated income statement
For the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2015 and 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014

Other information

- . -
L N N N R R R R R YRR RN RN Y

52 weeks 2015 52 weeks 2014
Specific Specific
Reported® tems®  Adjusted® Reported’ iterns?  Adjusted?
Notes £m Em £m £m £m £m
Continumg operations
Revenue* 2 9,328 - 9.328 9357 - 9357
Operating costs (8,717) (129) (8,588) (8 688) {58) {8 630)

People costs 412 (5 359} (129) (5230) {5267 (58) {5209

Distribution and conveyance costs (1764) - (1764) {1796) - (1796)

Infrastructure costs (1019} - (1019) {1047) - (1047)

Other operatmg costs (575) - {575) (578) - (578)

Operating profit before transformation costs 611 (129) 740 669 (58) 727
Transformation costs 3 (145) - {145) (241) - (241)
Operating profit after transformation costs 466 (129) 595 428 (58) 486
Operating specific items

Royal Maill Pension Plan amendment 4 - - - 1350 1350 -

Transaction-related costs 4 - - - (28} (28) -

Employee Free Shares charge 4 (169) (189) - (94) {94} - {

Impairment and legacy costs 4 (79) (79) - {15) {15) - ‘
Operating profit 218 (3717 595 1641 1155 486 |
Non-operating specific items

Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 4 133 133 - 19 19 -

Profit on disposal of associate undertaking 4 - - - 2 2 - 1
Earmings before mterest and tax 351 (244) 595 1662 1176 486 !
Finance costs 5 (30) - (30) {72 - (71) !
Finance income 5 4 - 4 4 - 4
Net pension nterest {non-operating specific item) 4/8(c) 75 75 - 69 69 -

Profit before tax 400 (169) 569 1664 1245 419 |
Tax (charge)/credit 3 (72) 66 (138) (386) {(276) (110) ‘
Profit for the penod from continuing operations 328 {103) 431 1278 969 309 |
Discontmued operations |
Profit after tax for the period from discontimued operations 24 - - - 2 - 2
Profit for the period 328 (103) 431 1280 969 311
Profit for the period attnbutahle to
Equity holders of the parent Company 325 (103) 428 1277 969 308
Non-controlling interests 3 - 3 3 - 3
Earnings per share \
Basic and diluted - contmuing operations g 325p {10 3}p 42 8p 127 Sp 96 9p 306p
Basic and diluted - total Group g 325p {10 3}p 42 8p 127 7p 96 9p 30 8p
Total Group revenue* 9.424 - 9.424 9456 - 9 456
Continuing operations 2328 - 9328 9357 - 9357
Discontinued operations 96 - 96 99 - 99 ‘

! Reported - prepared in accordance with Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)

? Specific items and Adjusted - non-GAAP measures explamed on page 133
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

For the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2015 and 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
Notes £m £m
Profit for the period 328 1280
Other comprehensive income/{expense) for the period from continuing operations
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Arnounts relating o pensions accaunting 1,211 {344)
IFRIC 14 adjustment relating to pensien surplus 8 (2) (8)
Actuarnal gains/(losses) on defined benefit schemes 8le) 1512 {453)
Tax on abave items’ 6 {299) 117
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange transtation differences (47) (12)
Exchange differences on translabon of foreign operations (GLS)? (74) {12)
Net gan on hedge of a net investment (€500 million bond - 2 375% Senior Fixed Rate Notes due July 2024) 27 -
Destgnated cash flow hedges (21) (19)
Losses on cash flow hedges deferred inta equity (53) (24)
Losses on cash flow hedges released from equity to income 27 [
Tax on ahove 1tems 6 5 1
Total cther comprehenstve mcome for the penod 1,143 {(375)
Total comprehensive income for the perniod 1,471 205
Total comprehenswve income for the period attributable to
Equity holders of the parent Company 1,468 902
Non-controlling interests 3 3

T includes £4 million (2023-14 Enil million) in Telation ta Reyal Mail Senior Executives Pension Plan {RMSEPP) deficit payments
2 Includes £3 million {2043-14 £l mullion) n relation to net deferred tax babilities {note 6)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2015 and 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014

H Other imformation

.
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Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
Notes £m £m
Cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit before transformaton costs 611 669
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation 21723 279 274
Share of post-tax profit from assocate 25 (1) {3)
EBITDA before transformation costs 889 940
Working capital moverents 12 83
Decrease in inventanes 1 2
{Increase)/decrease in recewvables (52} 81
Increase in payables 72 19
Net increase in denvative assets 8) {2)
Decrease in prowisions {non-speafic items) 1) {17)
Pension charge to cash difference {operating specific item) 129 58
Share-based awards (SAYE and LTIP) charge to cash difference 5 -
Cash cost of transformation operating expenditure! (228) {201)
Cash cost of operating specfic items (8) {35)
Cash inflow from operations 799 845
Income tax paid (37) {38)
Net cash inflow from eperating activities 762 807
Cash flows from investing activities
Dmidends received from asscciate undertaking 2
Finance income received 4 4
Proceeds from disposal of property (exciuding London property portfolio) plant and equipment (non-operating speafic item) 39 33
London property portfolio disposals {(non-operating specific item) 100 -
Disposal proceeds 111 -
Related ash costs (13) -
Proceeds from disposal of asspgiate undertaking {non-operating speafic item) - 3
Net cash inflow from discontinued operations - 2
Purchase of property plant and equipment’ (267) (342)
Acquisiion of business’ (7 (2)
Purchase of intangible assets {software}" (153) (69)
Payment of deferred consideraticn in Tespect of prior years acquisstions® (3) (4)
Net purchase of financial asset nvestments (current) (55) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (342) (372)
Net cash mflow before financing activities 420 435
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid on refinancing of loan fachues - (45)
Other finance costs paid {22) (37
Payment of capital element of obligations under {finance lease contracts (75) (73)
Cash recerved on sale and leasebacks 13 109
New loans 393 600
Repayment of loans and boerrowings (600) (973)
Dividends paid to equity holders 11 (200) -
Divdend paid to non-controlling interests {1) -
Net cash outflow from financing actwities (492) {419)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (72) 16
Effect of foreign currency exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 7 (1)
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the penod 15 366 351
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 15 287 366

! ltems induded in total nvestment - note 7
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014

Reported Reported
at 2% March at 30 March
2015 2014
Naotes £m £m
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 21 1,933 1989
L.easehald land payment 2 3
Goodwill {manly mvestment in GLS) 22 182 197
Intangible assets (mamly software) 23 300 195
Investment in associate 25 5 &
Finanoal assets - pension escrow mvestments 5/14/18 20 20
- dervatives 14/18/19 2 3
Retirement benefit asset - net of IFRIC 14 adjustment 8 3,179 1723
Other recevables 11 13
Deferred tax assets [ 8 9
5,642 4156
Assets held for sale 24 32 3
Current assets
Inventaries 20 22
Trade and other receivables 26 949 926
Fmancial assets - derivatives 14/18/19 5 2
- short-term deposits 5/14/18 56 1
Cash and cash equivalents 5/14/15/18 287 366
1,317 1317
Total assets 6,991 5476
Current bkabilities
Trade and other payables 27 {1,668) (1652)
Financial liabilibes - abligations under finance leases 5/14/17/18/2% (93) 87
- dervatives 14/17/18/19 (34) {12
Income tax payable (14) (14}
Provisians 20 (149) (173)
(1,958) (1938}
Non-current habibties
Finangial babilities - interest beanng loans and borrowings 5/14/16/17/18 (366) (600}
- obligations under finance leases 5/14/17/18/2% (179) (255)
- dervatwes 14/17/18/19 (14) {5)
Provistons 20 (104) (95)
Other payables (40) (31)
Deferred tax habilities [ (474) {151)
(1,177) (1137
Liabiities associated with assets held for sale 24 {10) -
Total iabilities {3,145) (3075)
Net assets 3,846 2401
Equity
Share caprtal 28 an 10
Retained earnings 3,843 2332
Other reserves {16) 52
Equity attributable to parent Company 3,837 2394
Nan-cantrolling interests 9 7
Total equity 3,846 2401

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 May 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

T G i
Moya Greene! Matthew Lester 0%?0755
Chief Executive Officer C}ﬂef Finance Officer
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Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

Far the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2015 and 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014

Foreign
currency Equity Non-

Share Retained translation Hedging | holders of controlling Tatal

capital earmings reserve reserve |the parent Interests Equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Reported at 31 March 2013 - 1318 73 10 1401 4 1405

Profit for the period - 1277 - - 1277 3 1280

Other comprehensive expense for the penod - {344) {12) (19 {375) - (375)

Share capital 1ssue 10 (10) - - - - -

Employee Free Shares issue’ (note 10) - 91 - - 91 - 91

Reported at 30 March 2014 10 2332 61 (%) 2394 7 2401

Profit for the penod - 325 - - 325 3 328

Other comprehensive iIncome/{expense) for the penad - 1,211 {&7) (21) 1,143 - 1,143

Release of Post Office Limited separation provision {note 20) - 7 - - 7 - 7

Dhvidend paid to equity holders of the parent {note 11} - (200) - - (20 - {200}

Dividend paid to non-controlling mterests - - - - - {1} 1)
Share-based payments (note 10)

- Employee Free Shares issue’ - 163 - - 163 - 163

- Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme - 1 - - 1 - 1

- Long-Term Incentwve Plan (LTIP)? - 3 - - 4 - 4

Reported at 29 March 2015 10 3,843 14 (30) 3,837 9 3,846

1 Excludes £6 millian (2023-14 £3 millien} National Insurance charged to the income statement included i prowisiens on the balance sheet
2 Excludes £1 million (2023-14 £mil millon) National Insurance charged to the income statement included i provisions on the balance sheet

A description of the reserves in the above table 1s included in note 28
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Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

Core notes to the consolidated financial statements

The notes In this section are considered by the Board to be particularly important to a reader of the financial statements

1 Basis of preparation 83
2 Segment mformation 84
3 Transfarmation costs 86
4 Speafic items 86
5 Net finance costs and net debt 87
6 Taxation 8%
7 Free cash flow 92
8 Employee benefits - pensions 93
9 Eamings per share 98
10 Share-based payment 98
11 Divdends 100
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1. Basis of preparation

This note explams how these Royal Mail plc Group {the Group) consolidated financial statements have been prepared including information
on non-GAAP measures and the Directors going concern assessment

Genera! mformation

Royal Mail plc {the Company) 1s incorporated in the United Kingdom (UK} and the consolidated financial statements are produced in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union The UK 1s the Company s country of domicile

The Company was listed an the London Stack Exchange on 15 October 2013

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 52 weeks ended 2% March 2015 (2013-14 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014)
comprise the Company and its subsidianies {tagether referred to as the Group) and the Group s interest in 1ts associate undertaking

The consolidated financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2015 were authonised for issue by the Board on 20 May 2015

Basis of preparation and accounting

The Group consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling as that 1s the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates and all values are rounded to the nearest whole Emillion except where otherwise mdicated The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on an historic cost basis, except for pension assets and derivative financtal mstruments wiich have been
measured at far value

Presentation of results
The Groups Sigruficant accounting policies’ can be found after the notes to the Group financial statements

Reported performance
The consolidated financal statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and as issued by the Internationat
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) (1e on a reported basis)

Non-GAAP performance measures

In the reporting of finanaal information, the Group uses certain measures that are not required under IFRS the Generally Accepted
Accounting Princples {GAAP) under which the Group reports The Directors beheve that these non-GAAP measures assist with the
understanding of the performance of the business

These non-GAAP measures (see page 133) are not a substitute, or supenior to any IFRS measures of performance but they have been
included as Management considers them to be an important means of comparing performance year-on-year and they include key measures
used within the business for assessing performance

Goimg concern
In assessing the gang concern status of the Group the Directors are required to look forward by a mimimum of 12 months from the end of
the reporting year 29 March 2015, to ensure that there is sufficient headroom to enable the Group to pay its creditors as they fall due

The Directors have reviewed business projections with particular emphasis on the 24 months to March 2017 to consider business cash
flows under different trading scenarios that could reasonably take place during the period under revtew The Group s business activities
strategy, performance and key risks are outlmed on pages 2 to 40

The Directors have assessed these agamst committed and undrawn funding facilities (£1,050 mullion at 29 March 2015) and other hiquid
resources available to the Group {cash at bank £127 million cash equivalent investments £140 mullion and other bank deposits £5& milhon
at 29 March 2015} Funding faclities and cash and cash equivalents available to the Group are described in further detail in notes 5, 15
and 16

The Directors are satisfied that these facilities, coupled with business projections, show that the Group will continue to operate for the
foreseeable future
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

2. Segment information

The Group's revenue certam costs and earnings before interest and tax are segmented in this note in alignment with how the business 1s
managed

Business unit Main statutory entities

Royal Mar Group Limited
Royal Mail Estates Limited
Royal Mail Investments Limited

General Logistics Systems (GLS) gg ﬁ:;n;;i(;mw & o OHG

Other European operations GLS France SAS

UK Parcels, International & Letters (UKPIL)
UK operations

Romec Limited (51 per cent owned subsidiary) - faciliies management
NDC 2000 Limited (51 per cent owned subsidiary) - design services
Quadrant Catering Ltd {51 per cent owned associate) - catenng services

Other
UK aperations

The Group is structured on a geographic business unit basis and these business units report into the Chief Executive s Committee and the
Royal Mail plc Board Each of these units has discrete revenue costs profit cash flows assets and people Therefore, full and complete
financial informatton 1s prepared and reviewed on a regular basis and compared with both historical and budget/forecast information as part
of the performance management process

The key measure of segment perfarmance I1s operating profit before transformation costs {used internally for the corporate balanced
scorecard) A reconaliation of the Group s earnings before mterest and tax (EBIT) by segment 15 also disclosed

The majornity of inter-segment revenue relates to the provision of facliies management and catering services to UKPIL Trading between
UKPIL and GLS 1s not matenal

Transfer prrces between the segments are set on a basis of charges reached through commercial negotiation with the respective business
units that formn each of the segments

Reported 52 weeks 2015

Other
European
UK aperations operations
UKPIL Other Total GLS Tatal
Continuing operations £m £m Em £m £m
External revenue 7.757 14 7,771 1,587 %328
Inter-segment revenue - 152 152 - 152
Total segment revenue 7,157 166 7.923 1,557 9,480
QOperating profit before transformation costs 486" 10 496 115 611
Transformation costs (145) - {145) - (145)
Operating profit after transformation costs 341 10 351 115 466
Operating specific items
Employee Free Share charge {169) - (169) - (169)
Impairment and legacy costs (33) - {33) {(46) {79)
Operating profit 139 10 149 69 218
Non-operating specific items
Profit on disposal of preperty plant and equipment 133 - 133 - 133
Earnings before interest and tax 272 10 282 69 351
Net finance costs (27) 1 {26)
Net pension interest {non-operating specfic item) 75 - 75 |
Profit before tax not reported 330 70 400
Tax - specaific items at this level 66 - 66
- other (102) (36) (138)
Profit for the period from continwing operations 294 34 328

*Includes £129 milion pension charge 1o cash difference - operating specific item [note 4)
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Strateqic report Governance Financial statements  : Other ;mformation
2. Segment information (continued)
Reported 52 weeks 2014
Other
European
UX operations operations
UKPIL Other Total GLS Total
Continuing operatians £m £m £m £m £m
External revenue 7787 18 7 805 1652 9357
Inter-segment revenue - 176 176 - 176
Total segment revenue 7787 194 7981 1552 9533
Qperating profit befare transformation costs 550° 13 563 106 669
Transformation costs (241) - (241) - (241)
Operating profit after transformation costs 309 13 322 106 428
Operating specific items
Royat Mail Pension Plan amendment 1350 - 1350 - 135C
Transaction-related costs (24) - (24) (4) (28)
Employee Free Share charge (94) - (94) - (94)
Impairment and legacy costs (15) - {15) - {15)
Operating profit 1526 13 1539 102 1641
Non-operating specific itermns
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 19 - 19 - 19
Profit on disposal of associate undertaking 2 - 2 - 2
Earnings before nterest and tax 1547 13 1560 102 1662
Net finance costs {70 3 {67
Net pension interest (non-operating speafic item) 69 - 69
Profit before tax nat reported 1559 105 1664
Tax - spealfic items at this level (276) - (278)
- other (69) (42) (110)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 1214 64 1278
2 Includes £58 milign pensian charge to cash difference - operating specific item (note 4)
The following amounts are included within operating profit before transformation costs
Reported 52 weeks 2015
Other
European
UK operations aperations
UKPIL Other Total GLS Total
£m Em £m £m £m
Depreciation (213) {1} {212) (300 1242)
Amortisation of intangible assets (mamly softwara) (31) - (31) (6) (37)
Share of post-tax profit from associate - 1 1 - 1
Reported 52 weeks 2014
Other
Eurcpean
UK operations operations
UKPIL Other Total GLS Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation (212) - {212) (29) (241)
Amortisation of mntangible assets (mamly software) {29) - (29) (4) (33)
Share of post-tax profit fromn associate - 3 3 - 3
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements {continued)

3. Transformation costs

Transformation costs are included within the cost base and profit that Management monitors to assess financial and trading performance
These costs relate directly to the transformation programme that has spanned several years and are therefore considered worthy of

separate disclosure

Reported Reported

52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014

Em £m

Voluntary redundancy - ongming (87) {14)
Voluntary redundancy - management resrganisation programme ] {102}
Project costs {mcluding £2 milllon management reorganisation programme costs in 2014) (55) {108}
Business transformation payments {9) (17}
Total transformation costs (145) (241)

Business transformation payments represent payments linked to the achievernent of key milestones in transforming the network, as part of

the Business Transformation Agreement 2010

4. Specific items

These are both recurnng and non-recurring income/expense items wiuch in Management's view should be disclosed separately to provide

greater visibiity of the performance of the business The definitron of specific items can be found on page 133

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £€m
Operating specific items
Pension charge to cash difference (129) {58}
Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment - 1350
Transaction-related costs - (28)
Employee Free Shares charge (169) {94)
Impairment and legacy costs (79) (15)
Potential industrial diseases claims {19) 7
Historical employment costs 15 {15)
Imparment {24) -
French Competition Authonty imvestigation costs (46) -
Other (5) 7
Total operating specific items (377) 1155
Non-operating specific tems
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 133 19
Profit on dtsposal of assoclate undertaking - 2
Net pension mterest 75 69
Tatal non-operating specific items 208 90
Total specific stems before tax (169) 1245

The impairment of £24 million relates to certain IT assets which ded not fully meet the requirements of the business
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4. Specific items (continued)

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014

Em £m

Tax effect of abave items® 58 (288)
Tax speaific items 11 12
Adjustments m respect of pnor periods g -
Impact of change n tax rate’ 2 12
Total 66 (276)

* No tax charge has been recogmised on property disposals meluded in specific tems as no tax lability weuld be expected to crystallse on the grounds that were the assets (inta which
the gains have been rolled) to be sold at their residual values no capital gam would anse
2 A tax credit was recognised far the remeasurement of certan deferred tax balances as a result of the change in UK statutory corporation tax rates

The tax credit on speafic items of £66 milhion {2013-14 £276 mullion charge) reflects the tax eifect of speafic items, mcluding the tax impact
of property transactions and certain tax-only adjustments such as the impact of changes in tax law and amounts over or under provided in
previous years in respect of speafic itemns

5. Net finance costs and net debt

This note prowvides details of

e Interest payable on loans and finance lease obligations and interest received from investments and loans This analysis excludes net
pension interest which 1s a non-cash iten and 1s derived to comply with the requirements of the relevant accounting standard 1AS 19
and

s Net debt - a non-GAAP measure which shows the Group’s overall debt position by netting the value of finanaal labilities {excluding
derwatives) against its cash and other iquid assets The balance sheet shows these tems gross within the different categories of assets
and babilities

Reported Reparted
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014
Net finance costs £m £m
Unwmding of discount relating to mdustrial diseases claims provision (2} (3)
Interest payable on financial habilities (28) (68)
HM Government facilities
Loans and barrowings - (47)
Unused facility fees - (2}
Other faciity fees - (3)
Syndicated bank loan facility
Loans and borrowings (7 {3)
Unused facility fees (2) (1)
Arrangement fees’ (4) (2)
€500 milhon bond - 2 375% Senwor Fixed Rate Notes due July 2024 (6) -
Fimance leases )] {10)
Losses realised on mterest rate swap contracts’ (2) -
Finance costs (30) (71)
Interest recewable on finanoal assets 4 4
Fimance mcome & A
Net finance costs (26) (67)

* Arrangement fees include £2 milion (2023-14 Enil mulhon) wntten off upon repayment of £350 millien of the term loans following the bond issue
2 The interest rate swap contracts were closed out early upon repayment of the remaiming term loan on 9 March 2015
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

5. Net finance costs and net debt (continued)

Net debt

Reported Reported

at 29 March at 30 March

2015 2014

Balance sheet category £m £m

Obligations under finance leases Current hahilities (93) (87
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings Non-current habilities (366) {600)
Obligations under finance leases Non-current liabilities (179) {255)
(638) {942)

Cash and cash equivalents 287 366
Cash at bank and in hand Current assets 127 37
Client cash® Current assets 20 14
Cash equivalent mvestments® Current assets 140 315
Financial assets - short-term deposits {bank and local autharity deposits) Current assets 56 1
Pension escrow investments (RMSEPP) Non-current assets 20 20
Total net debt (275) {555)

3Clent cash 1s cash collected from consignees by GLS on behalf of its posting customers
“Cash equivalent investments include short-term bank and local authonty deposits money market fund mvestments and ather financial assets

Net debt decreased by £280 million during the year ended 29 March 2015 and by £351 million during the year ended 30 March 2014 as
shown below

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014

£m £m

Net debt brought forward (555) (906)

Free cash flow 453 398

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent Company (200) -

Dwvidend paid to non-controlling interests (1) -

Finance costs paid on refinancing of loan facilities - {45)

Decrease/{increase) in finance lease obligations {nan-cash) 8 (1)

Foreign currency exchange impact on cash and cash eguivalents (7) (1)

Foreign currency exchange rate impact on €500 million bond 27 -

Net debt carried forward at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 {275) (555)
Below 1s a summary of loans and borrowings at the year end the respective average interest rates and facilities available

Average Average

Average maturity maturity

Further Interest rata Basis of interest date of date of

Loans and committed Total of loan drawn rate chargeable loan drawn loan

borrowings facility faciity down at 2% March 2015 down facility

Em £m £m % % Year Year

Syndicated bank loan facilities - 1,050 1,050 nfa LIBOR plus 0 55% nfa 2020

€500 millkon bond - 2 375% Senior Fixed Rate Notes 366 - 366 25 Fixed at 2 5% 2024 2024

Total 366 1,050 1,416 25 2024 2021

The bond 1ssued in July 2014 15 shown net of 1ssue discount and fees and at a closing spot rate of £0 737/€ The effective interest rate on
the bond (2 5 per cent} consists of the interest coupon of 2 375 per cent plus the unwinding of the discount and fees on 1ssuing the band
(0 08 per cent} The £300 mullion Term Loan B and £50 mithon of Term Loan A were repaid on 15 August 2014 through proceeds raised
from the bond 1ssue The bond is designated as a hedge of the net investment in GLS, which has the Euro as its functional currency Quring
the year, a gain of £27 million on the retranslation of this borrowing was transferred to other comprehensive income which offsets the
losses on translation of the net mvestrment in GLS There 1s no hedge ineffectiveness i the period ended 2% March 2015

In March 2015, the Group took advantage of favourable market conditions to negotiate amendments to the syndicated bank loan facility to
allow converston of the remaining term loan into a revolving credit faclity a reduction to the interest rates charged, and to extend the
matunty date {to March 2020 with the option to extend for a further two years) This increased flexibility allowed the remaming £250 million
of the existing syndicated bank loans to be repard on 9 March 2015, whilst maintaining the same level of faclities
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5. Net finance costs and net debt {continued)

The syndicated bank loan facility can be cancelled and any loans drawn under the facility can become repayable immediately on the
occurrence of an event of default under the loan agreements These events of default include non-payment msolvency and breach of
covenant relating to interest {excluding arrangement fees), adjusted net debt and EBITDA It 1s not anticipated that the Group s at risk of
breaching any of these obligations

The covenants require the Group to maintain the (leverage) ratio of adjusted net debt to EBITDA below 3 1 and EBITDA to interest (exctuding
arrangement fees) above 3 51 Adjusted net debt consists of net debt plus Letters of Credit (contingent labilities in respect of the UKPIL
Insurance programme where the possibility of an outflow of economic benefits 1s considered remote’) and 1s adjusted for exchange rate
movements during the year The Group s leverage ratio at 29 March 201515 0 4 1 (2013-14 0 7 1) The Groups ratio of EBITDA to interest
{excluding arrangement fees) at 29 March 2015 is 40 41 (2013-14 31 4 1) As a result the Group 15 well within its covenant agreement at
29 March 2015

The interest rate chargeable on the syndicated bank loan faclity would increase if more than one third of the facility was drawn and would
mncrease If the Group's leverage ratio exceeded 11 Under the loan agreement the maximum mterest rate chargeable would be LIBOR plus
1 45 per cent The €500 million bond becomes repayable iImmediately on the occurrence of an event of default under the bond agreement
These events of default include nen-payment and insolvency The blended interest rate on gross debt for the period to 27 March 2016 1s
forecast to be approximately three per cent

® The lease arrangement for automation equipment which required Royal Mail to arrange for the provision of Letters of Credit (2013-14 £37 mullion) was terminated dunng the
year and the Letters of Credit were cancelled undrawn

6. Taxation

This note provides details about current tax (charges)/credits on profit and deferred tax (charges)/credits relating to the impact of past
events on expected future tax The note also prowvides the tax impact of specfic items further detatls of which can be seen in note 4

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014
£m £m

Tax (charged)/credited m the income statement
Current imcome tax
Current UK mcome tax charge (13) (1)
Foreign tax (32} (34)
Current income tax charge (45} (35}
Amounts over/lunder) provided in earlier years 6 {2)
Total current income tax charge (39) (37
Deferred income tax
Effect of change in tax rates 2 12
Relabing to ongination and reversal of temporary differences (36) (368)
Amounts over prowided in previous years 1 7
Total deferred income tax charge (33) {349)
Tax charge in the consolidated mcome statement (72) (386)
Tax on non-GAAP, specific tems
Tax credit/(charge) relating to specific items 66 (276)
Tax (charged)/credited to other comprehensive income
Deferred tax
Actuanat (gatns)losses on defined benefit pension schemes (303) 117
Tax relief on pension payments 4 -
Net gains on revaluation of cash flow hedges 5 1
Total (charge)/credit m the consolidated statement of other comprehensive iIncome {294) 118
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements {continued)

6. Taxation (continued)

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

A reconciliation of the tax charge in the income statement and the UK rate of corporation tax applied to accounting profit for the 52 weeks

ended 29 March 2015 and 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014 is shown below

Reported Reported

52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014

Em £m

Profit before tax 400 1664
At UK standard rate of corporation tax of 21% (2013-14 23%) (84) (383)
Effect of higher taxes on overseas earmings {6) (2)
Tax aver provided i prior years 7 5
Non-deductible expenses {19) (10)
Associate s profit after tax charge included in Group pre-tax profit 1 1
Tax effect of property disposals 29 -
Net increase in tax charge resulting from non-recegrittion of deferred tax assets and habilities (2) (9)
Effect of change in tax rates 2 12
Tax charge in the mmcome statement (72) (386)

Current tax

Substantially all of the current tax charge for the Group is In respect of GLS UK taxable profits in 2014-15 are almost fully covered by a
combimation of brought forward losses capital allowance claims and a further statutory deduction in respect of shares awarded to employees

under the Employee Free Shares scheme Accordingly the current tax rate for the Group 1s 20 per cent
Effective tax rate

The effective tax rate on reported profit 1s 18 per cent comprising current tax due on reported profits and deferred tax in relation to
temporary differences This rate 15 below the UK statutory rate princpally because no tax charge has been recognised in relation to property
disposals as no tax ltability would be expected to crystallise on the grounds that were the assets (into which gains have been rolled) to be

sold at their residual values no capital gain would anse

GLS pays tax in a number of terntories with the majonty of its profits in the perod to 29 March 2015 earned in terntones where the tax
rate 1s above the UK statutory tax rate Cerian subsitianies, notably GLS France, remaim unable 1o recognise tax credits on losses made
durning the reporting perniod These factors contnibute to GLS having a higher effective tax rate for the penod than the UK statutory rate

Deferred tax

(-Dehlted)/ (Debited)/
{Debited)/ credited to {Debited)/ credited to
credited to other Reported credited to other Reported
At 31 March income  comprehensive  at 2% March At 1 Apnl mcome  ¢omprehensive  at 30 March
2014 statement Income 2015 2013 statement Incame 2014

Deferred tax by balance sheet category £m £Em £m Em £m £m £m £m
Liabiities
Accelerated capital allowances (1) - - (1) - (1) - (1)
Pensions temporary differences (339) 13 (303) (629) (222) (234) 117 {(339)
Employee share schemes (65} 17 - (48) - (65) - (65}
Goodwill qualifymg for tax allowances (28} (4) 3! (29) {23) (5) - (28}
Deferred tax labilues (433) 26 (300} (707) (245) {305) 117 {433)
Assets
Deferred capital allowances 169 (42) - 127 245 (76) - 169
Provisions and other 30 (5) - 25 37 {7} - 30
Losses available for offset agamst future
taxable income 90 (12) 4 82 51 39 - 30
Hedging derwatives temporary differences 2 - 5 7 1 - 2
Deferred tax assets 291 (59) 9 241 334 (44) 1 291
Net deferred tax (hability)/asset (142) (33) (291) (466) 89 {349) 118 {142)

1£3 million (2013-14 Enil miltion} credited to the foreign currency translation reserve
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6. Taxation (continued)
Reported Reported
at 2% March at 30 March
2015 2014
Deferred tax - balance sheet presentation £m £m
Liabilities
GLS Group (31) (30
Net UK position (443) (121)
Deferred tax lahilities (474) (151)
Assets
GLS Group 8 9
Net UK position - -
Deferred tax assets 8 9
Net deferred tax Lability (466) (142)

The reported deferred tax position shows an increased averall liability in the reporting period to 2% March 2015

This increase in the reported liability 1s primarnily as a result of the deferred tax impact of the increase m UK penston assets as described in
note 8, which has been reflected in other comprehensive income

GLS has deferred tax assets and labilities mn vanous junsdictions which cannot be offset against one another The main balance relates to
goodwill and intangibles liabilitres in GLS Germany far which the Group has already taken tax deductions

At 29 March 2015 the Group had unrecognised deferred tax assets of £68 million (2013-14 £68 mitlion} compnsing £61 milhion {2013-14
£63 million) retating to tax losses of £227 rmillion {2013-14 £238 million), mainly in GLS that are available for offset against future profits if
generated in the relevant companies and £7 mullion (2013-14 £5 mullion} in relation to £33 million {2013-14 £23 million} of UK capital
losses carried forward The Group has not recognised these deferred tax assets on the basis that it 1s not sufficiently certain of its capacty to
utiise them in the future

The Group also has temporary differences in respect of £295 million {2013-14 £307 million} of capital losses the tax effect of which 1s

£59 mutlion (2013-14 £61 million) In respect of assets previously qualifying for industrial buildings allowances Further temporary differences
exist in relation to £308 million (2013-14 £214 million) of gains for which rollover rehef has been claimed, the tax effect of which is

£62 milion (2013-14 £43 million) No tax liability would be expected to crystallise on the basis that were the assets (into which the gains
have been rolled) to be sold at their residual values no capital gam would arise
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7. Free cash flow

The Group uses free cash flow to monitor and manage its cash performance This measure eliminates inflows/outflows between net debt
items {note 5) and mcludes finance cash costs paid This note provides a reconciliabion of net cash inflow before financing activities n the

consohdated statement of cash flows, prepared under IFRS, to free cash inflow” which 15 a non-GAAP measure

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £m
EBITDA befare transformation costs {see consolidated statement of cash flows) 889 940
Pension charge to cash difference {operating specific item) 129 58
Total Group angoing pension costs i the income statement 552 479
Total Group cash flows relating to ongoing pension costs
RMPP defined benefit scheme employer contnibutions (note 8(d)} {369) {320)
Defined cantribution scheme emplayer cantributions (44) {31)
RMSEPP deficit correction payments {note 8(d)) {10) (10)
Trading working capital movements 1 {57)
Share-based awards (SAYE and LTIP) charge to cash difference 5 -
Dividend recewved from associate undertaking - 2
Net cash inflow from discontinued operations - 2
Total mvestment® (658) (617)
Growth capital expenditure (178) (201)
Replacement capital expenditure (252) (215}
Transformation operating expenditure (228) (201)
Income tax pard (37} (38)
Net finance costs paid {18) (33)
In-year trading cash inflow 311 257
Other working capital movements 11 140
Cash cost of aperating specific items (8) (35)
Proceeds frem disposal of property {excluding Londan property portfolio) plant and equipment {non-operating specific items) 39 33
Proceeds from disposal of associate undertaking (nen-operating specific item) - 3
London property portfolio disposals {non-operating specific item) 100 -
Disposal proceeds 111 -
Related cash costs {11 -
Free cash inflow 453 3%8
! Total mvestment 1s represented by several different line iterns in the consolidated statement of cash flows
Working capital movements
Reported Reperted
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £m
Other working capital mavemnents
March 2015 payroli paid after balance sheet date of 29 March 2015 46 -
Stamps used but purchased in previous pericds/deferred revenue (35) (10)
Unwinding of pension prepayment made in March 2012 - 150
Total other working capital mavernents 11 140
Trading working capital movements 1 (57)
Total worlung capital movements 12 83
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7. Free cash flow (continued)

Free cash flow reconcibation
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The foltowing analysis provides a reconciliation of ‘net cash mflow before financing activities’ in the consolidated statement of cash flows and

free cash inflow

Reported Reported

52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014

£m £m

Net cash inflow before financing actmities 420 435
Net purchase of financial asset investments {current) 55 -
Other finance costs paid (22) {37)
Free cash inflow 453 368

8. Employee benefits - pensions

At 29 March 2015, a pension asset of £3 179 miilion has been recogrised compared with £1,723 milhion at 30 March 2014 This increase

is pnmarily due to the return on hability hedging assets as explained further in this note

Summary pension information

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £m
Ongoing pension costs

UK defined benefit scheme (ncome statement rates’ 23 6% 20 3%} (508) (448)
UK defined contribution scheme {38) (25)
Total UK ongoing pension costs (546) (473)
Total 6LS defined contribution type scheme costs (6) {6)
Total Group ongoing pension costs {552) (479)
Difference hetween ongoing ncome statement charge and cash flows {cash flow rates 17 1% for both years)® 139 68
Total Group pension cash flows relating to ongoing pension costs (413) {411)
Reported Reported
at 29 March  at 30 March
2015 2014
'000 000

UK pension schemes - active membership
UK defined benefit scheme 100 106
UK defined contnbution scheme 39 36
Total 139 142

1 This service cost 1s charged to the mcome statement It represents the cost [as a percentage of pensionable payroll) of the increase over the year in the defined benefit obligation
due to members eammg one mare year of pension benefits It 15 calcutated in accordance with IAS 19 and 1s based on market yields {high quality corporate bonds and inflation)

at the beginming of the Company s reporting year

2 This difference excludes the Royal Mail Semar Executives Pensian Plan (RMSEPP) defiat correction payments of £10 mullion (201314 £10 millon} The employer contribution
cash flow rate forms part of the payroll expense and 15 pard mto the Rayal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) (RM section} The tontnbution rate 15 set fallowing each actuanal funding

valuation usually every three years These actuanal valuations are required to be camed out on assumptions determened by the Trustee and agreed by Royal Mail

UK Defimed Contnbution Scheme

The Group operates the Royal Mail Defined Contribution Plan which was launched i Apnl 2009 and 1s open to employees who joined the

Company from 31 March 2008 following closure of the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) to new members

Ongoirg UK defined contnibution scheme costs have increased from £25 mellion in 2013-14 to £38 milhon mainly due to an mncrease in the

average employer s contnibution rate from 3 8 per centin 2013-14 to 5 4 per cent

Annuat Report and Financial Staternents 2014-15
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8. Employee benefits - pensions (continued)

UK Defined Benefit Schemes

Royal Mail Group Limited had one of the largest defined benefit pension schemes in the UK {based on membership and assets}, called the
RMPP 0On 1 April 2012 {one week nto the 2012-13 reporting year) - after the granting of State Aid approval by the European Commission
to HM Government on 21 March 2012 - almost all of the historic pension hakilities and pension assets of RMPP butt up untit 31 March
2012, were transferred to a new HM Government pensian scheme the Royal Mail Statutory Pension Scheme (RMSPS)

On this date RMPP was also secttonalised with Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited each responsible for their own sections
from 1 April 2012 onwards

The transfer left the Royal Mail section {RM section) of the RMPP fully funded on an actuanal basis This means that using long-term
actuarial assumptions agreed at that date 1t was predicted the Company would have to make no further cash defiot correction payments
relating to the historic rabilities All further references in this note to the RMPP, relate to its RM section

Royal Mail Pensien Plan (RMPP)
The RMPP 1s funded by the payment of contributions to separate trustee administered funds RMPP includes sections A B and C each with
different terms and conditions

Section A1s for members (or beneficianies of members) who jomed before 1 December 1971

Section B 1s for members (or beneficianies of members) who Jjomed on or after 1 December 1971 and hefore 1 Apnl 1987 or for members
of Section A who chose to receive Section B benefits and

Section C is for members (or beneficaries of members) who jomed on or after 1 Apri 1987 and before 1 Apnit 2008 Benefits prowided are
based on career salary blocks for years service revalued annually

Following conclusion of the March 2012 actuarial valuation the regular future service contnbution rate for RMPP, expressed as a percentage
of pensionable pay, remained at 17 1 per cent As the valuation showed the Plan to be mn surplus no deficit correctson payments are
currently being made by the Company The Group expects to contribute around £369 million to the RMPP in respect of normal cash service
costs n 2015-16

Royal Mail Senior Executives Pension Plan {RMSEPP)

The Group also contnibutes to a smaller defined benefit scheme for executives RMSEPP — which closed in December 2012 to future accrual
The Company therefore makes no regular future service contnbutions As agreed in the March 2012 actuarial valuation the Company makes
defictt carrection payments of £10 mullion per annum unttl at least the date on which the 2018 valuation 15 completed {no later than 30
September 2018) Defiat correction payments i 2014-15 were £10 million {2013-14 £10 million)

A liability of £2 mulion (2013-14 £1 million) has been recogrised for future payment of pensian benefits to a past Director

Pensions Reform

In June 2013, the Company began a consultation with RMPP members on a proposal to ensure the RMPP could remaim apen to future
accrual subject to certain condrtions at least until the conclusion of the next periodic review i March 2018 Subsequently on 26 September
2013 the Company agreed with the RMPP Trustee to implement a Pensions Reform with effect from 1 Apnl 2014

The agreed changes due to the Pensions Reform were considered to be a Plan amendment which met the IAS 1% definition of a past service
cost and as such £1 350 mullion was recognised in the mcome statement of the Group for the comparative year ended 30 March 2014

Accounting and actuarial surplus position (RMPP and RMSEPP)

Accounting {IAS 19) Actuanal/cash funding
Reported Reporied Reported Reported
at 29 March at 30 March  at 31 March at 31 March
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m Em
Fair value of schemes assets (8{(b) below) 6,619 3833 6,462 3873
Present value of schemes liabilities (3.425) (2097) {4,669) (2 451)
Surplus in schemes (pre IFRIC 14 adjustment) 3,194 1736 1,793 1422
IFRIC 14 adjustment (15} {13} n/a nfa
Surplus in schemes 3,179 1723 1,793 1422

There 1s no element of the present value of the schemes habilities above that arises from schemes that are wholly unfunded The actuanal
liabilities calculated for the Annual Report and Financial Statements are required within shorter timescales, which can lead to differences
approximations and assumptions compared to the scheme actuary s funding updates

The surplus 1n RMSEPP s assumed to be available as a refund as per IFRIC 14 and as such 15 shown net of taxation withheld
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8. Employee benefits - pensions (continued)

The surplus in RMPP 15 assumed to be recoverable as a reduction to future employer contributions Therefore, no IFRIC 14 adjustment
1s required The Directors do not believe that the current excess of pension scheme assets over the liabilities on an accounting basis will
result n an excess of pension assets on a funding basis However, the Directors are reguired to account for the pension scheme based
on their legal nght to benefit from a surplus, using long-term actuanal assumptions current at the reporting date, as required by IFRS

The actuanal/cash funding surplus of £1 793 million at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014 surplus of £1,422 millon) allows the RMPP to
reman open for the benefit of the members at least until March 2018 subject to certain conditions (as part of the Pensians Reform
agreement] without requiming either the Company or mdividuals to make unaffordable increases ta their cash contributions

The funding hiabilsties have increased more than the accounting liabilibies since they are calculated by reference to gilt yields which have
fallen to a greater extent than corporate bond yields on which the accounting labilities are calculated As a result, the funding surplus has
increased less than the accounting surplus

The following disclosures relate to the major assumptions sensitmvities surplus and gains/losses in the RMPP and RMSEPP defined
benefit schemes

a) Major long-term assumptions used for accounting (IAS 19) purposes - RMPP and RMSEPP
The major assumptions used to calculate the accounting position of the pension schemes were as follows

Reported Reportad

at 29 March at 30 March

2015 2014

Retail Price Index (RP1) 31% 34%

Consumer Price Index (CP1) 21% 24%
Discount rate

- naminal 35% 45%

- real {nommal less RPIY 04% 11%

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries® RPI-0 1% RPI-0 1%

Rate of increase for deferred pensions CPI Chl

Rate of pension increases - RMPP Sections A/B CPI CPI

Rate of pension ncreases — RMPP Section C* RPI-0 1% RPI-01%

Rate of pension mcreases - RMSEPP members transferred from Section A or B of RMPP CPI CPI

Rate of pension mcreases - RMSEPP all other members RPI-0 1% RPI-D 1%

Life expectancy fromn age 60 - for a current 40/60 year old male RMPP member 29/27 years 29/27 years

Life expectancy from age 60 - for a current 40/60 year old female RMPP member 32/30 years 32/30 years

? The real discount rate used reflects the [ong average duration of the RMPP scheme of around 30 years
 The rate of mcrease in salanies and the rate of pension mcrease for Section C members {who jomed RMPP on or after April 1987) and RMSEPP all other members 15 capped
at five per cent which results in the average long-term pension increase assumption being 10 basis points lower than the RPI lang-term assumption

Mortality

The mortalty assumptions for RMPP are based on the latest Self Admimistered Pension Scheme (SAPS) S1 mortality tables with appropriate
scaling factors (106 per cent for male pensioners and 101 per cent for female pensioners) Future improvements are based on the CMI 2012
core projections with a long-term trend of 1 25 per cent per annum

Sensitivity analysis for RMPP liabilities
The RMPP liabikties are sensitive to changes in key assumptions The potential impact of the largest sensitivities on the RMPP liabilittes 1s
as follows

Potential

Increase n

liabilities

Key assumption change £m
Additional one year of life expectancy 95
Increase 1n inflation rate (both RPI and CPI simultaneously) of 0 1% p a 90
Decrease m discount rate of 01% pa 90
Increase in CP{ assumption (assurnmg RPI remains constant) of 3 1% pa 25

This sensitivity analysis has been determined based on a method that assesses the impact on the defined benefit ebligation resuiting from
reasanahle changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year Changes opposite to those n the table (e g an increase in
discount rate) would have the opposite effect on labibties

The average duration of the RMPP obligation 1s 30 years {2013-14 28 years)
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8. Employee benefits - pensions {continued)
b) Schemes’ assets - RMPP and RMSEPP

Reported at 29 March 2015

Reported at 30 March 2014

Quoted Unguoted Total Cuoted Unguoted Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities
UK 22 165 187 28 82 110
Overseas 411 - 411 321 - 321
Bonds
Fixed interest - UK 60 8 68 101 8 109
- Overseas 525 - 525 371 - 371
Index linked - UK 195 - 195 154 - 156
- Overseas - - - - - -
Pooled investments
Managed funds 576 - 576 303 - 303
Unit Trusts 4,166 - 4,166 18464 - 1864
Property {UK) 23 295 318 20 230 250
Cash and cash equivalents 175 - 175 345 - 345
Other 25 - 25 5 - 5
Derwatives (27) - (27 (1) - (1)
Total schemes’ assets 6,151 468 6,619 3513 320 3833

There were no open eguity derivatives within this portfalio at 29 March 2015 {at 30 March 2014 £nit mullion) Included within the pension
assets are £3 7 bilion {2013-14 £2 0 billion) of HM Government Bonds The schemes assets do not include property occupted by the Group

the Group s own shares, or assets used by the Group
Risk exposure and investment strategy

The investment strategy of the RMPP Trustee aims to safeguard the assets of the Plan and to provide, together with contributions the
financial resource from which benefits are paid Investment s inewitably exposed ta risks The investment risks mherent in the mvestment
markets are partially mitigated by pursuing a widely diversified approach across asset classes and investment managers The RMPP uses
dervatives (such as swaps and futures) to reduce risks whilst mamntaining expected investment returns The RMPP Trustee recognises that
there 1s a natural confiict between improving the potential for positive return and bmiting the potential for poor return The RMPP Trustee
has specified objectives for the investment policy that balance these requirements

The largest nisks faced by the Plan are movements m interest rates and inflation rates To reduce the risk of movements in these rates drving the
Plan into a funding defict and the Company not being able to maintam its March 2018 commitment the Trustee aims to hedge n advance the
funding liabilities which wall build up by March 2018 The lizbilities projected to accrue to March 2017 have already been hedged - predominantly
through investrment in gilts and denvatives {interest rate and inflation rate swaps) held in Unit Trust pooled investments providing economic exposure
to gilts The impact of the Plan s advance hedging of projected funding habilities is to increase volatility in the pension surplus due to the retum on the
liability hedging assets not being matched by an increase in the accrued labilties As the accrued liabilities get closer to the projected liabilities that
have been hedged this volatility will reduce The increase in the llability hedged assets is predominantly reflected in the Unit Trust values above which

have increased from £1 864 million at 30 March 2014 to £4 166 mithon at 29 March 2015

The notional value covered by the interest rate swaps (full exposure to the relevant asset class incurred by entering mto a derwative contract)
held m a speaific managed portfolio for this purpose at 29 March 2015 1s £2 5 hillion (at 30 March 2014 £2 3 hillion) and the notional value

covered by the inflation rate swaps at 29 March 2015 1s £1 8 hillion (at 30 March 2014 £1 5 billion)

The spread of investments continues to balance security and growth in order to pay the RMPP henefits when they hecome due
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8. Employee benefits - pensions (continued)

¢) Movement in schemes’ assets, labilities and net position - RMPP and RMSEPP
Changes in the value of the defined benefit pension kabilities fair value of the schemes’ assets and the net defined benefit asset/{liability} are
analysed as follows

Net defined benefit

Defined benefit asset Defined benefit ability asset/{bability)
Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Retrement benefit surplus (pre IFRIC 14 adjustrment) at 31 March 2014 and
1 April 2013 3,833 3343 (2,097) (2513) 1,736 830
Amounts included in the Income statement
Ongaing UX defined benefit pension scheme costs (included in People costs note 12} - - {508) {448) (508} (448)
Royal Mail Pension Plan amendment - - - 1350 - 1350
Pension interest income/(cost)® 183 172 (108) (103) 75 69
Total meluded in profit before tax 183 172 (616) 799 (433) 971
Amounts mcluded in other comprehensive iIncome - remeasurement
gans/{losses)
Actuanal gainflloss) ansing from
Demographic assumptions - - - 4 - 4
Financial assumptions - - (590) (256) (590) (256)
Experience adjustment - - 5 2 5 2
Return on schemes assets (excluding interest income) 2,097 {203) - - 2,097 (203)
Total actuana! gams/f{losses) on defined benefit schemes 2,097 {203) (585) {250) 1,512 (453)
Other
Employer contnbutions 409 407 - - 409 407
Ermployee contributions 129 136 (129) {136) - -
Bensfits paid (33) (25) 33 25 - -
Curtailment costs - - (31) (20) {(31) (20}
Movernent in pension-related accruals 1 3 - (2) 1 1
Total other movements 506 521 (127) (133} 379 388
Retirement benefit surplus (pre IFRIC 14 adjustment) at 29 March 2015
and 30 March 2014 6,619 3833 (3,425) {2097} 3,194 1736

5 Pension interest ncome results from applying the schemes discount rate at 30 March 2014 to the schemes assets at that date Simularly the pension interest cost results from
applying the schemes discount rate as at 30 March 2014 to the schemes liabiliues at that date

The retum on assets has been driven by the ncrease m market value of gilts, which the RMPP Trustee holds as part of its lability hedging strategy

This strategy has been agreed with the Company to support the commitment Royal Mail has made to its employees which is that, subject to certain

conditions RMPP will remain open until at least March 2018

in addition to the above items which affect the defined benefit asset, additional curtaiment costs of £10 milbion {2013-14 €34 million) were
recognised in the income statement on a consistent basis with the associated redundancy costs Estimates of both are mcluded m any
redundancy provision raised
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8. Employee benefits - pensions (continued)

d) Pension tash flows
The analysis below shows how the defined benefit scheme employer contributrons in note 8(c) reconcile with the defined benefit scheme
pension cash flows in note 7

Reported Reported

at 29 March at 30 March

2015 2014

£m £m

Ongoing defined benefit (RMPP) scheme employer centributians 369 380
Defiat correction payments (RMSEPP) 10 10
Pension (RMPP) top-up payments relating to voluntary redundancy - within transformation operating expenditure 30 17
Employer defined benefit scheme contributions (note 8(c}) 409 407

9. Earmnings per share

This note explans the calculation of the Group’s earnings per share The calculation for the comparative year I1s based on the
1,000,000 000 shares that were issued part way through that year (September 2013) and which were subsequently listed on the London
Stock Exchange n October 2013 The nate alsa includes non-GAAP adjusted mmformation

52 weeks 2015 52 weeks 2014
Reported Adjusted Reported Adusted
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of the parent (£m) 325 428 1275 306
Weighted average nurnber of shares 1ssued (milbon) 1,000 1,000 1000 1000
Basic earnings per share (pence} 325 428 1275 304
Diluted earmings per share {pence) 325 42 8 1275 306

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 29 March 2015 15 based on a weighted average number of shares of 1,001 485 583 to
take account of the issue of potential ordinary shares resulting from the Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) for certam senior management and
the Save As You Earn {SAYE) scheme that was launched durning the reporting year (note 10)

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the comparative year ended 30 March 2014 assumed that one billion shares in 1ssue at the date
of the Company s listing on the London Stock Exchange (15 October 2013) existed for the whale of that reporting year

10. Share-based payment

This note provides details about the Free Shares awarded to employees including the associated accounting charge to the Group's
income statement under IFRS 2, and the number of shares held in the Share Incentive Plan (SIP) at the end of the reporting year Details
of shares awarded under the Lang-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Earn {SAYE) scheme are also mcluded

Employee Free Shares

Ordinary shares representing ten per cent of the value of the Company were granted free of charge to eligible employees on 15 October
2013 the date of the Initial Public Offering These Free Shares are held on behalf of employees in an HM Revenue and Customs {HMRC)-
approved Share Incentive Plan (SIP) administered by Equmiti Share Plan Trustees Limited (Equinity)

613 shares were awarded to each eligible full-time employee as thewr 2013 SIP allocation The Company allocated a further 116 shares (729
m total - see below) to ehgible full-time employees on ¢ Apnit 2014 as a 2014 SIP allocation subject to them remaining employees of Roval
Mail Group Limsted

The 729 total shares awarded to eligible full-time employees camprises the 725 imitial expected allocation of shares and an additional four
shares resulting from the reallocation of shares forfeited by certain employees who left the Group during the 2013-14 reporting period
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10. Share-based payment (continued)

Part-time eligible employees have been allocated a pro-rata number of shares All allocated shares will be equity-settled

The fair value of the award of Free Shares 1s £510 million (including £20 milbon National Insurance) which 1s being charged to the income
statement on a straight kine basis, adjusted for 'good leavers and forfeitures aver the period of vesting (three years for the 2013 SIP and
four years for the 2014 SIP mm each case from the award date)

A charge to the income statement of £169 milhion (including £6 million National Insurance} has been made for the year ended 29 March
2015 for both SIP atlocations, as they were granted as one award

The Free Shares are held 1n a Trust funded by Royal Mail and may only be distnbuted to or for the benefit of eligible employees The Trust
15 under the control of the Company and 15 operating for its benefit At 29 March 2015 the Trust has been included in these consolidated
financal statements

A reconciliation of the ordinary shares held in the SIP at 22 March 2015 1s shown below

Number of

shares

Imitial shares award on 15 October 2013 84 415327
Shares transferred out of SIP - good leavers (809 247)
Remaining shares to be allocated 15744 673
Total shares remarming in SIP at 30 March 2014 99350753
Shares transferred out of SIP during the reperting period { goad leavers } {4 494 836}
Total shares remaming in SIP at 29 March 2015 94,855,917

Of the total shares remaning in the scheme 92,983 863 are allocated to current employees The remaming 1,872 054 shares are
unallocated of which 1 763 804 arose as a result of forfeitures wath a further 108,250 not subject to allocation under either SIP

Award of shares under the Lang-Term Incentve Plan (LTIP)

The 2013 LTIP is a three-year scheme that vests in March 2016 This scheme 15 being treated as a cash-settled scheme on the assumption
that the award wilt result in cash payment The fair value of the award reflects the share price at the reporting year end date of 29 March
2015 at which point the value was £5 million {2013-14 £5 million}

A further LTIP award was granted to senior management on 31 March 2014 (2014 LTIP) This award 1s equity-settled with the fair value of
the shares awarded bemg set at the grant date market value of 450 4 pence A total of 3 5 mullion shares have the potential to vest under
the 2014 LTIP

The total income statement charge ansing from both LTIP schemes 1s summansed in the table below

Reparted Reporied
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014

£wm om

2013 LTIP - 5
2014 LTIP 5 -
Total 5 5

The LTIP shares are not part of the SIP explained above Further details of both the 2013 and 2014 LTIP plans can be found in the
Directors remuneration report on pages 64 - 75
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10. Share-based payment (continued)

Save As You Earn Share (SAYE) share option scheme

On 24 July 2014 a SAYE share option scheme was introduced for eligible employees Under the terms of the scheme the Board permits the
grant of options in respect of ordinary shares in the Company te those emplayees who enter into an HMRC-approved SAYE sawngs contract
These contracts are for a term of three years with contributions from employees of an amount between £5 and £59 each month The
options purchased may be exerased during the six month period following the end of the contract at a subscription pnce of not less than 80
per cent of the average of the mid-market quotations of an ordinary share over the three dealing days immediately preceding the offer date

A charge to the Group income statement of £1 million has been made for the year ended 29 March 2015 n relation to the SAYE scheme
The table below shows the movements in share options dunng the reporting penod

Number of

options

Balance at the beginning of the reporting peniod -
Options granted 14,956,040
Options exerosed (65)
Options forfeited {174,435)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 14,781,540

For SAYE options exerased during the periad the weighted average share price at the date of exercse was 429 pence The weighted average

exerase price for each of the above categories of share options 1s 360 pence

As a result of the scheme rules for good leavers 43 850 {2013-14 nil) share options were exercisable at 29 March 2015 at a weighted
average exercise pnice of 360 pence

The fair values of the options granted during the year have been calculated using the Black-5choles model assuming the inputs shown
below Expected volatility has been estimated by reference to historical trends of share price movements of similarly regulated FTSE 1C0
compames The fair value of the options granted 1s expensed over the service penod of three years on the assumption that 11 per cent of
options will lapse over the service period as employees leave the Group

3-year plan
Grant date 1 October 2024
Share price at grant date (pence} 450
Exercise price {pence) 360
Option bfe {years) 335
Risk-free rate (%) 14
Expected volatlity (%) 173
Expected dividend yield (%) 46
Esumated share price growth (%) 92
Fair value of option {pence) 65

11. Dividends

This note prowides details on the value of dividends paid to equity holders of the parent Company during the year Detals are also
provided on the price per share at which dividends have been paid and proposed

Reported Reported Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014 2015 2014

Pence per Pence per
Dimadends on ordinary shares share share £m £m
Pad final dividend 133 - 133 -
Paid interim diwidend 67 - 67 -
Total dividend 200 - 200 -

In addition to the above dividends pard the Directors are proposing a final dividend for the year ending 29 March 2015 of 14 3 pence per
share with a total value of £143 million This didend will be paid to shareholders on 31 July 2015 subject to approval at the AGM to be
held on 23 July 2015
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Other notes - income statement

The notes n this section previde details of peaple costs and numbers and other operating costs (e g pensions depreciation and
amortisation and operating lease charges)

12 People information 102
13 Operating costs 103
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

12. People information

Of the total Group operating costs 61 per cent (2013-14 61 per cent) relate to our people This note provides a breakdown of our people
costs and numbers as well as speafic disclosures in relation to Directors’ emoluments Further details on Directors emoluments paid can

be found in the Directors’ remuneration report

People costs

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m Em
Wages and salanes (4,433) (4 411)
UK based (4138) (4120
GLS (255) (293)
Pensions (552) (479)
Defined benefit UK (508) (448)
Defined contribution UK (38) {25)
GLS {6 (6}
Social securnity (374) {377}
UK based (323) {322}
GLS (53) {55)
Group total {5,359) (5267)
Defined benefit pension rate
Income statement 236% 203%
Cash flaw 171% 17 1%
Defined contnbution pension average rate
Income staterment and cash flow* 5 4% 38%

! Employer contnbution rates are one per cent for employees in the entry level category and five ta seven per cent far those in the standard level category depending on the

employees selected contnbution rate

People numbers
The number of people employed duning the reporting year, on a headcount basis was as follows

Period end Average employees
52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014 2015 2014
UKPIL 142,910 148441 145,205 149172
GLS - contimuing operations 13,754 13181 13,400 12980
- discontinued operations? 655 630 642 612
UK partially owned subsidianes 3,199 3699 3,543 4049
Group totai 160,518 166251 162,790 1566813
2 The discontinued operations relates to GLS Germany s subsidiary DPD Systemlogistik GmbH & Co KG (notes 24 and 31)
Directors’ emoluments
Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
E000 £000
Directors emoluments® (3.305) (3173)
Armounts earned under Lang-Term Incentive Plans (LTIP) (877) (2 654)
Number of Directors accruing benefits under defined benefit schemes - -
Numnber of Directors accruing benefits under defined contnbution schemes 1

? These amounts nclude any cash supplements recerved in Lieu of pension
¢ The 2014 LTIP amaunt consists of £1 327 000 for each of the 2010 and 2011 LTIP awards that vested at 30 March 2014
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13. Operating costs

Below 15 an analysis of operating costs in the ncome statement that because of their matenality or nature require separate disclosure

under IFRS

Operating profit before transformation costs is stated after charging the following operating costs

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £m
Ongoing pension costs (note 8) (included m People costs) (552) (479)
Post Office Lirmted charges (included in Other operating costs ) (358) (358)
Depreciation and amortisation (included in Infrastructure costs) (279) (274)
Depreciation of property plant and equipment {note 21) {242) (241)
Amortisation of intangible assets (mamly software - note 23) (37 (33)
Charges from overseas postal admimistrations {included m Distnbution and conveyance costs) (311) (322)
Fuel costs (included in Distnbution and conveyance costs ) (186) (195}
Fuel stock expensed (115) (130}
Other fuel costs {non-stack) {71) (65)
Other mventory expensed {included in Other operating costs ) (43) 47
Operating lease charges {147) {158)
Property plant and equipment (included m Other aperating costs) (138) {1486)
Vehicles {included in Distribution and conveyance costs ) {11) (12)
VAT credit (resultmg from VAT recovery rate changes agreed with HMRC) {included across all cost types) 5 35
Research and development expenditure during the year amounted to Enil million (2013-14 Emil mullion}
The following disclosure s relevant in understanding the extent of costs in relatian to the regulation of the Group
Reported Reparted
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
Regulatory body casts £m £m
Ofcam (3) {4)
Citzens Advice/Consumer Council for Northern Ireland (both formerly Consumer Futures) (4) (3)
Total (7) {7)
Disclosure of statutory audit costs s a requirement of the Companies Act 2006
Reported Reported
62 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
Auditor's fees £000 £000
Audit of statutory finanaal statements (390) {402}
Other fees to Auditor
Statutory audits for subsidiaries (1,494) (1423)
Other services {including regulatory audits) (231) (257)
Transaction-related support services - {4025)
Taxation senvices (177) (172)
Total (2.292) (6 285)

The Group paid £90 000 additional amounts in 2014-15 m respect of the 2013-14 audit (£90 000 in 2013-14 in respect of the

2012-13 audit)
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Other notes - financial assets, financial liabilities and hedging programmes

The notes in this section explain how the Group is financed, mcludng details of associated risks, mterest rates additional loan faclities

avallable and hedging programmes n place to mitigate volatility n commaodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates

14 Financial assets and habibities — surnmary and management of financial nisk 105
15 Cash and cash equivalents 108
16 Loans and borrowings 103
17 Financial hahilities - net and gross matunty analysis 109
18 Financial assets and liabilities - additional analysis 111
19 Hedging programmes 115
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14. Financial assets and liabilities - summary and management of financial risk

Below 15 a summary of financial assets {e g cash investments and deposits) and liabilities {e g loans and finance lease obligations) and
detasls of how the various risks associated with these assets and liabilities are managed Subsequent notes in this section provide more
detaled disclosures on specific financial assets and habilities

The Groups financial assets and liabilities are shown in the table below

Reported at 29 March 2015 Reported at 30 March 2014

Non-current Current Total MNon-current Current Totat

£m £m £m £m £m £m

RMSEPP pension escrow imvestments 20 - 20 20 - 20
Cash and cash equivalents - 287 287 - 346 366
Other bank and local autharity deposits - 56 56 - 1 1
Denvatve assets 2 5 7 3 2 5
Total financial assets 22 348 370 23 369 392
Syndicated bank loans - - - {600} - (600)
€500 mullion hond - 2 375% Sentor Fixed Rate Notes due July 2024 (366) - (366) - - -
Total loans and borrowings (3566) - (366) (600) - (600)
Finance leases obligations (179} (93) (272) (255} (87) (342)
Dervative labilities (14) (34) {48) (5) (12) {17}
Total financial habilities (559) {127) (686) {860) (99) {959)

Financial assets and liabilities - financial risk management objectives and policies

The Groups principal finanoal assets and habilities comprse short-term deposits, money market Iiquidity investments [oans {including
bonds) finance leases and cash The main purposes of these financial instruments are to raise finance and manage the iquidity needs of the
business’ operations The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables which anse directly
from operations and are not disclosed further mn this section

The Group enters into derivative transactions which create dervative assets and liabiities, principally commadity price swaps interest rate
swaps and forward currency contracts Ther purpase I1s to manage the commadity interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group s
operations and finances

It 1s and has been throughout the year under review the Group's policy that no speculative trading in finanaal imstruments shall be
undertaken

The main risks anising from the Group's financial assets and labilities are interest rate visk, iquidity nisk, foreign currency risk, commaodity
price and credit nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing these risks each of which 1s summansed below

Interest rate risk

The Groups exposure to market nisk for changes m interest rates arises from the Group s loans leases and interest bearing financtal assets
The €500 mullion bond valued at £366 milion {2013-14 £t million) 15 at a fixed interest rate Drawings under the syndicated bank loan
facitities of €l milion (2013-14 £600 million) are at floating rates but interest rates on £150 million of Term Loan A had been fixed

over the Iife of the loan facility by entening into interest rate swaps until the remaining swaps were sold when the term loan was repaid on
9 March 2015 The combined average maturity date of drawn loans 1s 2024 {2013-14 average matunty date of 2017) The finance lease
obligations of £272 million are all at a fixed rate (2013-14 £342 mullion all at fixed rate) The total interest bearing financial assets of the
Group (excluding the non-current investments) of £269 million (2013-14 £395 million), which consist of the fixed and floating rate cash and
cash equivatent investments plus the current finanaal asset investments are at short-dated fixed or vanable interest rates with an average
matunty of 31 days (2013-14 an average matunty of three days) These short-dated financial instruments are matunty managed to obtamn
the best value out of the interest yreld curve

The Groups policy 1s to manage its net interest expense using an appropnate mix of fixed and floating rate financial instruments combined
with external hedging of interest rate nsk as appropriate to keep a high percentage of its net debt fixed
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14. Financial assets and liabilities - summary and management of financial risk

(continued)

Fereign currency transaction risk

The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency risk due to interest payments on the €500 million bond, trading with overseas postal operators for
carrying UK mail abroad and delivering foreign ongin mail in the UK and various purchase contracts denominated in foreign currency (ail of
these exposures are in UKPIL) GLS reporting currency 1s the Euro and most of its revenues and profits are Furo based There 1g some
exposure to non-Euro currencies, primcipally m emerging European markets

These risks are mitigated by hedging programmes managed by Greup Treasury Where possible, expasures are netted internally and any
remaming expasure 15 hedged using a combination of external spot and forward contracts Hedging will not normally be considered for
exposures of less than £1 milllon and hedging 1s normally confined to 80 per cent of the forecast exposure where forecast cash flows are
highly probable

Foreign currency risk translational risk

The Group s functional currency is Sterling GLS functional currency 1s the Euro GLS Euro profits are converted at the average exchange
rate for the year which can result in reported growth or decline that does not relate to underiying performance GLS balance sheet 1s
converted at year end exchange rates and movements related to foreign currency translation are taken to equity

UKPIL s obligation to settle with overseas postal operators 15 denominated in Special Drawmng Rights (SORs) - a basket of currencies
comprised of US Dollar, Japanese Yen Sterling and Euro Group Treasury operates a rolling 18-month hedge programme which is
subsequently reviewed on a quarterly basis

UKPIL's obligations to settle conveyance charges in US Dollars have been hedged to April 2015, when the exposure ends and the hedge
programme finishes

UKPIL has two active hedge programmes (commenced during the reporting period) and two hedge programmes which completed durning the
current and previous reporting period covering obligations to settle Euro mvoices on automation projects

The €500 million bond 1ssued by Royal Mail in July 2014 acts as a hedge of part of the translat:on exposure created by the net assets of
GLS The bond 1s revalued at year end exchange rates and the movement taken to equity to offset the movement taken to equity from the
revaluation of GLS balance sheet The remaining net assets of GLS in excess of €500 milhon are not hedged Royal Mail hedges the
transactional exposure created by intercompany loans with GLS and uses the translational exposure ansing from GLS Euro profits to offset
with other transactional exposures

Commodity price nisk

UKPIL 1s exposed to fuel price nisk arising from operating one of the largest vehicle fleets in Europe which consumes over 130 mullion litres
of fuel per year, and a jet fuel price risk arismg from the purchasing of air freight services The Group s fuel nisk management strategy aims
to reduce uncertainty created by the movements in the oil and foreign currency markets The strategy uses over-the-counter denwative
products (in bath US Deltar commedity price and US Dollar/Sterling exchange rate) to manage these exposures

In addition the Group 15 exposed to the commodity price risk of purchasing electricity and gas The Group’s risk management strategy airns to
reduce uncertainty created hy the movements in the electnicity and gas markets These expasures are managed by locking into fixed rate
price contracts with suppliers and using over-the-counter derivative products

As the GLS business model works using subcantractors responsible for purchasing their own fuel, GLS has no direct exposure to diesel costs
The only other significant commodity exposure withm GLS is electriaity which 1s fragmented across its European bases In view of the other
highly hedged positions in Royal Mail the Group takes the wiew that the unhedged exposure arising from the commodities in GLS does not
add significant nisk te the Group

Credit risk

UKPIL considers that a far and equitable credit policy 1s in aperation for all its account customers The level of credit granted is based on a
customer’s nsk profile, assessed by an independent credit referencing agent The credit policy 1s applied ngidly within the regulated products
area so as to ensure that UKPIL is not i breach of compliance legislation Assessment of credit for the non-regulated products 1s based on
commercial factors, which are commensurate with the Group s appetite for risk

UKPIL has a dedicated credit management team which sets and monitors credit Umits, and takes corrective action as and when appropriate
The level of bad debt incurred for the whole Group 1s 01 per cent {(2013-14 0 1 per cent) of turnover An analysis of debtor ageing 1s
included within note 26

With respect to credit nisk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash cash equivalent investments loans and
receivables finanoat assets and certain derwvative instruments the Group nvests/trades only with high-quality financal institutians The
Group s exposure to credit sk anses from default of the counterparty with a maximurm exposure equat to the carrying amount of these
instruments

The table below analyses the Group s financial asset and cash equivalent investments and derivatives by credit rating
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14. Financial assets and liabilities - summary and management of financial risk
{continued)

Reported at 29 March 2015

AAMAM/ AA+ A+ BBB+

AAATE AAA to AA- to A- and betow No rating Total
Cash eguivalent investments 110 - - 30 - - 140
Other bank and local authority deposits - - - 55 - 1 56
RMSEPP pension escrow investments 20 - - - - - 20
Denvative assets - - 2 5 - - 7
Total 130 - 2 0 - 1 223

Reporied at 30 March 2014

AAAY Ah+ A+ BB+

AAAMF AAA to AA- to A- and below No rating Tatal
Cash equivalent mvestments 255 - 80 - - - 315
Other bank and local authority deposits - - - - - 1 1
RMSEPP pension escrow investments 20 - - - - - 20
Derwvative assets - - 2 3 - - 5
Total 275 - 62 3 - 1 341

The deposit with no rating 1s with a local authonty and matures in 2015

GLS operates a decentralised credit management model whereby each country 1s responsible for managing the credit risk associated with
Its customers Where appropriate external credit checks are performed for new and existing customers taking into account the customer
profile expected volume of busingss and consequent risk to the Company

Liquidity risk

The Groups primary objective Is to ensure that the Group has sufficent funds avalable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due

This 1s achieved by aligring short-term investments and borrowing facilities with forecast cash flows Typical short-term investments include
money market funds and term deposits with approved counterparties Borrowing fagliies are regularly reviewed to ensure continuity of
funding The unused facilities for the Group of £1 050 million expire in 2020 (2013-14 £800 rmullion expinng m 2018)

Capital management

The Group actively manages its caprtal which cansists of total assets and liabilities (made up of mvestment working capital, provisions and
net debt?) less the pension asset recognised at 29 March 2015 The Group’s defined benefit schemes are separately managed by RMPP and
RMSEPP Trustees and funded from Group contributions {note 8)

The ohjective of the Group s capital management pelicy 1s to mamtain sufficent capital to manage business risk invest in the business and
deliver ongoing returns to shareholders

The Group targets a capital structure with metrics consistent with an investment grade2 credit rating This ensures the Group s balance sheet
1s robust enough to manage business risks as well as enabling efficient access to debt capital markets During the year the Group gbtained
and mamntamed a credit ratmg of BBB with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor's

The Group regularly momitors warking capital and longer-term investment requirements to ensure suffiaent liquidity 1s in place

The Group ensures It has an appropriate mix of borrowing facilities i place to meet short and long-term funding requirements During the
year the Group took advantage of market conditions to reduce the cost of debt and extend the faalities The hond 1ssue in July 2014 and the
amendments to the syndicated bank loan facility have reduced the cost of debt and extended the average matunty date of the Group's
facrlities to six years (2013-14 four years) whilst maintaining current levels of liquidity headroom At 29 March 2015 the Group had
undrawn loan facilities of £1 050 million (2013-14 £800 millian)

The Group ensures it meets the covenants and other obligations of the loan agreements The syndicated bank loan facility covenants require
the Group to maintain the {leverage) ratio of adjusted net debt to EBITDA below 3 1 and EBITDA to interest {excluding arrangement fees)
above 351 Adjusted net debt consists of net debt plus Letters of Credit {contingent liabilities 1n respect of the UKPIL insurance programme
where the possibility of an outflow of economic benefits 15 considered remete®) and 1s adjusted for exchange rate movements duning the year
The Group s leverage ratio at 29 March 2015 was 0 4 1 (2013-14 0 7 1) The Group's ratio of EBITDA to interest {excluding arrangement
fees) at 29 March 2015 was 404 1 (2013-14 31 4 1)

I Net debt consists of loans borrowings and iease creditors offset by cash and financial asset investments excluding denvatives
No worse than BBB- under Standard & Poors methodology
The lease arrangement for automation equipment which required Royal Mail ta arrange for the pravision of Letters of Credit (2013-14 £37 million) was terminated during the
year and the Letters of Credit were cancelled undrawn

Annual Repart and Finanaal Statements 2014-15 107



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

14. Financial assets and liabilities - summary and management of financial risk
(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group 1s committed to growng dividends The Board has recommended a final dividend of 14 3 pence per share Including the interim
dwidend of 6 7 pence per share, this represents a total divdend of 21 O pence per share for 2014-15 This 1s a five per cent increase on the

previous year's notional dividend of 20 0 pence per share

Sensitivity

As a result of the mix of fixed and varable rate finanoial instruments and the currency and commodity hedge pregrammes in place the
Group has no material exposure to gperating profit risk from interest rate risk exchange rate risk or commadity price risk (2013-14 £nil
millon} The Group has an exposure to the exchange rate risk on translating the GLS net assets mto Sterling on consolidation and an
offsetting exposure on translating the €500 million bond into Sterling at each balance sheet date The impact of a five per cent strengthening

of Sterling during the reparting period would have been to reduce the Group net assets by £8 million (2013-14 £34 million)

15. Cash and cash equivalents

This note summanses the cash and cash eguivalents balances held by the Group

Cash and cash equivalents at 29 March 2015 and at 30 March 2014 are as follows

Reported Reparted

at 29 March  at 30 March

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 127 37
Client cash 20 14
Cash equivalent investments Short-term bank and local authonty deposits and money market fund investments 140 315
Total cash and cash equivalents 287 366

Cash and cash equivalents comprise amounts held physically n cash bank balances available on demand and deposits for three menths or
less dependent on the immediate cash requirements of the Group Where interest 1s earned, this i1s either at floating or short-term fixed

rates based upon bank deposit rates

Client cash 1s cash collected from consignees by GLS on hehalf of its posting customers

16. Loans and borrowings

Details of loans and borrowings, including interest rates additional loan faclities available and any security provided against the loans are

provided below

Below 15 a summary of loans and borrowings at the year end the average interest rate, faolity availlablity and secunty granted

Reported at 29 March 20156

Average Average

Average maturity maturity

Further Interest rate date of date of

Loans and committed Total of loan drawn Basis of interest loan drawn Loan

borrawings facility facility down  rate chargeable at down faciity

£m £m £m % 29 March 2015 year year

Syndicated bank loan facilities - 1,050 1,050 nfa LIBOR plus 0 55% nfa 2020
€500 million bond - 2 375% Senior Fixed Rate Notes 366 - 366 25 Fixed at 2 5% 2024 2024
Total 366 1,050 1,416 25 2024 2021
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16. Loans and borrowings (continued)
Reported at 30 March 2014

Basis of

interest

rate
Average  chargeatle Average Average
Interest at 29 matunty matunty
Further rate of March date of date of
Loans and  commutted Tatal  lean drawn 2015-  loan drawn loan
borrowings facility facility down LIBOR plus down facility
Syndicated bank loan facilities fm m £m % 1 Year Year
Term Loan A 300 - 300 15 100 2018 2018
Term Loan B 300 - 300 14 030 2016 2016
Revolving credit facilities - 800 800 - 085 - 2018
Total 600 800 1400 14 2017 2018

The Groups blended mterest rate on loans and finance leases over the next year 1s forecast to be approximately three per cent
The undrawn committed faciliies, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at the balance sheet date, expire as follows

Reported Reported

at 29 March at 30 March

2015 2014

Em £m

Expiring m ong year or less - -
Expirng in more than one year but not more than two years - -
Expiring in more than two years 1,050 800
Total 1,050 800

There 15 no security in place under the syndicated bank loan faalities or the bond Further details regarding covenants and mterest can be
seen in note 5

17. Financial liabilities - net and gross maturity analysis

This note focuses on loans and borrowings finance leases and dervatives and pravides further details of when amounts fall due both for
prinapal and for total (i e including nterest) contractual payments

Below 15 a summary of when all the finanaal liabilities fall due

Reported at 29 March 2015

Loans and Fimance Derwvative

borrowings leases liamlitres Total
£m £m £m £m

Amounts faling due m
One year ot less or on demand {current) - 93 34 127
More than one year {non-current) 366 179 14 559
More than one year but not more than two years - 74 13 87
Mare than two years but not more than five years - S0 1 91
More than five years 366 15 - 381
Total 366 272 48 686
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17. Financial liabilities - net and gross maturity analysis (continued)

Reported at 30 March 2014

Loans and Finance  Derwatve
borrowings leases liabilstres Total
£m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due in

One year or less or on demand {current) - a7 12 99
More than one year (non-current) 600 255 5 860
More than one year but not more than two years - 76 5 81
More than two years but not more than five years 600 151 - 751
More than five years - 28 - 28
Total 600 342 17 959

Ohligations under finance leases are either unsecured or secured on the leased assets The average interest rate is 3 5 per cent {2013-14

3 4 per cent) The average maturity date 1s between four and five years (2013-14 more than five years)

The tables below set out the gross {(undiscounted) contractual cash flows of the Group's finanoal habilities For overdrafts loans and finance
lease contracts these cash flows represent the undiscounted total amounts payable including interest The cash flows for the €500 rmillion
bond represent the undiscounted total amounts payable {annual interest payments and nominal amount repayment on maturity) which have

been converted to Sterling at 29 March 2015 market forward exchange rates

For derivatives that are settled gross, these cash flows represent the undiscounted gross payment due and do not reflect the accompanying

inflow For derivatives that are settled net these cash flows represent the undiscounted forecast outflow

Reported at 29 March 2015

Gross Gross Gross

loans and Gross payments on  payments on

boarrowings finance lease denvatives dervatives
commitments  instalments  Sub-total settled gross settted net Total
£m £m £m £m £Em £m

Amounts faling due in

One year or less or on demand {current) 9 98 107 7 33 147
More than one year (non-current) 494 288 782 - 14 796
Mare than one year but not more than two years 9 78 a7 - 13 100
Mare than two years but not more than five years 27 96 123 - 1 124
Mare than five years 458 114 572 - - 572
Total 503 386 889 7 47 943
Less mterest {93) (114) (207 nfa n/a nfa
Less exchange rate adjustment (44) - {44) n/a n/a nfa
Net total 366 272 638 n/a nfa nfa
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17. Financial liabilities - net and gross maturity analysis (continued)

Reparted at 30 March 2014

Gross Gross Gross

loans and Gross paymernts on payments an

barrowings finance lease denvatives denvatives
commitments mstalments Sub-total settled gross settled net Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Amounts faling due n

One year or less or on demand {current) 9 94 103 188 11 302
More than one year (non-current} &642 356 998 - 5 1003
More than ane year but not maore than two years 13 a2 95 - 5 100
More than twa years but not mare than five years 629 161 790 - - 790
More than five years - 113 113 - - 113
Total 651 450 1101 188 16 1305
Less interest {51) {108) (159) nfa nfa n/a
Net total 600 342 942 nfa nfa nfa

18. Financial assets and liabilities - additional analysis

This note provides an analysis of the Sterling carrying values of the financial assets and labilities held in vanous foreign currencies
along with details of interest rates, interest rate rnisk and maturity timescales

Table 1 shows all the financral assets and habilities in detail and on a net basis Table 2 shows the net amount by currency Table 3
shows the respective assets/liabilities by whether they are fixed fleating or non-interest bearing Table 4 shows the effective interest
rate and maturity analysed as fixed rate floating rate and non-interest bearing

Carryimg amounts and fair values

Trade recewvables payables prepayments and accruals have been omitted from this analysis on the basis that carrying value is a
reasonable approximation of fair value Pension scheme assets and liabibties are also excluded Fair values have been calculated using
current market prices (bond price interest rates forward exchange rates and commodity prices} and discounted using approprate
discount rates There are no material differences between the fair value (transaction price) of all financial mstruments at initial
recognition and the fair value calculated using these valuation techriques The fair value of the €500 million bond (non-current) 1s

£402 milion at 29 March 2015 {2013-14 Enil milbion) calculated as the closing market band price converted to Sterling using the
closing spot exchange rate The fair value of total Obligations under finance leases s £282 million (2013-14 £341 million) For all other
finanaial mstruments fair value 15 equal to the carrying amount The tables below also set out the carrying amount of the currency of the
Group s finanaal instruments
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18. Financial assets and liabilities - additional analysis (continued)

The followang tables show the currency, classification, matunty and effective interest rate of the Group s financal assets and liabilities

Reported Reported
at 29 March  at 30 March

2015 2014
Table 1 Level  Classification £m £m
Financial assets
Cash 147 51
Cash eguivalent investments 140 315
Money market funds Loans and recevables 110 255
Short-term deposits - bank Loans and recevables 30 60
Cash and cash equivalents 287 366
Financial assets - mvestments {current) - bank and locat government deposits Loans and recevables 5é 1
Finanoial assets - pension escrow imvestments (non-current) - RMSEPP pension escrow - money
market funds Loans and recewables 20 20
Dernvative assets - current 2 5 2
Derwvative assets - nan-current 2 2 3
Total financial assets 370 392
Financial iabilities
Obligations under finance leases (current) Amortised cost (93) 87)
Financial iabilities - loans and borrowings {non-current) (366) {600)
Syndicated bank loans Amortised cost - (600}
€500 million bond Amortised cost {366} -
Obligations under finance leases (non-current) Amortised cost (179) (255}
Denvative liabilities - current 2 (34) (12)
Dernvative liabilities - non-current 2 (14) {5)
Total finanoial habikities (686) (959)
Net total financial liabilities (316) (567)

There are no financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through the ncome statement on initial recognition

The Level classification in the above table i1s descnbed in the Fair value measurement of financial instruments’ section of Sigruficant
accounting policies

Denvative assets of £5 million current £2 million ron-current (2013-14 £2 mullion current, £3 million non-current) and habibties of
£34 million current £14 milbon non-current {2013-14 £12 mittion current £5 million non-current) are valued at fair value Effective
changes m the fair value of derivatives, which are part of a designated cash flow hedge under I1AS 39, are deferred into equity All other
changes in derivative fair value are taken straight to the income statement

None of the financial assets listed above I1s either past due or considered to be impaired The net total financial assets are held in vanous
different currencies as summarised in the table below The majonty of the non-Sterling financial assets (other than the €500 million bond)
are held within cash or derivatives

Sterling uss Euro Other Total
Tabte 2 £m £m £m Em £m
Reported net total financial {Labilities}assets at 29 March 2015 (34) {33) (271) 22 (316)
Reported net total financial {iabilities)fassets at 30 March 2014 {638) {4) 57 18 (567)

Interest rate nisk
Interest on {inanaal instruments classified as floating rate s re-priced at intervals of less than one year Interest on financial mstruments
classified as fixed rate 1s fixed until the matunty of the mstrument

The tables below set out the carrying amount by matunty of the Group’'s financial Instruments that are expaosed to interest rate risk The
pension escrow Investment represents a money market fund mvestment established to provide security to the Royal Mail Senior Executives
Pension Plan (RMSEPP) in support of a defiat recovery plan agreed with the Trustee in June 2013 The next scheduled review pomt in the
agreement 15 30 Septernber 2018 and the investment 1s therefore disclosed as matunng in two to five years
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18. Financial assets and liabilities - additional analysis (continued)

Reparted at 29 March 2015

Non-
Floating Interest
Fixed rate rate bearing Total
Table 3 £m £m £m Em
Cash - 73 T4 147
Cash equivalent investments - 140 - 240
Fimancial asset investments {current} 31 25 - 56
RMSEPP pension escrow investments - 20 - 20
Dervative - assets - - 7 7
—tabilities - - (48) (48)
€500 million bond {366) - - (366)
Obligations under finance leases {272) - - (272)
Net total fimancial (hablities)/assets (607) 258 33 (316)
Reported at 30 March 2014
Non-
Floating nterest
Fixed rate rate bearing Total
Table 3 £m Em £m £m
Cash 17 62 (28} 51
Cash equwvalent investments &0 285 - 315
Fmancial asset investments {current) 1 - - 1
RMSEPP pension escrow imvestments - 20 - 20
Derwative - assets - - 5 5
- liabilities - - {17 (a7
Syndicated bank loans (150) (450) - {600}
Oblgations under finance leases (342) - - (342)
Net total financial habilities (414) (113) (40) (567)
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18. Financial assets and liabilities - additional analysis (continued)

Reported at 29 March 2015

Average

effective

nterest Within More than

rate 1year 1-2years 2-5years 5 years Total

Table 4 k3 £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed rate
Financial assets - mvestments (current) - bank and local government deposits 08 31 - - - 31
Financial labibitres

€500 muthion bond 25 - - - (366) (366)

Obligations under finance leases 35 (93) (74) (90) (15) (272)
Total (62) (74) (90) (381) {607)
Floatmg rate
Cash at bank 04 73 - - - 73
Cash equivalent investments - money market funds 06 110 - - - 110
Cash equivalent imvestments - bank deposits 0é 30 - - - 30
Financial assets - investments (current) - bank deposits 07 25 - - - 25
Financial assets - pension escrow investments (non-current)

RMSEPP pension escrow - money market funds 04 - - 20 - 20
Total 238 - 20 - 258
Non-interest bearing
Cash at bank or m hand 74 - - - 74
Denvative assets 5 2 - - T
Denvative Labilities (34) (13) (1) - (48)
Total 45 (11) (1) - 33
Net total financial assets/(babilities) 221 (85) {71) (381) (316)
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Reported at 30 March 2014

Average
effectrve Within More than
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
Table 4 1 £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed rate
Cash at bank 10 17 - - - 17
Cash equivalent investments - short-term deposits - bank 04 60 - - - 60
Financial assets - investments {current) - local government deposit 77 1 - - - 1
Financial labilities
Syndicated bank loans 25 - - {150} - {150)
Obligatrons under finance leases 34 {87) (76} (151) 28) {342)
Total {9) (76} (301) {28) {414)
Floating rate
Cash at bank 04 62 - - - 62
Cash equivalent investments - money market funds 04 255 - - - 255
Fmancizl assets - penston escrow investments (non-current)
RMSEPP pension escrow - maoney market funds 04 - - 20 - 20
Financial habilives
Syndicated bank loans 14 - - {450} - {450)
Total 317 - {430} - {113)
Non-interest bearing
Cash at bank or in hand {28) - - - (28)
Denvative assets 2 - 3 - 5
Denvative Liabilities (12) (5) - - {17)
Total {38) (5) 3 - (40)
Net total financial assets/(liabthties) 270 (81) (728) (28) {567)

19. Hedging programmes

Information regarding the various hedgmg programmes in place to mitigate volatiity in commodity prices and foreign currency exchange

rates s provided below

The hedging programmes use a number of financial derivative products to manage volatihty in commodity prices, interest rates and
foreign exchange If these hedges are in the money' 1e hedged rates are better than the current market rate then a derwative asset i1s

recognised and If they are out of the money a derivative hability 1s recognised Full disclosures are provided in this nate even though the
balance sheet amounts are not matenal in the context of the Groups total assets and liabilities

The purpose of the Group s hedging programmes Is to mitigate volatility in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates
thereby providing certainty for planning There are no significant concentrations of credit risk Accounting rules require the Company to

choose whether to designate cash flow hedge programmes or not {subject to various tests) The impact of not designating a cash flow hedge

programme 15 that all gains or losses on the derwatives in the programme have to be taken immediately to the income statement and cannot

be deferred into equity

The Group had the following designated cash flow hedge programmes durig the current and previous reporting years

Hedging activities

1) The diesel fuel hedge programme uses forward commodity price swaps in US Dollar or Sterling and forward currency purchase contracts

to hedge the exposure ansing from commodity price and US Dollar/Sterling exchange rates for forecast diesel fuel purchases

u} The et fuel hedge programme uses forward commodity price swaps in US Dollar or Sterling and forward currency purchase contracts to

hedge the exposure ansing from commadity price and US Dollar/Sterling exchange rates for forecast jet fuel usage

i} The air conveyance hedge programme uses US Dollar forward currency purchase contracts to hedge the exposure arising from US

Oollar/Sterling exchange rates for forecast air conveyance purchases

w) Four capital programmes (one of which completed dunng 2013-14 ore of which completed dunng 2014-15 and two of which

commenced in 2014-15) use Euro forward currency purchase contracts to hedge the exposure ansing from Sterbing/Euro exchange rates

for contracted capital expenditure on automation projects
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19. Hedging programmes (continued)

v) The electnaty hedge programme uses forward commodity price swaps to hedge the exposure ansing from electricity prices In addition
the Group uses fixed rate prices contracts with supplers to set future prices

w) The gas hedge programme uses forward commodity price swaps to hedge the exposure arising from gas prices

vi} The interest rate hedge programme uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge the exposure arising from interest rates on borrowings
under the syndicated bank loan facihties The hedge programme finished when the interest rate swap contracts were sold following the
repayment on 9 March 2015 of the floating rate term loans

vin) UKPIL trades in SDRs with overseas postal operatars for delivering UK origin mail abroad and delivering foreign ongen mail in the UK
The UKPIL overseas postal operators hedge programme uses US Dollar and Japanese Yen forward currency purchase contracts to hedge
the forecast future net purchases of delvery services This hedge programme covers the exposure up until the purchases are incurred
and recogmised on the balance sheet

The Group had undesignated cash flow hedge programmes for the transactional exposure created by intercompany loans with GLS and the
exposure of UKPIL to overseas postal operator habilities for the pencd after the purchases have been incurred and recogmised on the balance
sheet until the time when they are settled The derwvative balances of these programimes are not matenal

The Group uses the €500 million bond as a hedge of the net mvestment in GLS, against movements in the Sterling/Euro exchange rate
Foreign currency exchange differences anstng from the translation of the net assets of GLS and of the €500 million bond to closing
Sterling/Euro exchange rates are deferred in equity These exchange differences would be released from equity to the mncome statement as
part of the gan or loss on the sale if GLS were sold During the year foreign currency exchange gans on the bond of £27 mullion (2013-14
£nil million) were deferred in equity There was no neffectiveness in the hedge duning the year

Commodity price hedging

The Group's normal operating activities result in the consumption of fuel (both dieset and jet} electniaty and gas The pnices of these
commodities can be volatile so the Group enters into price swap contracts to lock future purchases (at an agreed volume) nto a known price
For diesel fuel and jet fuel these price swaps are sometimes entered into on the US Dollar price for the commodity (based upon available
market prices} n which case the Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to lock imte a combined Sterling price for the commodity
For electricity, the Group also uses fixed price contracts with suppliers to set future prices

The followmng table shows the commodity risk and the percentage of the expected consumption hedged or fixed The Group hedges the cost
of the underlying commodity and any rrecoverable VAT that 1s incurred on this cost It does not hedge any fuel duty The exposures shown m
the following table exclude the costs of fuel duty and are based upon the hedges in place combmed with market pnces at the balance sheet
date for the unhedged amounts Fuel duty (and the associated VAT) adds an additional cost of around £100 million to diesel costs each
reporting year Total fuel costs for 2015-16 are estimated to be £171 million

Exposure {excluding fuel duty) and expected consumption hedged/fixed 2015

52 weeks 2016 52 weeks 2017 52 weeks 2018
Expasure Exposure Exposure
Commadity Risk £m % hedged £m % hedged £m % hedged
Diesel fuel USS pnce and $/£ exchange tate movements 67 86 52 69 L4 24
Jet fuel USS price and S/ exchange tate movements 10 100 8 63 7 -
Electrioty £ price movement 16 95 14 60 14 60
Gas £ price movement 12 98 10 53 9 -

Exposure (excluding fuel duty} and expected consumption hedged 2014

52 weeks 2015 52 weeks 2016 52 weeks 2017
Exposure Expasure Expasure
Commodity Risk £m % hedged £m % hedged £m % hedged
Diesel fuel USS pnce and $/€ exchange rate mavements 76 94 74 81 71 g
Jet fuel USS price and $/€ exchange rate movements 13 86 12 82 11
Electnoity £ price movemnent 17 83 18 65 17 7
Gas £ price mavement 15 75 15 66 14 -

Foreign currency hedging for non-commodity items

As highlighted in note 14 the Group where possible nets exposure to foreign currency internally The remaiming net exposure 1s hedged with
external forward foreign currency contracts For existing currency liabilities the undertying exposures (e g the foreign postal admirustration
habthties) and the derivatives, are both revalued to current market prices at the balance sheet date, meantng that no net gains or losses arise
in the iIncome statement For forecast future currency exposures the derivatives are revalued at the balance sheet date and effective
movements In value are deferred inte equity until the hedged transaction occurs
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The following table shows for each hedge programme the risk and the percentage hedged of the next 12 months exposure
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Percentage of next

12 months’ exposure that

has been hedged

Reported Reported

at 2% March at 30 March

Hedge programme Risk 2015 2014
AIr conveyance USS/E exchange rate movements 96% 94%
Capitat programmes €/£ exchange rate movements 100% 100%
Overseas postal operator SDR/E exchange rate movements 56% 59%
GLS mtercompany loan €/ exchange rate movements n/a 100%

The next 12 months exposure 1s calculated as the combination of the cost of settling babilities during the next 12 months and the cost of
revaluing unsettied habilities at the end of 12 months The GLS intercompany loan was repaid dunng the year

As highhghted in note 14, the Cormpany hedges part of the translational exposure created by the net assets of its overseas subsidiaries,
mainly GLS by designating the €500 million bond as a hedge of the net mvestment in GLS

Derivative values

At any pont in time the derivatives in these cash flow hedge programmes are either in the money which means the hedged rates are better
than current market rates or out of the money which means the hedged rates are warse than current market rates The gams (m the
money } and losses ( out of the money) as at the balance sheet date are deferred mto equity (where the hedge 15 effective) and an assocated
finanoial asset or financial liability 1s created in the balance sheet The financial asset/liabibty 1s released when the dervative matures The
amounts deferred nto equity are released when the hedged transaction occurs The following tables show the denwvative contracts entered

into at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 and the associated dervative assets and liabilities

Denvative Denvative Denvative  Denvative

Average asset non- asset hability hability

contracted current current  non-current current

Commodity/ Nominal commodity price/ fair value  fair vatue fair value far value

currency amount Maturity date exchange rate £m £Em £m £m

Reported at 29 March 2015

Diesel fuel Diesel fuel 216miitres  Apr15-Jan 18 USS 0 6%/litre - - (8) {21)
Diesel fuel uss $149m Apr15-Jan 18 US51 58/ - - (3) (3)
Diesel fuel Diesel fuel 43m litres Apr 15 - Apr 17 £0 46/itre 3 - -
Jet fuel Jet fuel 21m Itres  Apr 15 -Mar 16 USS G 75/litre - - - (3)
Jet fuel uss $16m Apr 15 - Jan 18 US$157/E - - -
Jet fuel Jet fuel 13mitres  Apr15- Apr17 €0 45/itre - (1) -
Air conveyance uss $82k Apr 15 UsS5%1 63/¢ - - - -
Capital programmes Euro £9m Apr 15 - Apr 16 €0 8/E - - - (1)
Electricty Electricity 11k MWh  Apr15 - Aprd7 £55/MWh - - (1) (3)
Gas Gas 29m therms  Apr 15 - Apr 17 £0 65/therm - - (1) {3)
Cash flow hedges 2 4 (14) (34)
Other denvatives - 1 - -
Total 2 5 (14) (34)
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19. Hedging programmes (continued)

Derwvative Derwative Denvative Denvatve
Average asset non- asset  Lahilty non- lability
contracted current current current current
Commodity/ commodity price/ fair value fair value fair value fair value
currency Nominal amount  Matunty date exchange rate £m £m £m £m
Reported at 30 March 2014
Dieset fuel Diesel fuel  215m litres Apr14-Aprlé  USS077/itre - 1 (1) (1)
Diesel fual uss $188m Aprl4-Janl7 USS158/€ - - - (1)
Dresel fuel Diesel fuel  80m ltres Apr 14 -0ct16  £05/itre - - (3) (3}
Jet fuel Jet fuel 44m litres Apr 14 -Mar 16 USS 0 76/litre - - - -
Jet fuet uss S33m Apr 14 -Mar 16 US51 55/€ - - - {1)
Air conveyance uss S7m Apr 14 -Apr15  USS15%/E - - - -
Capital programmes Eurgp £02m Oct 14 £08/E - - - -
Electricity Electricity 528k MWh Apr 14 -0ct16  E55/MWh - - - {2)
Gas Gas 33m therms  Apr14-Apri16 E0 70/therm - - (1) (2)
Overseas postal operators Uss $43m Apr 14 USS1 66/t - - - -
Overseas postal operators JPY 780m JPY Apr 14 JPY172/E - - - -
15% vs 1 month
Interest rate swaps GBP £150m Apr14-Sep 18 LIBOR 3 - - {2}
Cash flow hedges 3 1 (5) (12)
Other denvatives - 1 - -
Total 3 2 (5) (12)

Other derivatives represent hedges by the Group of other fareign exchange expasures, which are not designated under IAS 39 (including the
hedge of the trading balance with overseas postal operators and the hedge of intercompany loans with overseas subsidianes)

There are timing differences between the maturity of the dernvatives and the matunty of the underlying hedged transaction For example
diesel derivatives that hedge the exposure to purchasing fuet in March 2015 mature in Apnl 2015 At 29 March 2015 therefore the balance
sheet includes the market value of these dervatives but the cumulative gains and Iosses on these derivatives have been released from the
hedging reserve to the income statement to match the exposure to purchasing fuel m March 2015 There are differences therefore between
derivative balances (shown above) and the balance on the hedging reserve
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The notes in this section provide additional information regarding certain assets and Labilities on the Group balance sheet, most notably

provisions - maimly in relation to transformation costs fixed and intangible assets and goodwill

20 Provisions 120
21 Property plant and equipment 121
22 Goodwill 123
23 Intangible assets 124
24 Assets and liabihties held for sale 124
25 Investment in associate 126
26 Current trade and other recevables 126
27 Current trade and other payables 127
28 Issued share capital and reserves 127
28 Commutments 128
30 Related party information 129
31 Events after the reporting period 130
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20. Provisions

A summary of the provisions that have been made in the accounts, including in relation to transformation costs 1s shown below

Transformation costs

Management
reorganisation Specific
programme Other Items Dther Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2014 {102) (34) {87} {45) (268)
Arising durng the period
~ charged In transfarmation costs and operating specific items - (87) (76) - {163)
- charged in other operating costs - - - (18) (18)
- reclassification - - (%) 4 -
Unused amounts reversed 6 - 7 - 13
Utlised in the period 96 65 8 16 188
Dhscaunt rate adjustment - - (2) - (2)
Reported at 29 March 2015 - (56) (154) (43) (253)
Disclosed as
Current at 29 March 2015 - (53) {58) {(38) {149)
Non-current at 29 March 2015 - (3) {96) (5) (104)
- (586) (154) (43) (253)
Current at 30 March 2014 (102) (24) (19 (28) (273}
Non-current at 30 March 2014 - {10) (68) (17) (95)
(102) {34) (87) {45) {268)

Transformation provisions (charged as transformation costs}

Transformation costs prowisions of £56 millien {2013-14 £136 million) compnise redundancy schemes of £56 million (2013-14 £134
million), including £6 mitlion release (2013-14 £102 million charge} in respect of the management reorganisation programme Current
transformation costs provisions of £53 rmullion are expected to be utiised in 2015-16 wath the remander within two to three years

Specific items
The specific items provisions of £154 million at 29 March 2015 (2013-14 £87 mulion) include £81 million {2013-14 £62 mullion) for
potential industnal diseases claims relating Lo both current and former employees of the Group

Royal Mail Group s hability i respect of former employees arose in 2010 as a result of a Court of Appeal judgement that held the Group
lrable for diseases claims brought by individuals who were employed in the General Post Office Telecommunications dmwision and whose
employment ceased prior to Qctober 1981 Consequently, a provision was first recognised in 2010-11

The Group has derived its current provision by using estimates and ranges calculated by its actuary, which are based on current experience
of claims and an assessment of potential future claims the majority of which are expected to be received over the next 25 to 30 years
The Group has a ngorous process of ensuring that only valid claims are accepted £3 million of this prowision 1s expected to be utilised in
2015-16

The remammng £73 milhon (2013-14 £25 million) maily relates to IT systems costs assocated with Post Office Limited separation of

which £9 millign 15 expected to be utiised i 2015-16 and French Competiion Authonty investigation costs, of which £42 million 15 expected
to be utiised in 2015-16 An additional £13 million is in respect of a Gerrman property tax hability of £4 millon expected to be utilised in
2015-~16, and employer's National Insurance assoctated with the award of Employee Free Shares of £9 milion expected to be utihsed within
two to five years

The £4 milhon reclassification relates to a historic provision 1n respect of legacy property costs and s therefore deemed to be a specific item
A further £5 million was charged to speafic items i the year in relation to this provision Qf the total provision of £9 millon £1 million 1s
expected to be utilised withun two to five years and the remaining £8 million over a penod greater than five years

Other prowvisions (charged as operating costs)

Other prowisions of £43 million {2013-14 £45 mlhion) mainly comprise onerous lease obligations decommussioning costs and estmated
exposures resulting from legal claims imcurred in the normal course of business The majority of ‘Other’ provision amounts are expected to
be utilised in 2015-16 with £5 millon onerous lease obligations expected to be utilised within two to three years
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21. Property, plant and equipment

Below are details of the Groups property equipment and vehicles which are recorded at their histonc cost (what the Group paid for
them) less accumulated depreciation {reflecting their usage within the business over their useful life - from three to 50 years)

tand and huildings

Fixtures
Long Short  Plant and Motor and
Freehold teasehold leasehold  machimery vehicles  equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 31 March 2014 1,649 265 692 1,184 609 379 4,778
Exchange rate movements (35} (2) - (18) (6) (11) (72)
Reclassification 19 3 15 1 - - -
Additions 89 (1) 22 28 95 25 257
Dispasals (14) (1) (10) (133) (38) (24) (220
Reclassification to non-current assets held for sale (56) (1) - (14) (2) (2) (75)
Reported at 29 March 2015 1,614 263 719 1,048 657 367 4,668
Depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2014 825 167 463 762 296 276 2,789
Exchange rate movements (10) (1) - (12) (4) (9) (36)
Depreciation {note 13} 43 [ 41 62 53 37 242
Disposals (12) (1) (10) (133) (34) (23) {213)
Reclassification to non-current assets held for sale (34) (2) - (CH (1) (2) (47)
Reported at 29 March 2015 812 170 494 670 310 279 2,735
Net book value
Reported at 29 March 2015 802 93 225 378 347 88 1,933
Reported at 30 March 2014 824 98 229 422 313 103 1,989
Net book value comprises
Owned assets 802 g2 220° 259 145 88 1,596
Finance leased assets - 11 5 119 202 = 337
Reported at 29 March 2015 802 93 225 378 347 88 1,933

! Amounts relate to business-specific additions to leasehold properties

Depreciation rates are disclosed within Significant accounting policies No depreciation 1s provided on land which represents £202 mullion
{2013-14 £210 million) of the total cost of properties

The net book value of the Group s property plant and equipment mcludes £127 mullion {2013-14 £116 million) in respect of assets in the
course of construction The net book value of the Groups land and buildings includes £413 mullion {2013-14 £424 million) in respect of
building fit-out

The £257 millign (2013-14 £338 mullion} additions include £nil milion {2013-14 £l million) borrowing costs capitalised in relation to
speofic gualifying assets
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21. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land and buildings

Fixtures
Long Short Plant and Motor and
Freehold leasehold leasehold  machinery vehicles  equipment Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 1622 262 650 1187 538 362 4621
Exchange rate movements (5) - - (2) (1) (2) (10}
Reclassification (26) 1 22 - - 3 -
Addibans 121 3 39 22 117 36 338
Dhsposals {40) (1) (19) (23) (45) (20) (148)
Reclassification ta non-current assets held for sale (23) - - - - - (23)
Repaorted at 30 March 2014 1649 265 692 1184 609 379 4778
Deprecation and impairment
At 1 April 2013 835 162 432 718 289 269 2705
Exchange rate movements (2} - - (1) - (2) {5
Reclassification (1) - 1 - - - -
Oepreciation 45 6 45 68 48 29 241
Dispasals (34) (1) (15) (23} (41) (20) {134)
Reclassification ta non-current assets held for sale (18) - - —~ - - (18)
Reported at 30 March 2014 825 167 463 762 296 276 2789
Net book value
Reported at 30 March 2014 824 58 229 422 313 103 1989
Reported at 31 March 2013 787 100 218 469 249 93 1916
Net book value comprises
Qwned assets 824 81? 22%° 2%0 86 103 1607
Finance leased assets - 17 6 132 227 - 382
Reported at 30 March 2014 824 S8 229 422 313 103 1989

? Amounts relate to business-specific additions to leasehold properties
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This note provides details of the goodwill at the start and end of the reporting year most of which relates to the Group s acquisition of its
overseas subsidiary General Logistics Systerns (GLS)

2015 2014
£m £m

Cost
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2013 569 611
Exchange rate movements {65) (9
Acquisition of businesses 8 4
Disposal of busmess - (37
Reported at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 512 569
Impawrment
At 31 March 2014 and 1 Apnl 2013 372 415
Exchange rate movements (42) {6)
isposal of business - (37
Reported at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 330 372
Net boak value
Reported at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 182 197
Reparted at 30 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 197 196

The carrying value of goodwill ansing on business combinations of £182 milion (2013-14 £197 mitlion) at the balance sheet date includes
£177 million {2013-14 £195 million) relating to the GLS business unit In line with the Group’s accounting policy (see Significant accounting
policies ), this goodwill has been reviewed for impairment The carrying value of GLS excluding interest bearing and tax related assets and
habilities 1s £434 millon {2013-14 £492 million) at 29 March 2015 and the operating profit before transformation costs items 15 £115
milion (2013-14 £106 milion) for the period {note 2)

The carrying value of GLS (434 million) represents a multiple of 3 8 (2013-14 4 &) of operating profit before transfarmation costs The net
realisable value of GLS for the purposes of the impairment review (1 e the fair value less costs of disposal) has been assessed with
reference to earnings multiples for quoted entities in a simular sector of 68 On this basis, the net realisable value has been assessed to be in
excess of the carrying value The earmings multiples referenced would need to reduce by more than 57 per cent to 2 9 to reduce the net

realisable value to below the carrying value
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23. Intangible assets

Intangible assets, mamly software, are recorded 1 much the same way as our physical assets such as property and vehicles, but with
shorter useful lives over which they are amortised {three to ten years)

2015 2014
Master Master
franchise Customer franchise Customer
licences listings Software Total licencas listings Software Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2013 23 32 370 425 23 32 287 342
Additions - - 166 166 - - 88 a8
Dispasals - - (35) (35) - - {5) (5)
Acguisition of business - 3 - 3 - 1 - 1
Reclassification to non-current assets held far sale - - (1) (1) - - - -
Exchange rate mavements (2) (4} (4) (10} - (1) - {1)
Reported at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 21 31 496 548 23 32 370 425
Amortisation and impairment
At 31 March 2014 and 1 Apnil 2013 23 28 179 230 23 28 152 203
Amartisation (note 13) - 2 35 37 - 1 32 33
Impairment charge - - 24 24 - - - -
Disposals - - (35) {35) - - (5} (5)
Reclassification to non-current assets held for sale - - (1) (1) - - - -
Exchange rate movements (2) (4) (1) 7 - (1 - (1}
Reported at 2% March 2015 and 30 March 2014 21 26 201 248 23 28 179 230
Net book value
Reported at 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 - 5 295 300 - 4 191 195
Reported at 30 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 - 4 191 195 - 4 135 139

The intangible assets outlined above, none of which has been internally generated, have finite lives and are being written down on a straight-
line basis The £166 million (2013-14 €88 million) additions include £1 mithon {(2013-14 €2 mullion) borrowing costs capitabised in relation
to specific qualifying assets

24. Assets and liabilities held for sale

This note prowides details of the assets and Labilities classified as held for sale at the beginming and end of the reporting penod Assets
and liabilibies are classified in this way when their carrying value 1s to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale 1s
considered highly probable Thew value in the balance sheet is the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell At the
reporting date the balances comprise the assets and liabilities of GLS Germany s subsidtary DPD Systernlogistik GmbH & Co KG

(DPD SL) and certan surplus property assets

The balance sheet values of the assets and liabtlities held for sale are shown below The disposal group in this note as defined m IFRS 5
'(Non-cur)rent assets held for sale and discontinued operations, retates to GLS Germany's subsidiary, DPD Systemlagistik GmhH & Co KG
OPD SL.

Reported Reported
at 29 March at 30 March
2015 2014
£m £m

Assets of dispasal group (DPD SL) held for sale 17
Other non-current (property) assets held for sale 15 3
Total non-current assets held for sale 32 3
Total kabilities associated with non-current assets (DPD 5L) held for sale {10) -

Disposal group (DPD SL) - discontinued operations

On 6 March 2015 an agreement was reached for the sale of GLS Germany s subsidiary, OPD SL. with the sale subsequently completed on
31 March 20315 At the reporting date of 29 March 2015, this entity has been presented as discontinued operations m the consolidated
imcome statement and its assets and Labilities reclassified as held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet In ine with IFRS 5
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24. Assets and liabilities held for sale (continued)

The table below prowvides a summa
date Noimpairment was required

ry of the main categortes of assets and liabilities that were reclassified as held for sale at the reporting
in reclassifying these assets and liabibities as held for sale

Reported Reported

at 2% March at 30 March

2015 2014

Em £m

Property plant and equipment 7 -
Trade and other recewvables 9 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1 -
Assets of disposal group {DPD SL) held for sale 17 -
Trade and other payables (10) -
Liamlities associated with disposal group (DPD SL) held for sale (10) -

In addition to the above assets and
Details of DPD 5L s trading results

Labilities, an amount of £2 milllon within the foreign currency translation reserve also relates to DPD SL

for the reporting penod are shown below

Reported Reparted
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £m
Revenue 96 99
Operating costs (96) (97)
People costs (16) (15)
Distribution and conveyance costs (72) (73)
Infrastructure costs (4) {4)
Other operating costs (4) {5)
Profit befare tax from discontinued operations - 2
Tax charge - -
Profit from discontinued operations - 2
Basic earmings per share from discontinued operations 00p 02p
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 00p 02p
The net cash flows retating to DPD SL can be summansed as follows
Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks
2015 2014
£m £m
Operatng cash flow 1 3
nvesting cash flow (1) (1)
Financing cash flow - -
Impact of foreign exchange -
Net cash flow impact - 2

Property assets held for sale

Other non-current assets held for sale of £15 rmithon at 29 March 2015 (at 30 March 2014 £3 million) relate to land and buildings which are
being actively marketed with a view to a sale within 12 months An assessment of the fair value of these properties was made at the time of
therr reclassification to held for sale and no adjustment to the carrying amount of these properties was necessary
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

25. Investment in associate

This note provides detasls of the Group's associate company, including the Group s share of the revenue profit and net assets of this

entity Quadrant Catering Limited

Quadrant Catering Limited {Quadrant), the Group’s 51 per cent owned associate company has a reporting date of the last day of September
each year Accordingly to ensure that the reported share of the profit of this company aligns with the Group s reporting year ended 29 March
2015 (2013-14 30 March 2014} the cumulative profit figure for this pertod 15 taken from the Company's management reporting systems

although this includes an estimated profit figure for the month of March

The majonty of Board membership and voting power to direct relevant activities in Quadrant, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom
providing catenng services for the UK businesses is held by the other investor company For this reason it 1s Management s view that the
Group does not have power over Quadrant and so it 15 not considered to be a subsidiary m hine with IFRS 10 The Group's investment in
Quadrant is held by Royal Mail Group Limited There are no significant restrictions on the ability of Quadrant to transfer funds to the Group

in the form of cash dividends repayment of loans or advances

The Groups share of Quadrant’s revenue for the reporting year was £16 million (2013-14 £19 mullion) and its share of Quadrant’s profit
after tax was £1 million (2013-14 £3 million) This share of profit after tax is credited against Other operating costs in the mcome
staternent The Group s share of the net assets of Quadrant at 29 March 2015 was £5 milion {at 30 March 2014 £4 million}

During the reporting year the Group received no dividend (2013-14 £2 million) from Quadrant

26. Current trade and other receivables

The following details relate to amounts owed to the Group by third parties and also the level of bad and doubtful debts that the Company

has provided for in the finanaal statements

Reported Reported
at 29 March at 30 March
2015 2014
£m £m
Trade recevables 836 809
Prepayments and accrued income 108 111
Income tax recewvable 5 6
Total 949 G26
Movements in the proviston for bad and doubtful debts were as follows
Reported Reported
2015 2014
£m £m
At 30 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 27N (30)
Recelvables prowided for dunng the penod (4) (8)
Release of provisian 4 4
Uulisation of prowvision 5 7
Exchange difference on foreign denominated prowision 1 -
At 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 (21) {27
The amount of trade receivables that were past due but not imparred are shown below
Reported Reported
at 29 March at 30 March
2015 2014
£m Em
Not yet overdue 766 726
Past due nat more than one month 49 61
Past due more than one month and not more than two months 11 8
Past due more than two months 10 14
Total 836 809
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27. Current trade and other payables

The following detalls relate to amounts owed by the Group to third parties

Reported Reported
at 29 March at 30 March

2015 2014

£m £m

Trade payables and accruals (1.215) (11586)
Advance customer payments {mamly for stamps held not yet used by customers) (286) (322)
Social securty (98) (104)
Capita! expenditure payables (53) (60)
Other (16) (10)
Total (1,668) (1652

The fair value of trade and other payables 1s not materially different from the carrying value

28. Issued share capital and reserves

Reported Reported
at 2% March at 30 March

2015 2014
Authorised share capital £m Em
1 000000000 ordinary shares of £0 01 each 10 10
Total 10 10

Reported Reported
at 29 March &t 30 March

2015 2014
Issued and fully paid share capital £m £m
1 000 000 000 ardinary shares of £001 each 10 10
Total 10 10

For earnings per share purposes the 1,000 000,000 ordinary shares are deemed to have been authorised and in 1ssue for the entirety of the
comparative reporting year even though the shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange part way through that year - October 2013
(note 9)

Of the issued ordinary shares a total of 40 935 are held by the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) These are treated as treasury shares in the
consolidated balance sheet in accordance with |AS 32 Finanaal Instruments Presentation As such, calculations of earnings per share for the
Group exclude these shares The Company however does not hold any shares in treasury

Reserves included in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

Foreign currency translation reserve
The Foreign currency translation reserve 1s used to record the gams and losses ansing since 29 March 2004 on translation of assets and
llabities of subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the reporting currency

Hedgmg reserve
The Hedging reserve 1s used to record gams and losses ansing from cash flow hedges since 28 March 2005
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29. Commitments

The information betow includes details of committed future rental payments for the use of assets which the Group does not legally own,
and are either not recognised on the Group’s balance sheet {operating leases) or are recognised on the Group's balance sheet (finance
leases} on the basis that the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the finance leased assets e with Royal Mail plc Group

Operating lease commitments

The Group 15 commutted to the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Land and buildings Vehicles and eguipment IT equipment Total
Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported Reported
at 29 March at 30 March  at 29 March at 30 March  at 29 March  at 30 March  at 29 March at 30 March
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within one year (117) (115) (10) (12) (3) (9 (1300 {136)
Between one and five years (365) (373) (12) (12) (1) (10) (378) (395)
Beyond five years (441) (470) (2} (8) - - (443) (478}
Total (923} (958) (24} (32) {4) {19) {951) (1009

Existing leases for UK land and buildings have an average term of 18 years and lease renewals are agreed with the lessor as appropriate
Existing land and builldings leased overseas by the GLS subsidiary have an average lease term of eight years Vehicle leases generally have a
term of between one and seven years, depending on the asset class with the average term being one year The existing leases have an
average term remairing of one year The majonty of the [T commitments relate to 10-year contracts with an average term remamning of

less than one year
Finance lease commitments

Reported at 29 March 2015 Reported at 30 March 2014
Minimum  Present vatue of Mimimum  Present value of
lease minimum lease lease  mummum lease
payments payments  payments payments
£m £m £m £m
Within one year (98) (93) (94) 87
Between one and five years (174) (164) (243) (227)
Beyond five years (114) (15) {113) (28)
Total minimum lease payments (386) (272) {450) (342)
Less future finance charges 114 - 108 -
Total finance lease obligations (272) (272) (342) (342)

The Group has finance lease contracts for vehicles, land and buildings and plant and equipment The leases have no terms of renewal,
purchase options escalation clauses or restnctions concerming dividends, borrowings or additional leases Vehicle leases have a term of
hetween one and seven years, depending on the class of vehicle, with the average term being three years Property leases have a term of
between 10 and 110 years with the average term being 48 years The terms of the plant and equipment leases range from five to eight

years with the average being five years
Capital commitments

The Group has commitments of £63 mitlion at 29 March 2015 {at 30 March 2014 £35 million) which are contracted for but not provided for

in the financiat statements
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30. Related party information

This note prowvides details of amounts owed to and fram related parties which include the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP), the Group s
assoclate company and payments to key management personnel Details of the Group s principal subsidianies and associate are also
provided

Related party transactions
During the reporting year the Group entered into transactions with related parties

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014
£m £m

Sales/recharges to
- RMPP 5 b
Purchases/recharges from
- Assoclate undertaking (Quadrant Catering Limited) 14 22
Amounts owed to
- Associate undertaking (Quadrant Catening Limited) 1 2

In view of HM Government s retained stake n Royal Matl plc the Group has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by IAS 24 Related
Party Disclosures not to disclose transactions between the Group and HM Government-related entities including Post Office Limited and
with HM Government itself

UKPIL provides collection and delivery services to a significant number of HM Government-related entities An arrangement is also in place
whereby Post Office Limited charges the Group for the sale of Royal Mail products e g stamps and philatelic items through its network of
Post Office branches

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices Balances outstanding at the year end are unsecured
nterest free and settlerment 1s made by cash

Key management compensation

Reported Reported
52 weeks 52 weeks

2015 2014
£000 £000
Short-term employee benefits {10,202) (9587)
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits {2,846) {5072)
Total compensatian earned by key management {13,048) (14 659)

In additien to the incdlusion of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of Royal Mall plc, from the beginning of the 2014-15 year
2014-15, the key management personnel population has been extended to include ali other members of the Chief Executive s Committee
{see page 58) and the remainder of the Persons Discharging Managenal Responsibilities

In view of the above the 2013-14 comparative numbers have been restated to nclude the remuneration recewved by this extended
population

The ultimate parent and principal subsidiaries
Royal Mail plcis the ulttmate parent Company of the Group The consolidated finanaal statements include the financial results of Royal Mail
Group Limited and the other principal substdiartes isted below

T equity ¥ equity

interest interest
Company Principal activities Country of incorporation 2015 2014
General Logistics Systems BY Parcel services holding company Netherlands 100 100
Royal Mail Estates Limited Property holdings United Kingdom 100 100
Royal Mail Investments Limited Holding company Urited Kmgdom 100 100
Romec Limited Faciities management United Kingdom 51 51
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30. Related party information (continued)

Assotiate
% %
owmership awnership
Company Principal activities Country of incarporation 2015 2014
Quadrant Catering Limited Catering services United Kmgdom 51 51

The majority of Board membership and voting power in Quadrant Catenng Limited 1s held by the other nvestor company and it 1s therefore
not a subsidiary of the Group The investment in Quadrant Catering Limited 1s held by Royal Mail Group Limited

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 allowing a schedule of interests in all
undertakings to be filed with the Annual Return

31. Events after the reporting period

This note confirms whether or nat there have been any matenal events occurning between the end of the financial reporting pertod on
29 March 2015 and the publication date of the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2014-15

On 31 March 2015 after the financial year end GLS Germany disposed of its wholly-owned subsidiary, DPD Systemlogistik GmbH & Co KG
(DPD SL) to DPD GeoPost {Deutschtand) GmbH The disposal resulted in a post-tax profit of around €40 million {£29 million) which will be
reflected as a specfic item in the Group s 2015-16 finanaal statements

130 Royal Mail pic




ssenns
ssenss
e

Strategic report Governance Fimarncial statements M Other iImformation

IR REE RS

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financal statements of the Company and its subsichary undertakings The financial
statements of the major subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Company using coensistent accounting policies

All intra-Group balances and transactions including unrealised profits ansing from intra-Group transactions have been eliminated i full
Transfer prices between business segments are set on a basis of charges reached through negotiation with the respective busmesses

Subsidianes are cansolidated from the date on which control 15 obtamed by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which
controls no longer held by the Group Where the Group ceases to hold control of a subsidiary, the consolidated finanoial statements include
the results for the part of the reporting year during which the Group held control

Mon-controlling interests represents the portion of profit/loss, gans/losses and net assets relating to subsidiaries that are nat attributable to
members of the Company The non-controling interests balance s presented within equity in the consolidated balance sheet separately from
parent shareholders equity

Changes m accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those in the Annual Report for the year
ended 30 March 2014 except for the adoption of amended/revised and new accounting standards with effect from 31 March 2014 as
detailed below

IFRS 10 Censolidated Financial Statements

This new standard identifies the concept of control as the deterrmining factor in deciding which entities should be included within the
consolidated financial statements This standard replaces ali the prevtous guidance on control and consolidation which was given in IAS 27
The application of this new standard has no impact on the consoldation decisions made by the Group

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

This standard {which supersedes IAS 31) provides a new set of definitions which reduces the types of joint arrangements that can he
recognised to two {previously three) The standard also stipulates that equity accountmag 15 mandatory for all participants in joint ventures
At the reporting date the Group has no joint arrangements and currently therefore, this new standard has ne impact on the financial
performance or positton of the Group

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

This new standard sets out the disclosure requiremnents ansing from the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 standards This standard requires
additional disclosures in respect of the Group's associate investment (note 25) but has no impact on the financial performance or position of
the Group

IAS 28 Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures {Amended)

The mam impact of this new standard 1s to make it a requirement for associates and joint ventures to be accounted for using the equity
method following the 1ssue of IFRS 11 It 1s already Group policy to account for such entities usmg the equity method and so this amendment
will have no impact on the Group

IAS 32 Fimancial Instruments Presentation (Amended}
This amendment was made to clanfy some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and liabilities on the balance sheet The
amendment makes no changes ta the current offsetting model and therefore has no wmpact on the Group s financal position

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (Amended)
This amendment relates to the disclosure of information regarding the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount 1s based upon
fair value less costs of disposal This amendment ta the standard has no impact on the Group s financial pasition or related disclosures

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

The preparation of consolidated finanoal statements necessanly reguires Management to make estimates and assumptions that can have a
significant impact on the financial statements These estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances The areas
invelving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financiat
statements are disclosed below

Pensions

The value of defined benefit pension plan liabilities and assessment of pension plan costs are determined by long-term actuaral
assumptions These assumptions include discount rates {which are based on the long-term yield of high-quality corporate bonds} inflation
rates and mortahty rates Differences ansing from actual experience ar future changes in assumptions will be reflected in the Group s
consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome The Group exerases its judgement in determining the assumpttons to be adopted after
discussion with a qualfied actuary Details of the key actuanal assurnptions used and of the sensitvity of these assumptions are imcluded
within note 8
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred revenue

The Group recognises advance customer payments on its balance sheet relating to stamps and meter credits purchased by customers but
not yet used at the balance sheet date {note 27) The valuation of this deferred revenue I1s based on a number of different estimation and
sampling methods using external specialist resource as appropriate

The majority of this balance 1s made up of stamps scld to the general public For sales to the general public, estimates of stamyp volumes held
are made on the basis of monthly surveys performed by an independent third party In order to avoid over-estimation of the typicat number
of stamps held Management applies a cap to the results to exclude what are considered to be abnormal stamp holdings from the estimate
The level at which holdings are capped is judgemental and 1s currently set at 99 of each stamp type per household The impact of applying
alternative capping values on the year end public stamp deferred revenue balance 1s shown in the table below

Capped Uncapped
As reported
At 29 March 2015 30 99 300
Public stamp holdings value (Em) 165 198 223 227

The value of stamps and meter credits held by retail and business customers are more directly estimated through the analysis of sales
volumes and monthly meter sampling Further adjustments are also made for each type of sale to take into account volume purchasing of
stamps when price changes are announced

The resuits of the above procedures are reviewed by Management in order to make a judgement of the carrying amount of the accrual The
total accrual 1s held within current trade and other payables but a portion {which cannot be measured) will relate to stamps and meter credits
used one year or more after the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Assessment of the deferred tax asset requires an estimation of future profitability Such estimation i1s inherently uncertain in a market subject
to various competitive pressures Should estimates of future profitability change in future years, the amount of deferred tax recognised will
also change accordingly Prior to recording deferred tax assets for tax losses relevant tax law 1s considered to determine the availability of
the losses to offset against the future taxable profits The carrying values of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are included within note 6

Provistons

Bue to the nature of prowsions, a significant part of therr deterrmination 1s based upon estimates and/or judgements concerning the future Of
the provisions i place the transformation and industral diseases claims prowvisions are considered to be the areas where the application of
judgement has the most significant impact

Transformation provisions including for redundancy and property costs, are derived based upon the mast recent busimess plan for direct
expenditure where plans are sufficiently detailed and appropriate communication to those affected has been undertaken These plans include
the expected number of employees impacted expected rate of compensation per employee, expected period of properties remaming vacant
and thetr rental costs as well as expected dilap:dation costs

The industrial diseases claims provision arose as a result of a Court of Appeals judgement in 2010 and relates to indivduals who were
employed in the General Post Office Telecommurucations division prior to October 1981 The provision requires estimates to be made of the
likely volume and cost of future claims and Is based on the best information available as at the year end which incorporates independent
expert actuanal advice The carrymg values of the provisions are included within note 20

Revenue
Revenue reported in the income statement is net of value added tax and comprises turnaver which principally relates to the rendering of
services as follows

UK Parcels, International & Letters
Account revenue I1s derived from speaific contracts and recogrised when the delivery of an item i1s complete Contracted services that have not
yet been rendered at the balance sheet date are designated as deferred income

Revenue from direct sales of products or services 1s recognised when services are rendered goods are delivered and the amount of revenue
that will flow to the Group can be measured rehably Where payments are received for a service to be provided over a specified length of
time, payments received are recognised as deferred revenue and released to the income statement over the period that the service 15
performed

Revenue derived from Network Access agreements 1s recognmised when the delivery of the related items 1s complete Where products are sold
through third party agents, the revenue receivable I1s recognised gross with any cammission payrents being charged to operating costs

Revenue relating to public retail and business stamp and meter sales 15 recognised when the sale 1s made adjusted to reflect a value of
stamp and meter credits held but not used by the customer Further details on this ‘deferred revenue adjustment are provided in the Key
sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements section above
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General Logistics Systems
Revenue 1s derived from speaific contracts and is recogrused when the delivery of an item 1s complete

Distribution and conveyance costs ;
Distribution and conveyance costs relate to non-people costs incurred in transporting and delivering mail These include conveyance by rai !
road sea and arr together wath costs incurred by international mail carmers and Parcelforce Worldwide delivery operators and GLS These

costs are disclosed separately on the face of the income statement

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity settled share-based compensation schemes under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (shares) of the Company These include the HMRC-approved {Employee Free Shares)
Share Incentive Plan {SIP} and the Save As You Earn {SAYE) scheme Both schemnes are based on non-market conditions and do not vest
until the employee completes a speafic period of service Share-based payments awarded as part of Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIP) vest
based on market conditions The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the shares i1s recognised as an
expense In the ncome statement with a corresponding credit entry m equity as per the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment The
total amount expensed I1s determined by reference to the fair value of the equity imstruments at the date on which they are granted The farr
value of each award 15 measured using the Black-Scholes model where appropriate

The total expense I1s recognised over the vesting period, which 15 the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ulumately vest At each balance sheet date before vesting the cumulative expense 1s calculated
representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and Management s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of service
conditions and of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest The movement in cumulative expense since the previous balance
sheet date is recognised m the mcome statement, with a corresponding entry m equity The social secunty contnbutions payable in connection
with the grant of Shares s considered an integral part of the grant itself and the charge is treated as a cash-settled transaction

Non-GAAP measures of performance

In the reporting of financial iInformation, the Group uses certain measures that are not defined under IFRS the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), under which the Group reports The Directors beleve that these non-GAAP measures assist with the
understandng of the performance of the business

These non-GAAP measures are not a substitute or supenior to any IFRS measures of performance but they have been included as
Management considers them to be an important means of comparing performance year-on-year and they mclude key measures used withm
the business for assessing performance

Transformation costs
These costs relate to the ongoing transformation of the business and include voluntary redundancy project costs and other transformation-
related payments

Reported operating profit before transformation costs

This 15 the operating profit including the pension charge to cash difference operating specific item {see below for defimtion) and before
transformation costs This is a key performance mdicator in the Corporate Balanced Scorecard which is used to determine employee
ncentives

Reported operating profit after transformation costs
This 1s the operating profit including the pension charge to cash difference operating specific item and after transformation costs

Operating specific items

These are recurring or non-recurring items of income or expense of a particular size and/or nature relatmg to the operations of the busmess
that 1n Management’s opinion reguire separate identification These items are included wittan reported results but are excluded from
adjusted results

These items include the recurring pension charge to cash difference {resutting from the increasing difference between the Group s income
statement pension charge and the actual cash cost of pensiens including deficit payments) and other items that have resulted from events
that are non-recurming 1n nature even though related iIncome/expense can be recogrused in subsequent pertods These items currently
include the charge for Employee Free Shares and impairment and legacy costs (for example movements in the industnal diseases provision)

Non-operating specific items

These are recurnng or non-recurring items of income or expense of a particular size and/or nature which do not form part of the Group s
trading actwity and in Managements opinton require separate identification These items include profit on dispasal of property plant and
equipment and businesses and the I1AS 19 non-cash pension interest credit/charge

Adjusted operating profit before transformation costs
This 15 operating profit excluding the "pensian charge to cash difference operating specific item and before transformation costs

Adjusted operating profit margin before transformation costs
This 15 operating profit excludmg the ‘pension charge to cash difference operating specific item and before transformation costs expressed as
a percentage of revenue
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Adjusted operating profit after transformation costs
This 1s operating profit excluding the pension charge to cash difference’ operating specific item and after transformation costs

Adjusted operating profit margin after transformation costs
This is operating profit excluding the pension charge to cash difference operating specific itemn and after transformation costs expressed as a
percentage of revenue

Adjusted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share excluding operating and non-operating specific items

Free cash flow
Free cash flow 15 based on statutory (reported) net cash flow before financing activitres adjusted to include finance costs paid and exclude net
cash generated from the purchase/sale of finanaal asset investments

Net debt
Net debt 1s calculated by netting the value of financial iabibties {excluding derivatives) aganst cash and other hquid assets

Underlying change

Management focuses on movements in volume revenue, costs profits and margins on an underlying basis Underlying movements take
nto account differences in working days in UKPIL and movements in foreign exchange m GLS In additton adjustments are made for non-
recurning or distorting items which by their nature may be unpredictable These adjustments are made to the prior year adjusted’ figures
to derive ‘underlying change’ A schedule of the adjustments to the 2013-14 adjusted results to derive underlying change’ 15 shown in the
Finanaal review on pages 29-30

Income tax and deferred tax
The charge for current tax s based on the results for the reporting year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed It 1s
calculated using rates that have been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all taxable and deductible temporary differences and unused tax assets and
losses except

¢ Initial recognition of goodwill

¢ The imitial recognitron of an asset or liability in a transaction that 1s not a busmess combination and, at the time of the transaction affects
nerther the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss

e Taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, asseciates and interest in joint ventures where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future and

« Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avallable agamst which they can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and increased or reduced to the extent that it 1s probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow them to be utilised

Deferred tax assets and liabilitres are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the tax asset is realised or the
lrability 15 settled based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax balances are
not discounted

Current and deferred tax 1s charged or credited directly to equity If they relate to items that are credited or charged directly to equity,
otherwise it 1s recognised in the income statement

Earnings per share {(EPS)

Basic earnings per share (EPS) from continuing operations 1s caleulated by drviding the profit/loss from continuing operations {adjusted for
non-controlling interests share of profit) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue The Group EPS is ealculated in the
same way, except that it also includes profit or loss from discontinued operations

Diluted EPS 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue on the assumption of conversion of alt
potentially dilutive ordinary shares ansing from share-based payment schemes These potential shares are treated as dilutive only when therr
conversion to ordinary shares would decrease EPS from continuing operations
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Segment mformation

The Group s operating segments are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided with
each segment representing a business unit that offers different products and serves largely different markets Management monitors the
operating results of its main business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment Segment performance 1s evaluated based on operating profit before and after transformation costs

There I1s no aggregation of operating segments The mam statutory entities that make up the three operating segments are mncluded
n note 2

The operating segments comprise operations in both the UK and other parts of Europe the latter being relevant to the GLS business unit
The UK operations comprise the UKPIL busmess unit plus the Other operating segment
Segment revenues have been attrnibuted to the respective countries based on the primary location of the service performed

Transfer prices belween segments are set at arm's length/fair value on a basis of charges reached through negotiation with the respective
busimess units that form part of the segments

There are no differences in the measurement of the respective segments profit/loss and the cansolidated financial staternents prepared
under IFRS

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment 1s recognised at cost, including directly attributable costs in bringing the asset mto working condition for its
intended use Depreciation of property plant and equipment 1s provided on a straight-line basis by reference to net book value and to the
remaining useful economic lives of assets and their estimated residual values The useful ives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjustments where applicable are made on a prospective basis The lives assigned to major categories of property plant and equipment are

Land and buildimgs

Freehold land Not depreciated

Freehold buildings Up to 50 years

Leasehold buldings The shorter of the periad af the lease 50 years or the estimated remainmg useful fe
Plant and machinery 3-15 years
Motor vehicles and trailers 2-12 years
Fixtures and equipment 2-15 years

An tem of property plant and equipment 1s derecagnised wpan disposal or when no future econormic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal Any gam or loss ansing at derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) 1s inctuded in the income statement in the year that the asset s de-recogrised Gains or losses from the
disposal of assets are recognised in the mcome statement when all significant risks and rewards of awnership are transferred to the
customer

All suhsequent expenditure on property plant and equipment 1s capitalised If it meets the recognition criteria and the carrying amount of
those parts replaced is derecognised All other expenditure including repairs and maintenance expenditure is recognised i the income
statement as incurred

Goodwill

Business combmnations on or after 29 March 2004 are accounted for under IFRS 3 Business Combimations using the purchase method Any
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets habilities and
contingent liabiities at the date of acquisition Is recognised n the balance sheet as goodwill and 1s not amortised

After initial recognition goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill arising from business combimations is
reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impared
For the purpose of such impairment reviews goodwill 1s allocated to the relevant cash generating units

An impairment loss 1s recognised i the income statement for the amount by which the carrying value of the goodwill {or cash generating
unit) exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of an asset s net realisable value and its value in use

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of equity accounted entities 1s included m the cost of those entities and therefore not reported in the
balance sheet as goodwill

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are capitalised separately from goodwill if the fair value can be measured
rehably on imibal recognition Intangible assets acquired separately or development costs that meet the criteria to be capitalised are initially
recegrused at cost and are assessed to have either a finite or indefinite useful kfe Those with a finite Ufe are amortised over their useful hfe
and those with an indefinite life are reviewed for imparrment annually or more frequently If events or changes i arcumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired An impairment loss is recogrised in the income statement for the amount by which the carrying value of
the mtangible asset exceeds its recoverable amount which 1s the higher of an asset s net realisable value and its value in use
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Amartisation of intangible assets with finite lives 1s charged annually to the mcome statement on a straight-line basis as follows

Customer listings 3 to 4 years
Master franchise licences 7 to 10 years
Software 3 to 10 years

Investment In associate

The Group’s investment in its associate company 1s accounted for under the equity method of accounting Under the equity method the
investment 1s carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the associates, less
any impairment in value The income statement reflects the Groups share of annual post-tax profits from the associate (netted off other
operating costs as the values are not matenal enough for separate disclosure}

Any goodwill anising on acquisition of an associate representing the excess of the cost of the investment compared to the Group s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilittes and contingent liabilities acquired 15 included in the carrying amount and not amortised

Non-current assets held for sale and discontmued operations
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use This condition Is regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset i1s available for immediate
sale In its present condition Managernent must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification Following ther dassification as held for sale, the assets {including those in a disposal
group) cease being depreaated

A discontinued operation (s a component of the Group s busmess that represents a separate major ine of busmess or geographical area of
operations that has been disposed of, or that meets the critera to be classified as held for sale Discontinued operations are presented in the
consoldated statement of comprehensive income as a single line which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation up
to the date of dispesal and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on any remeasurement of the disposal group to fair value less costs to sell
or on disposal of the assets or disposal groups constituting discontimued operations

Impairment reviews

Unless otherwise disclosed in these accounting polices assets and cash generating units are reviewed for imparrment if events or changes in
crcumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired The Group assesses at each reporting date whether such indications exist
Where appropriate an impairment loss 1s recogrised in the income statement for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset {or
cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, which 1s the bigher of an assets net realisable value and its value in use

Leases

Finance leases, where substantially all the nisks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item have passed to the Group are
capitabised at the inception of the lease with a corresponding liability recogrised for the fair value of the leased item or if lower at the
present value of the mimimum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned hetween the finance charges and caprtal element of the
lease hability to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful bfe of the asset and the lease term

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are retained by the lessor, are classified as operating leases
and rentals are charged to the income statement over the lease term The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis

A leasehold land payment is an upfront payment to acquire a long-term leasehold mterest in land This payment 15 stated at cost and 1s
amortised on a straight-line basis over the penod of the lease

In addition to lease contracts other significant arrangements or contracts are assessed (by reference to IFRIC 4) to determine whether, in
substance they are or contain a lease This assessment 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date including whether
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a night to use the asset

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recogmised and carnied at the onginal mvoice amount less an allowance for any non-collectable amounts An estimate
for doubtful debts 1s made when collectton of the full amount 1s no longer probable with the amount of the loss recognised in the income
statement within operating costs When a bad debt 1s recognised it 1s written off agamnst the allowance for trade receivables Subsequent
recoventes of amounts previously written off are credited against operating costs in the income statement

Inventories

Inventories are valued on a weighted average cost basis and carned at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all direct
expenditure and other costs attributable in bringing inventories to their present location and condition The principal stock balance consists of
engineermg spare parts
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Trade payables
Trade payables are recorded iniially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost Generally this results in therr recognition
at their nominal value

Financial mstruments

Finanaal assets within the scope of IAS 39 Finanaal Instruments Recognition and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair
value through the income statement (held for trading} held to matunity investments, loans and receivables or available for sale financial
assets as appropriate Financal labilities within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as either finanaal Uabilities at fair value through the
income statement or financial labiibbes measured at amortised cost

The Group determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting
date When financial instruments are recognised initially they are measured at fair value being the transaction price plus In the case of
financal instruments not at far value through the income statement, any directly attributable transactional costs The Group only has loans
and receivables finanaal labilittes measured at cost and derivative asset and hahilities

The subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification as follows

Loans and receivables

Non-denvative financial assets with fixed or deterrminable payments that are not quoted on an active market do not qualfy as trading assets
and have not been designated as either fair value through the mcome statement’ or available for sale are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method if the time value of money s significant Gains and losses are recogrised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired as well as through the amortisation proeess

Financial habilities measured at amortised cost

All non-derivative financial Labilities are classified as financial labilities measured at amortised cost Non-denivative financial habilities are
intially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less directly attnbutable 1ssue costs After initial recognition non-derivative
financial labilties are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gamns and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the llabilities are derecognised or impaired as well as through the amartisation process

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the batance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits {cash equivalents) with an
original maturity date of three months or less In addition the Group uses money market funds as a readily available source of cash, and
these funds are also categonsed as cash equivalents For the purpose of the staternent of cash flows cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above net of bank overdrafts Cash equivalents are classified as loans and recewvables financial
nstruments

Financial assets - pension escrow Investments
Financral assets - pension escrow Investments comprise a money market fund investment established to prowide security to the Royal Mail
Senior Executive Pension Plan {(RMSEPP) in support of a defiat recovery plan agreed with the Trustee in 2013

Financial assets - other investments
Finangial assets - other mvestments compnise short-term deposits {other investments) with HM Government local government or banks with
an oniginal maturity of three months or more Short-term deposits are classified as loans and receivables financial instruments

Financial iabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All {oans and borrowings are classified as financial babiities measured at amortised cost The €500 mullion bond 1s measured at amortised
cost in Euro and converted to Sterling at the closing spot Sterling/Euro exchange rate

Financial labilities - obligations under finance leases
All obligations under finance leases are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Derivative financral instruments and hedging programmes

The Group uses dervative mstruments such as foreign currency contracts in order to manage the risk profile of any underlying risk exposure
of the Group I line with the Group s treasury management palicies Such denivative financial instruments are mitially stated at farr value
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges where they hedge exposure to vanability in cash flows that

15 attributable either to a particular risk assooated with a recognised asset or liability, or to a highly probable forecast transaction

In relation to cash flow hedges to hedge the interest rate foreign exchange or commaodity price risk of firm commutrnents that meet the
conditions for hedge accounting the portion of the gan or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s deterrmned to relate to an effective hedge
1s recognised directly i equity and the ineffective portion 1s recognised m the income statement

When the hedged firm commitment results in the recognition of a non-finanoal asset or non-financial lability then at the time the asset

or hability 1s recogmised the assoctated gains or losses that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the inial measurement
of the acquisition cost or other carrying amount of the asset or lability For all other cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that are recognised
in equity are transferred to the income statement in the same reporting year in which the hedged firm commitment affects the net

profitloss for example when the hedged transaction actually occurs
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For dervatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting any gains or losses ansing from changes in far value are taken directly to the
income statement in the penod

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold terrminated or exeraised or no longer qualifies for hedge
accountimg At that pont any cumulative gain or toss on the hedging instrument recogrised in equity 1s kept in equity unti! the forecast
transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gam or loss recogrised i equity 1s transferred
to the income statement for the reporting year

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
All assets and habilities for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy described as follows based on the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets far (dentical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability erther directly (1e as prices) or
indirectly {1 e derived from prices}

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
The fair value of quoted investments is deterrmined by reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date

Where there Is no active market, far value 15 determined using valeation techniques These include using recent arm s length market
transactions reference to the current market value of another instrument which 1s substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis
and pricmg models Specifically in the absence of quoted market prices, derivatives are valued by using quoted forward prices for the
underlying commodity/currency and discounted using quoted interest rates (both as at the close of business on the balance sheet date)
Hence derivative assets and habiliies are within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as defined within IFRS 13

The Group determines whether any transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation at the end of each
reporting pentod For the purposes of disclosing the fair value of mvestments held at amortised cost in the balance sheet 1n the absence of
quoted market prices far values are calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the financial instrument using quoted equivalent
interest rates as at close of business on the balance sheet date For the €500 mullion bond the disclosed fair value 1s calculated as the closimg
market bond price converted to Sterling using the closing spot Sterling/Euro exchange rate

Provisions

Prowisions are recegnised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 1t 15 probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a rebiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation If the effect
of the time value of money 1s material provisions are determuned by discounting the expected future cash flows at an appropriate pre-tax
rate Accounting estimates used in calculating the provisions are discussed further in the Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgements part of this accounting policies section

Dividends

Distributions to owners of the Company are not recogrised in the income statement under IFRS but are disclosed as a component of the
movement In shareholders equity A Liability 1s recorded for a dividend when the dvidend s approved by the Company s shareholders but
not paid at the year end Interim dividends are recognised as a distrtbution when paid

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The pension assets for the defined benefit schemes are measured at fair value Liabilittes are measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quabty corporate bond of equivalent
currency and term The resulting defined benefit asset or liabelity 1s presented separately on the face of the balance sheet Full actuaral
valuations are carried out at intervals nat normally exceeding three years as determined by the Trustees and with appropnate updates and
accounting adjustments at each balance sheet date, form the basis of the surplus disclosed All active members of defined benefit schemes
are contracted out of the eamings-related part of the State Second pension scheme

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and any gains and losses arising from
settlements, curtalments and past service costs The amount resulting from applying the Plan's discount rate (for labilities) to the pension
surplus at the beginning of the reporting year is recognised as net pension iterest in the income statement Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income Any deferred tax movement assocated with the actuana! gans and
losses 1s also recogmsed immediately in the statement of comprehensive income

For defined contnbution schemes, the Group s contrnibutions are charged to operating profit within people costs in the penod to which the
contributions relate Overseas subsidianies make separate arrangements for the prowston of pensions and other post-retirement benefits
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Foreign currencies
The functional and presentational currency of Royal Mail plc 1s Sterling {£) The functional currency of the overseas subsidiaries in Europe 1s
mainly the Euro (€)

The assets and habilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date The trading results of
foreign operations are translated at the average rates of exchange for the reporting year being a reasonable approximation to the actual
transaction rate The exchange rate differences arising on the translation smce the date of transition to IFRS are taken directly to the foreign
currency translation reserve in equity

Fareign currency exchange differences ansing from translation of the €500 mullion bond (designated as a hedge of the met investment in
GLS) to closing Sterting/Euro exchange rates are deferred to the foreign currency translation reserve in equity These exchange differences
would be released from equity to the income statement as part of the gam or loss on the sale if GLS was sold

Transactions in foreign currencies are mitially recorded in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and hizhilities denominated n foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date Currently hedge accounting is not claimed for any monetary assets and liabilities All differences are
therefore taken to the income statement except for differences on monetary assets and liabilities that form part of the Group's net
mvestment in a fareign operation These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment occurs, at which time they are
recognised in profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of their historic cost in a fareign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the imtial transactions Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value 1s determined

Accounting standards issued but not yet applied
The following new and amended/revised accounting standards are relevant to the Group and are in 1ssue but were not effective {and in some
instances have not yet been adopted by the EU} at the balance sheet date

IAS 1 {Amended) Improving the Effectiveness of Disclosure m Financial Reporting™

IAS 16 (Amended) and IAS 38 {Amended) Acceptable Methods of Deprecation and Amortisation®

IAS 19 (Amended) Employee benefits Employee contributions

IAS 27 {Amended) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements*

IAS 39 {Amended) Finanoal Instruments Recognition and Measurement

IFRS 9 Finanaal Instruments*

IFRS 10 {Amended) and IAS 28 (Amended) Sale of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
IFRS 11 {Amended) Accounting for Acquisttions of Interests in Jomt Operations®

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Annual Improvements 2011-2013 and Annual Improvements 2012-2014*

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards hsted above will have a maternal impact on the financial performance or
position of the Group in future periods

* Not yet endorsed by the EU
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Group five year summary (unaudited)

The following information has been prepared on a 52 week basis and excludes, for the 2011 to 2013 comparative years the Groups former

Post Office Lirrnted {POL) subsidiary which was transferred to Royal Mail Holdings plc {subsequently renamed Postal Services Holding
Company Limited) on 1 Apnl 2012 The Directors are of the view that this presentation provides a meaningful comparative hustory of the

current Group excluding POL

This five year summary Indudes the financal performance and position of the DPD SL subsidiary. which was redlassified as discontinued

operattons at the reporting year end date of 29 March 2015

Financial Teporting year {52 weehs) ending March

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Income statement - Adjusted £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 9.424 9456 9146 8764 8415
Operating profitf{loss) before transformation costs 740 729 595 372 (53)
Transformation costs (145) (241) (195) (229) {192)
Operating profit/{loss) after transformation costs 595 488 400 143 {245)
Finance costs (26) (67) {99) (100) (84)
Profit/{less) before tax 569 421 301 43 (329)
Tax (138) (110) (81) {13) 115
Profit/(loss) after tax 431 311 220 30 (214)

Financial reporting year (52 weeks) ending March

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Income statement - Reported £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 9,424 9456 9146 B764 8 415
Operating profit before transformation costs 611 671 568 381 210
Transformation costs (145) (241) {195) {229) (192)
Operating profit after transformation costs 466 430 403 152 18
Operating specific items (248) 1213 (7N (57) 48)
Non-operating specific items 133 21 4 182 104
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 351 1664 330 277 74
Finance income/{costs) - mainly net pension interest {non-operating specific tem) 75 69 52 (230) {419)
Finance costs {26) (67) (59} (100) {84)
Profitfloss) before tax 4,00 1666 283 {53} (429)
Tax (specific tems and other) (72) {386} 246 (51) {123)
Profit/(loss) after tax 328 1280 529 {104) (552)

Fimancial reporting year {52 weeks) ending March

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Free cash flow’ - Reported £m £m £m £m £m
EBITDA before transformation costs 889 940 915 681 493
Pension charge ta cash difference 129 58 {3) 9) (263)
Trading working capital movements 1 (57 {60) (19) (58)
Total investment (658) (617) {665} (625} (584)
Other {dvdends tax mterest) {50} (67) {81) (87) (59)
In-year trading cash inflowf{outflow) 311 257 106 (49) (471)
Other working capital movements 11 140 202 - -
Cash cost of aperating specfic items (8) {35) (26) (37) (5}
Proceeds from disposal of assets/busmess 139 36 52 240 230
Free cash mflow/{outflow) 453 398 334 154 (246)

! An explanation of free cash flow 15 provided i nate 7
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At March financial repetting year end date

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Balance sheet - Reported £m £m £m £m £Em
Property plant and equpment 1,933 1989 1916 1822 1829
Intangible assets (manly software) 300 195 139 135 126
Inventones 20 22 24 32 33
Trade and other receivables 960 939 1012 1036 906
Trade and other payables (1,708) {1683) (1647) {1548) (1423)
Other net (habhties)assets (31) (20} - 4 40
Provisions (253) (268) (246) {217 {252)
Goodwill (mainly relates to GLS} 182 197 196 189 197
Investiments in associates 5 4 3 3 9
Net operating assets and investments In associates 1,408 1375 1397 1456 1465
Cash and cash equivalents 287 366 351 473 319
Pension escrow mvestments 20 20 20 149 87
Loans and borrowings (366) {600} (973} {1522) {1478)
Other net financial labilities (216) (341) (304) (286) (200)
Net debt (275) (555) {906) (1186) (1272)
Deferred tax (labilities)/assets {466) (142) 89 9 (2)
Net assets before pension defiat and pension escrow mvestments 667 678 580 261 191
Penston surplus/(deficit) 3,179 1723 825 (2 716) {4 185)
Net assets/{liabilities) 3,846 2401 1405 (2 455) {3994)

Financial reporting year (52 weeks) ending March

People numbers ~ periad end employees 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
UKPIL 142,910 148441 149940 151156 155181
GLS 14,409 13811 13 646 13 362 13167
UK partially owned subsidiaries 3,199 3999 4030 3926 4254
Group total 160,518 166251 167616 168444 172602
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and Financial Statements in accordance with apphcable law and regulations
Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanoal statements for each reporting year Under that law the Directors are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union (EU) and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation Under company law the Directors must nat approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to
s select sutable accounting pobicies and then apply them consistently,
s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

» state that the Group has complied with [FRS as adopted by the EU subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial staternents, and

s prepare the finanoal statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue m
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the Company's and Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financal position of the Company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for takmg reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are also responsible for prepanng the Directors’ report, the Corporate Governance report and the Directors remuneration
report in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable regulations mcluding the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company s
website Legislation m the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement
Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are disclosed on pages 43-45, confirms that to the best of ther knowledge

» the financial statements prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards give a true and fair view of the assets
habilities financal position and profit of the Company and the Group taken as a whaole and

s the Management report which 1s incorporated into the Strategic report, and the Directors report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the Group taken as a whale, tagether with a descrption of the prinapal risks and
uncertainties that they face

In addinon the Board considers that the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole. is fair balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance business model and strategy

By Order of the Board

4

tthew Lester
1ef Finance Officer

Moya Greene
Chief Executive Officer
20 May 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Royal Mail plc

Opmign on financial statements
In our opinion

¢ the Group financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Groups affars as at 29 March 2015 and of the Groups
profit for the year then ended

s the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union and

» the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance wath the requiremnents of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4
of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited

We have audited the Group financial statements of Royal Mail plc for the penod ended 29 March 2015 which comprise the Consolidated
mcome statement the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income the Consohdated statement of changes in equity the
Consolidated statement of financal position the Consolidated statement of cash flows statement and the related notes 1 to 31 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied i their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members as a body n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an Auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company s members as a body, for our audit work for this report or for the opmions we have
formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 142, the Directors are responstble for the
preparation of the financial staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards far Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the finanaal statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or errer This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting pohicies are appropnate to the Group’s crcumstances and have been consistently appled and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overall presentation of the
Group financial statements In addition we read all the finanaial and non-finanaal information in the Annual Report 2014-15 to 1dentify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any
apparent maternal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Our assessment of nsk of material misstatement
The table helow shows the risks we identified that have had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team, together with our audit respanse to the risk

Risk How the scope of our audit addressed the nisk

Revenue recognition, including the accounting for We performed controls testing over revenue recognition as well
advance customer payments, {as described on page 52 of as detailed transaction testimg including the timing of revenue
the Audit and Risk Caommittee Report and note 27 of the recognition

finanoal statements N
) We challenged Management’s underlying assumptions and

methodology used in its deferred revenue calculations as well
as assessing whether the revenue recognition policies adopted
complied with {FRS as adopted in the EU

Market expectations and profit based targets may place
pressure on Management to distort revenue recognition

This may result n overstaternent ar deferral of revenues to We have independently assessed the methodology of the external
assist in meetng current or future targets or expectations surveys with the use of our internal speoialists, including

Recorded revenue is adjusted for sales of stamps and meter consideratian of survey size and caps in place to address the impact
credits that have been sold but nat yet used of abnormal heldings

The adjustment 15 based on external third party surveys We performed analytical procedures and journal entry testing in

order to identify and test the risk of fraud arising from
management override of controls
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Royal Mail plc (continued)

Risk

How the scope of our audit addressed the risk

Accounting and valuation of the Group's pension
scheme, (as described on page 52 of the Audit and Risk
Committee Report and note 8 of the financial statemnents)

Both the defined benefit schemes (the Rayal Mail Pension
Plan and the Royal Mail Senior Executive Pension Plan) are
sensitive to long-term assumptions which can resutt in
matenal fluctuations m amounts recorded in the finanaal
statements

Using the knowledge and expertise of gur own actuarial specialists
we challenged Management s key assumptions and estimates used
In tts pensian accounting to evaluate the appropriateness of the
methodology Specifically we tested Management s estimate of the
discount rate inflation rates {(RPI and CPI) salary increases
mortality, retirement age and commutation

We have agreed the pension schemes assets to ndependent
fund manager confirmations as well as sample tested the asset
valuations

We have performed detailed testing on the membership data
provided by Management to the external actuaries

We also considered whether the Group s pension disclosures are
appropriate and in accordance with IFRS as adopted in the EU

Accounting and measurement of the Group’s provisions,
including costs associated with the French Competition
Authority investigation and the mndustnal diseases
provision, {as described on pages 51 and 52 of the Audit
and Risk Committee Report and note 20 of the financial
statements)

The Group s provistons are based on management s best
estimate of outcomes usmg assumptions that require
Judgement

The outcome of the French Competition Authonity
investigation is nat yet known and as such, the provision in
the financial statements for the year ended 2% March 2015
15 based on external legal advice

The value of the prowvision 1 relation to the industnal
diseases s based on external third party actuanal adwvice

We reviewed the Group s provisions to understand the
appropriateness of assurmptions supporting Managements
estimates challenging Management s accounting treatment and
disclosures

We have reviewed the external legal advice in relation to the French
Competition Authonty imvestigation including consideration of the
correspandence receved from the Authority

We reviewed the scenarios presented by legal advisors, which
included a range of probable outcomes Woe reassessed the
amount constdered by Management to represent a best
estimate of expenditure required based on legal advice

Using the knowledge and expertse of our own specialists we
challenged Management’s key assumptions and estimates used
to evaluate the appropnateness of the industnal diseases
actuanal methodology

We also considered the completeness of the Group s provisions
and contingent Lability disclosures and compliance with IFRS as
adopted n the EU

Our application of materality

We apply the concept of matenality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements on our
audit and on the finanaal statements For the purposes of deterrmiring whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement we define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable person, relying on the financial statements, would be changed or influenced We also determine a level of
performance materiality which we use to determine the extent of testing needed to reduce to an appropniately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds matenabty for the finanoal statements as a whole

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we deterrmined a magmitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be
matertal for the financial statements as a whole We determined planning matenality for the Group to be £27 1 million which 1s
approximately five per cent of adjusted profit before tax (2013-14 five per cent of adjusted profit before tax) This provided a basis for
determining the nature timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, dentifying and assessing the nisk of material misstatement
and determining the nature, tming and extent of further audit procedures

On the basis of our risk assessments together with our assessment of the Group's overall control environment our judgement 1s that
overall performance matenality for the Group should be 75 per cent of planning matenality namely £20 3 millan Qur objective in
adopting this approach i1s to ensure that together with qualitative considerations total detected and undetected audit differences do not
exceed our planming materality of £27 1 million for the financial statements as a whole

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we would report to the Committee all adjusted and unadjusted audit differences
m excess of £1 4 million We also agreed to report differences below those thresholds that in our view warranted reporting on

qualitative grounds
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Royal Mail ptc (continued)

An overview of the scope of our audst

Following our assessment of the risk of matertal misstatement to the Group financial statements we selected 11 components which
represent the principat business units within the Groups reportable segments and account for 99 per cent of the Group's revenue and
99 per cent of the Group's profit before tax Two of these components were subject ta a full audit and four were subject to audits of
specific account balances {together accounting for 92 per cent of revenue and 98 per cent of profit befere tax) Five were subject to
review procedures and for the remamning compaonents, we performed other procedures to confirm there were no significant nisks of
matenal misstatement in the Group financial statements

The audit work for acations subject to a statutory audit was executed at levels of materiality applicable to each mdividual entsty which
were much lower than Group matenality The Group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been
designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory Auditor or his designate wisits each of the two full scope locations at least orice a year This
year, the Group audit team wsited the UK and overseas full scope locattons For all full scope entities, the Group audit team reviewed key
warking papers and participated in the companent team’s planning mcludmg the companent team s discussion of fraud and error

Opinton on other matters prescrthed hy the Companies Act 2006
in our opinign

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to he audited has been properly prepared m accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

* the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the finanoal year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Woe have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to repart to you if in our opimion, information in the Annual Report 1s
« matenally inconsistent with the mformation in the audited financial statements, or

« apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acqured in the course of
performung our audt, or

+ Is otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have 1dentified any mcansistencies between our knowledge acquired during the
audit and the directors statement that they consider the annual repart is fair balanced and understandable and whether the annual
report appropnately discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have been
disclosed

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in our opinion

+ certam disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

« we have not receved all the informatson and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the Directors’ statement, set out on page 63 in relat:on to going concern and

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company s compliance with the ten prowisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code speafied for our review

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Royal Mail ple for the pertod ended 29 March 2015 and on
the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that s descnibed as having been audited

/‘\’ftw(géf WMZ (e f

Richard Wilsan {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP Statutory Auditor

London
20 May 2015
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Royal Mail plc - parent Company financial

statements

The majority of the Annuai Report and Financial Statements relates to the Royal Mail plc Group consclidated accounts, which comprise the
aggregation of ail the Groups trading entities This mandatory section reports the indiwdual balance sheet and notes of the ultimate

halding company Royal Mall plc (the Company)

Company balance sheet
At 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014

At 29 March At 30 March
2015 2014
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Investment m subsidiary 6 1,759 1561
Total fixed assets 1,759 1591
Current assets
Debtors - amounts faling due in less than one year 7 375 -
Current Liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due in less than one year (&) (4)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 8 - -
Net current assets 369 (4)
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 9 {366) -
Net assets 1,762 1587
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10/11 10 10
Retained earnings 11 1,752 1577
Shareholders’ funds 1,762 1587

The balance sheet was approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 203 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Matthew Lester
Chief Finance Officer
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Notes to the parent Company
financial statements

1. Parent Company accounting policies

Fimancial reporting year
The financial reporting year ends on the last Sunday in March and accordingly these finangial statements are made up for 52 weeks ended
29 March 2015 (2013-14 52 weeks ended 30 March 2014)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company were authorised for 1ssue by the Board on 20 May 2015

The financial statements and notes on pages 146 to 148 have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards
and law including the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 Unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies below the financral
statements have been prepared under the histonc cost accounting convention

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 However the
results of the Company are presented in notes 4 and 11 to these financal statements

The Company has taken advantage of paragraph 2D of FRS 29 (IFRS 7) Financial mstruments’ and has not disclosed information required
by that standard as the Group s consolidated financial statements, in which the Company 1s mcluded, provide equivalent disclosures for the
Group under IFRS 7

Ne new UK accounting standards which affect the presentation of these finanoal statements have been issued

Investment in subsidiary
The mvestment 1n subsidiary s stated at cost less any accurmulated impairment losses

Debtors
Debtors are recognised with an allowance for any non-collectable amounts including where coflection 1s no longer probable

Adoption of FRS 101 in 2015-16

In 2012 the FRC beng the standard setting body in the UK published FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewark which s availlable to
qualifying entities that prepare their Annual Report and Accounts under EU adopted IFRS {International Finanaal Reporting Standards)

This autlines a reduced disclosure framework available to qualifymg entities and all UK entities will be required to adopt this or an alternative
standard m 2015 Royat Mall plc intends to prepare its accounts under FRS 101 for the first time i 2015 This change 1s not expected to
have a significant impact on the Rayal Mail plc parent Company accounts The consohdated accounts for the Group waill continue to be
prepared under full IFRS The Board considers that it 1s in the best interests of the Group for Roval Mail plc to adopt FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework A shareholder or shareholders holding in aggregate five per cent or more of the total allotted shares in Royal Mail plc
may serve objections to the use of the disclosure exemptions on Royal Mail pl¢ 1in wnting to its registered office {100 Victona Embankment
London, EC4Y OHQJ not later than 30 September 2015 and if so received Royal Mail plc may not use these disclosure exemptions

2. Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are not paid any fees by the Company for their services as Directors of the Company The Directors are paid
fees by other compames of the Group These emoluments are disclosed in the Group financial statements

3. Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor of the Company 1s not paid fees by the Cempany The auditor of the Company is paid fees by other companies of the Group
This remuneration 15 disclosed in the Group financaal statements {note 13)

4. Profit and loss account

The Company 1s a nan-trading company The profit for the period of £207 million (2013-14 £4 million loss) 1s primarily in respect of
£210 million of dividends received from Royal Mail Group Limited offset by management charges to and from Royal Mail Greup Limited
and certain transactron-related costs

5. Taxation

There 1s no tax charge/credit for the period

6. Investment in subsidiary

At 29 March At 30 March

2015 204

£m £m

At 31 March 2014 and 12 September 2013 1,591 1500
Investment in subsidiary - charge for Employee Free Shares/LTIP/SAYE! 168 91
At 29 March 2015 and 30 March 2014 1,759 1591

! Excludes £7 million {2013-14 £3 million} assooated National Insurance costs
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Notes to the parent Company financial statements (continued)

7. Debtors - amounts falling due within one year

This b(alance mainly consists of an intercompany loan to Royal Mail Group Limited of the proceeds from the i1ssue of the £500 mullion
bond {nate 9)

8. Provisions for liabilities and charges

In relation to the transfer of Royal Maill Group Limited to the Company in 2013-14, a provision for liabilities and charges of less than
£1 mitlion remains

9. Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year

In July 2014 the Company 1ssued €500 million 2 375 per cent Senior Fixed Rate Notes due July 2024 with a fixed annual mterest coupon
of 2 375 per cent The proceeds raised were transferred to Royal Mal Group Limited

10. Called up share capital

At 29 March At 30 March

2015 2014
£m £m
Authorised
1000000 000 ordinary shares of £0 01 each 10 10
Total 10 10
Allotted and i1ssued
1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of £0 01 each 10 10
Total 10 10

Of the issued ordmary shares a total of 40 935 are held by the Employee Benefit Trustee (EBT) These are treated as treasury shares in the
consolidated balance sheet in accordance with 1AS 32 Fmancial Instruments Presentation As such calculations of earmings per share for the
Group exclude these shares However the Company does not hald any shares m treasury for the purposes of these separate Company
finanoal statements

11. Shareholders’ funds

Called up
share Retamed

capital earnings Total

£m £m £m

At 6 September 2013 {incorporation) - - -
Loss for the peried - (4) {4)
Issue of shares i cansideration for the transfer of Royal Mail Group Limited shares 1500 - 1500
Reduction of capital {1 490) 1490 -
Investment in subsidiary - 91 91
At 30 March 2014 10 1,577 1,587
Profit for the period - 207 207
Investment in subsidiary - 168 168
Dindend paid - (200} (200)
At 29 March 2015 10 1,752 1,762
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the parent Company financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors report and the finanaal statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

i@mﬂnm

Company law requires the Directars to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards including Finarcial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable m the UK and Republic of Ireland ) and
applicable law Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial staterments unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these financial
statements the Directors are required to

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
+ Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢ State whether applicable United Kingdom {UK) Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explamned in the finanoial statements and

¢ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company wiil continue in
business

The Directors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financal
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

.__‘L.—{_:'—-’-—-—
7
W/ WA >
/
Matthew Lester
20 May 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report to
the members of the parent Company
Royal Mail plc

We have audited the parent Company finanoal statements of Roya! Mail ple for the penod ended 29 March 2015 which comprise the parent
Company balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 11 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation is
appheable law and United Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Acceptad Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
Auditor s Teport and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opmions we have formed

Respective respansibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 149 the Directors are responstble for the
preparation of the parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair iew Qur responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opinion on the parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland} Thoese standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the parent Company financial statements sufficent to give
reasonable assurance that the parent Company financal statements are free from matenal misstatemerit whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent Company's arcumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overalt
presentation of the parent Company financial statements In addition we read all the finanaal and non-financial mformation in the Annual
Report to identify materal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 1dentify any inforrnation that 1s apparently materally
ncorrect hased on, or materally mconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware
of any apparent matertal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Cpiniton on financial statements
In our opinion the parent Company financal statements

* Give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 29 March 2015
« Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
» Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

e The part of the Directors remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

» The information given in the Strategec report and the Directors’ report for the finanaoal perod for which the finanaal statements are
prepared IS consistent with the parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if 1n our opinion

s Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not wisited by us, or

s The parent Company financal statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accauntmg records and returns, ot

s Certarn disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made, or
» We have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reparted separately on the Group financial statements of Royal Mail plc for the penod ended 29 March 2015

= \
( "_: ﬂ\sf_ < ﬂ)u\j (L P
Richard Wilson {Senior stattitory auditor}

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
20 May 2015
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Shareholder information

Fimanaal calendar
Trading update - 21 July 2015
Annual General Meeting - 23 July 2015

Dividend dates

Ex-dividend date - 2 July 2015
Record date - 3 July 2015
Payment date - 31 July 2015

Shareholder information online

The Companys registrars Equiniti are able to notify shareholders
by email of the availability of an electronic version of shareholder
mformation

Whenever new shareholder information becomes available such as
the Companys half year and full year results Equmiti will notify you
by email and you will be able to access read and print documents at
YOur own canvenience

To take advantage of this service for future communications, please
go to www shareview co uk and select Shareholder Services where
full details of the shareholder portfolio service are provided When
registering for this service you will need to have your 11-digit
shareholder reference number to hand which 1s shown on your
dividend tax voucher share certificate or form of proxy

Should yeu change your mind at a later date you may amend your
reguest to receive electronic communication by entering your
shareview portfolio online and amending your preferred method
of communication from email to ‘post’

Shareholder fraud

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure investors
mto scams They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless
or non-existent or to buy shares at an inflated price in return for an
upfront payment While high profits are promised if you buy or sell
shares in this way you will probably lose your money

5000 people contact the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) about
share fraud each year, with vicms losing an average of £20 000 If you
are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the share fraud
reporting form at www fca org uk/scams where you can find out more
about investment scams You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline
on 0800 111 6768 If you have already paid money to share fraudsters
you should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040

Adwvisers

Corporate Brokers

Barclays Bank plc The North Colonnade London E14 4BB
Bank of America Merrdt Lynch 2 Kng Edward Street London
EC1A 1HQ

Independent Auditor”
Ernst & Young LLP {EY), 1 More London Place London SE1 2AF

Trustee of The Royal Mail Share Incentive Plan

Equinitt Share Plan Trustees Limited Aspect House, Spencer Road,
Lancing West Sussex BN99 6DA

www rayalmailemployeeshares co uk

Tel 08000121213

* EY will hold office until the conclusion of the 2015 AGM At the AGM a resalution 15
tabled to appoint KPMG as Auditors of the Company

Annual Report and Fmancial Statements 2014-15

Information for mvestors

Information for investars 1s provided on the nternet
as part of the Groups website which can be found at
www royalmailgroup com/investor-centre

Investor enquirtes
Enguiries can be directed via our website or by contacting

Registrars

Equiniti

Aspect Mouse Spencer Road, Lancing West Sussex, BN99 6DA
www shareview co uk

Tel 0871 384 2656 {from outside the UK +44 {0)121 415 7086)

Calis to this number cost & pence per minute from a BT landtine other
providers’ costs may vary Lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm UK time
Monday to Friday

Registered office

Royal Mail plc

100 Victorta Embankment
London EC4Y OHQ

Registered in England and Wales
Company number 08580755

Corporate websites

Information made available on the Groups websites does not, and
15 not intended to form part of this Annual Report and Firancial
Statements

151



Forward-looking statements

Disclaimers

This document contains certain forward-looking statements
concerning the Group's business, fimancial condition results of
operations and certam of the Groups plans, objectives assumptions
projectians, expectations or beliefs with respect to these stems
Forward-looking statements are sometimes, but not always 1dentified
by their use of a date in the future or such wards as ‘anticipates ‘aims’,
‘due ‘could’, ‘may will should expects, believes ‘mtends ‘plans,
‘potentsal’ targets goal or estimates

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks
uncertamnties and other factors which may cause the Groups actual
fimancial condition performance and results to differ matenially from
the plans goals, objectives and expectations set out in the forward-
looking statements included in this document Accordingly, readers are
cautioned riot to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements

By ther nature forward-lookmg statements relate to events and
depend on circurmnstances that will occur in the future and are
mherently unpredictable Such forward-looking statements should,
therefare be considered in light of various important factors that could
cause actual results and developments to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements These
factors include among other things changes in the economies and
markets n which the Group operates changes in the regulatory regime
within which the Group operates changes in interest and exchange
rates the impact of competitive products and pricing, the occurrence of
major operational problems, the loss of major customers undertakings
and guarantees relating to pension funds contingent liabilities the
impact of legal or other proceedings against, or which otherwise affect
the Group and risks associated with the Groups overseas operations

All written or verbal forward-looking statements made m this
docurment or made subsequently which are attributable to the Group
or any persons acting on their behalf are expressly qualified m ther
entirety by the factors referred to above No assurance can be given
that the forward-looking statements i this document will be realised
actual events or results may differ matenally as a result of risks and
uncertainties facing the Group Subject to comphance with applicable
law and regulation the Company does not intend to update the
forward-looking statements in this document to reflect events or
crrcumstances after the date of this document and does not undertake
any obligation to do so
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